City of San Juan Bautista
The “City of History”

www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us

AGENDA
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY ~ SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 ~ 6:00 P.M.

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
311 Second Street
San Juan Bautista, California

— HYBRID MEETING -
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY ZOOM AND IN PERSON

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO GOVT. CODE §54953(e)(1)(A).
In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus the City Council is conducting this
meeting by Zoom webinar and will be offering alternative options for public participation. You are
encouraged to watch the meeting live on Zoom or Facebook. ‘

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

All Attendees must comply and wear a face covering if not fully vaccinated and show proof. If
providing proof attendees will not need to wear a face covering. If you are exempt from the state
face covering guidance or not fully vaccinated, you will be required to wear a mask to attend the
meeting; All attendees must comply with any other rules of procedures/instructions announced
by the Mayor and/or City Staff. Any violations of the above may result in the Mayor closing the
meeting, effective immediately, or clearing the room, as well as other enforcement actions. The
meeting will be available through Zoom for those who wish to join or require accommodations
with the instructions below:

The meeting can also be accessed by the public in the following methods: Through Zoom
(https://zoom.us/join) per the instruction stated below, and on Facebook.

Join Zoom Webinar https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89657069195
or call 1 (669) 900-6833
Webinar ID: 896 5706 9195

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE TAKEN ON AGENDA ITEMS BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN BY THE
CITY COUNCIL. DURING THE MEETING: TO PROVIDE VERBAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AN
AGENDA ITEM DURING THIS MEETING CALL THE PHONE NUMBER LISTED ABOVE OR LOG
INTO ZOOM AND ENTER THE MEETING ID NUMBER AS LISTED ABOVE.

When the Mayor announces public comment is open for the item which you wish to speak, press *9 on
your telephone keypad or if joining by Zoom, use the raise your hand icon. When called to speak, please
limit your comments to three (3) minutes, or such other time as the Mayor may decide, consistent with the
time limit for all other speakers for the particular agenda item. Comments from other platforms will not be
considered during the meeting. If you would like to participate during the meeting you MUST use Zoom.

“ If you are unable to join the meeting, written comments may be mailed to the Deputy City Clerk at City
Hall (P.O. Box 1420, San Juan Bautista, CA 95045), or emailed to deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us
not later than 5:00 p.m. on September 19, 2022, and will be read into the record during public comment on
the item.




City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City will make reasonable arrangements to
ensure accessibility to this meeting. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Deputy City Clerk a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting at (831) 623-4661.

If you challenge any planning or land use decision made at this meeting in court, you may be limited to
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing held at this meeting, or in
written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing. Please take notice
that the time within which to seek judicial review of any final administrative determination reached at this

meeting is governed by Section 1094.6 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

A Closed Session may be called during this meeting pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(2) if a
point has been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of the City on the advice of its legal
counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against
the City.

Materials related to all items on this agenda are available in the agenda packet on the City website
www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us subject to Staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting, or by
emailing deputycityclerk@san-juan-bautista.ca.us or calling the Deputy Clerk (831) 623-4661 during
normal business hours.

1. Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

2. Public Comment
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Council on matters not on this agenda.
The law does not permit Council action or extended discussion of any item not on the agenda except under special
circumstances. If Council action is requested, the Council may place the matter on a future agenda.

3. Consent ltems
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion authorizing actions indicated for those
items so designated. There will be no separate discussion of these items uniess requested by a member of the City
Council, a staff member, or a citizen.

A. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Making Findings and Determinations Under Government Code §54953 for
Continuing Virtual and Hybrid Meetings

B. Approve the Affidavit of Posting Agenda

C. Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 3-5-155 of the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code and Increasing Water Rates (Second Reading and
Adoption)

D. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Authorizing Street Closures in the City of San Juan Bautista

E. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Updating the COVID Protection Plan (“CPP”)

F. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista

Extending the COVID-19 Sick Leave Program Established by Resolution

2022-15 and Authorize the City Manager to Approve Up To Eighty Hours of

Sick Leave for COVID-19 Related lliness Until June 30, 2023

Approve the Minutes for the July 19, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting

Approve the Minutes for the August 9, 2022 City Council Special Meeting

Approve the Minutes for the August 16, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting

Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda Beyond Title

Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista

Proclaiming and Reaffirming the Existence of a Local Emergency

XemIo



City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

4. Presentations, Proclamations, Informational Items and Reports

A.

B.

San Benito County Habitat Conservation Plan Presentation by
Arielle Goodspeed, San Benito County Principal Planner

City Council and Staff Announcements
This is an opportunity for Council and staff to share the community calendar and announce upcoming dates of
interest to the general public.

Reports from City Council Representatives to Regional Organizations and
Committees
Treasurer’s Report and Monthly Financial Statements by City Treasurer
Michelle Sabathia
City Manager’s Report

a. Fire Department Update

b. Sheriff Department Update

5. Action Items

A.

®

moow>»y I

Approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Establishing Guiding Principles for the Community Plan Authorized by
Resolution 2022-13

Approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Approving the First Amendment to the Reimbursement Agreement Between
the City and SJB Alameda Enterprises, LLC, for Construction of a Right Turn
Lane on State Route 156 at Its Intersection With The Alameda

Approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Amending Rule Il by Adding Section 20 to Its Personnel Policies: Teleworking
Policy and Procedure

- Reject Bids for the 2022 Pavement Management Program Project and Re-Bid

the Project with Modifications

Introduce an Ordinance Rescinding Section 5-1-165 (“Fireworks”) of Chapter
5.1 (“California Fire Code — 2001 Edition”) and Rescinding Chapter 5-16
(“Fireworks™), of the Municipal Code; and Adding a New Chapter 5-16
(‘Fireworks”) to the Municipal Code to Prohibit the Sale, Use, Possession and
Discharge of All Fireworks Within the City and Imposing Host Liability For
Allowing Same

Introduce an Ordinance to Add Sections 7-04-106 and 7-04-107 to the San
Juan Bautista Municipal Code to Authorize Exceptions to Subsections (E)(1)
And (F) of Section 22500 of the California Vehicle Code Regarding,
Respectively, Parking in Front of Driveways and Parking on Sidewalks

- Consider the Status of the Urban Growth Boundary/Sphere of Influence Ad

Hoc Committee
Report by Planning Commissioner Selection Ad Hoc Committee

iscussion Items

Establish a Golf Cart Transportation Plan in San Juan Bautista

Consider Changes to the City Sign Ordinance

Consider a Noise Ordinance

Consider a RV Trailer Parking Ordinance

Municipal Election Update (Candidates Running for Office, Process for Write
In candidate period open, Measure for appointing City Clerk and City
Treasurer, forums announced)

7. Adjournment



ltem #3A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
MAKING FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS
UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE §54953 FOR CONTINUING
VIRTUAL AND HYBRID MEETINGS

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a viral respiratory disease from which variants
have emerged and which has now spread across the world as a pandemic with
multiple confirmed cases in California and, as of September 14, 2022, the
federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) rated the risk level
for community transmission of COVID-19 in San Benito County as Low; and

WHEREAS, under authority provided by Government Code section 8625
on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of
Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic that remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Council declared a State of
Emergency in the City of San Juan Bautista due to COVID-19 that remains in
effect; and

WHEREAS, on April 12, May 10, July 8, and October 19, 2021, Governor
Newsom proclaimed states of emergency that remain in effect across all
counties of California due to extreme and expanding drought conditions; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2022, the City Council declared the City of San
Juan Bautista to be in a state of emergency pursuant to Water Code section
350 due to the severity of the drought and directed commencement of certain
water conservation regulations as provided by Municipal Code Section 6-4-
116; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is committed to preserving and nurturing
public access and participation in its public meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361),
approved by the Governor and filed with the California Secretary of State on
September 16, 2021, which amended Government Code section 54953 of the
Brown Act (Government Code sections 54950-54963) to allow local agencies
to meet fully virtually or in a hybrid format (that is, a meeting format
containing both virtual and in-person components) without fully complying
with the teleconference rules set forth in Government Code section
54953(b)(3) during a proclaimed state of emergency if state or local officials
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and



Item #3A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

WHEREAS, the Health & Human Services Agency of the County of San
Benito has issued a health advisory entitied “COVID-19 What you need to
know” that recommends social distancing as a way to slow the spread of a
virus including keeping a distance of approximately three feet from the nearest

person while in a workplace; and

WHEREAS, The California Department of Industrial Relations Division
of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) has promulgated Section 3205
of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, which requires most employers
in California, including the City, to train and instruct employees about
measures, including physical distancing, that can decrease the spread of
COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the City Manager to enforce the
provisions of Municipal Code Section 6-4-116 as of May 1, 2022, until such
time as the drought has ended; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires that the City of San Juan Bautista,
including all commissions, committees, and other Brown Act bodies shall
continue to be able to hold virtual or hybrid meetings pursuant to AB 361 and
Government Code section 54953(e)(1)(A).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City
of San Juan Bautista as follows:

Section 1. The City Council has reconsidered the circumstances of
the local states of emergency in accordance with Government Code sections
8630(c) and 54953(e)(3)(A), the information related to these matters and
the Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated as
findings into this Resolution by this reference.

Section 2. The City Council finds state and local officials continue to
recommend measures to promote social distancing and water conservation.

Section 3. The City Council and all other commissions, committees or
other Brown Act bodies of the City shall be authorized to continue to meet
virtually in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(1)(A)
without compliance with section 54953(b)(3).

Section 4. This Resolution does not prevent or prohibit the City
Council or any commission, committee or other Brown Act body of the City
from holding virtual or hybrid meetings (containing both virtual and in
person components) provided such meetings comply with Government Code
section 54953(e)(2)(A-G) and with all state and local health orders.



Item #3A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

Commissions, committees and other Brown Act bodies shall comply with all
rules established by the City Council and/or City Manager for attendance at
meetings.

Section 5. The City Council shall take action to renew this Resolution
every thirty days for as long as any state or local officials continue to
recommend any measures to promote social distancing, but the City Council
may terminate the Resolution at any time. In the event that more than 30
days pass between regular City Council meetings, the City Council shall take
action at a virtual or a hybrid meeting to renew this Resolution before
deliberating, either at the beginning of the next regular meeting or at a
special meeting.

Section 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of
such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity
shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the
provisions of this Resolution are severable. The City Council declares that it
would have adopted this Resolution irrespective of the invalidity of any
particular portion of this Resolution.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan
Bautista at a regular meeting duly held this 20th day of September 2022, by
the following vote:

AYES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT, COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN, COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, City Manager
Acting Deputy City Clerk



Item #3B
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

l, TRISH PAETZ, DO NOW DECLARE, UNDER THE PENALTIES OF
PERJURY THAT | AM THE ACTING ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER
FOR THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, AND THAT | POSTED THREE (3)
TRUE COPIES OF THE ATTACHED CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA. |
FURTHER DECLARE THAT | POSTED SAID AGENDA ON THE 16t DAY OF
SEPTEMBER 2022, AND | POSTED THEM IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS
IN SAID CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO,
CALIFORNIA.

s ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT CITY HALL, 311 SECOND STREET.

2. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE CITY LIBRARY, 801 SECOND
STREET.

3. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE UNITED
STATES POST OFFICE, 301 THE ALAMEDA

SIGNED AT SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, CALIFORNIA,
ON THE 16" DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022.

TRISH PAETZ [/
ACTING ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER




ltem #3C
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA AMENDING SECTION 3-5-155 OF THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL CODE AND
INCREASING WATER RATES

-000-

WHEREAS, the City provides its water customers with water service; and

WHEREAS, the City funds thise service, including associated operations, maintenance,
improvement, and debt service costs, with water rates that are collected from water customers
on their monthly municipal utility bills; and

WHEREAS, the existing rates are not sufficient to fully fund anticipated expenses; and

WHEREAS, the City engaged Bartle Wells & Associates (“BWA”") to recommend a
schedule of water rates that would fully fund the City’s anticipated water system operational
and capital improvement costs and would spread those costs amongst water customers in a
manner consistant with the requirements of Article XIIl D, Section 6 of the California
Constitution (“Proposition 218”); and

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2022, by its Resolution No. 2022-38 (the “Resolution of
Intention”), the City Council, following the recommendation of BWA, proposed to increase the
City’s water rates over a five year period; and

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2022, the City Council held a public hearing (the “Public Hearing”)
regarding the proposed increase; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Public Hearing was mailed to water customers in the manner
required by Proposition 218, Section 53755 of the Government Code, and applicable law; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearing, all interested persons had the opportunity to provide
oral and written testimony regarding the proposed rates; and

WHEREAS, through the close of the public input portion of the public hearing, written
protests against the proposed schedule of rate increases were accepted by the City pursuant to
the Guidelines for the Acceptance and Tabulation of Protests (the “Guidelines”) set forth in
Attachment “B” to the Resolution of Intention, which Guidelines are on file in the Office of the
City Clerk, available for public inspection, and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2022, at the close of the public input portion of the public
hearing, it was determined that the written protests received by the City did not constitute a
majority protest against the proposal; and



Item #3C
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed BWA’s Water Rate Study, dated May 21, 2022,
which is on file in the Office of the City Clerk, available for public inspection, and incorporated
herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the proposed schedule of rate increases;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Municipal Code to permit future water
rate increases to be adopted by resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council finds and declares as follows:

A. The forgoing recitals are true and correct.

B. No majority protest, as defined in the Guidelines, exists against the proposed rate
increase.

C. Revenues derived from the proposed rates are not anticipated to exceed the funds
required to provide water service.

D. Revenues derived from the proposed rates will not be used for any purpose other than
providing water service.

E. The amount of the proposed rates imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident of
property ownership will not exceed the proportional cost of the service attributable to
the parcel.

F.  Water service is actually used by, or immediately available to customers subject to the
rates.

Section 2. The rates set forth in Attachment “A” to this Ordinance, which is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, are hereby adopted. Each of the Rates set forth
in Attachment “A” shall go into effect as set forth therein, without further action of the City
Council. The Council may, by ordinance or resolution, reduce any rate set forth in Attachment
“A” but may not increase any rate about what is shown in Attachment “A” without complying
with the notice, protest and hearing provisions of Proposition 218.

Section 3. Section 3-5-155 of the Municipal Code is amended to read:
3-5-155. Water Rates
Subject to the notice, protest and hearing requirements of Article XlIl D, Section 6 of the

California Constitution, the City Council may adopt and revise water rates by ordinance or
resolution.



Iltem #3C

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

Section 4. Environmental Assessment. The City Council declares that the approval of

this ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) because

pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060 (c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or

reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment); and, 15060 (c)(3) (the

activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of

Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to

the environment, directly or indirectly. Alternatively, the approval of this ordinance is not a

“Project” under CEQA Regulation Section 15061(b)(3) because it has no potential for causing a
significant effect on the environment.

Section 5. Severability. This Ordinance and the various parts thereof are hereby
declared to be severable. Should any section of the Ordinance be declared by a court to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a
whole, or any parts thereof, so declared unconstitutional or invalid.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall go into effect thirty (30) days after the
date of its adoption.

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was first read at a regular meeting of the San Juan
Bautista City Council on the 16% day of August, 2022, and adopted at a regular meeting of the
San Juan Bautista City Council on the 20th day of September, 2022 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, Interim Deputy City Clerk



Item #3C
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

Attachment A

New Schedule of Water Rates

Effective Effective Effective Effective Effective
11/1/2022 7/1/2023 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 7/1/2026

Monthly Base Chg  $65.91 $75.15 $85.68 $89.97 $94.47

Volumetric Rates

(8/1,000 Gal) $7.05 $8.04 $9.17 $9.63 Sll0x12
Each customer pays both a flat monthly base charge and a volumetric charge based on their
metered water usage.

Pass Through:

The San Benito County Water District will charge volumetric and fixed charges to the City to
supply the City with treated water. The City will automatically “pass through” to its customers
increases or decreases in this SBCWD wholesale rates.

The City anticipates water purchases will begin in January of 2025. The rates set forth above
project that: (i) SBCWD volumetric charges will be $768.77 per Acre Foot in FY 2024/25,
$800.19 per Acre Foot in FY 2025/26, and $832.90 per Acre Foot in FY 2026/27 and (ii)
SBCWD fixed charges will be $88,150 in FY 2024/25, $183,352 in FY 2025/26, and $190,686
in FY 2026/27. If SBCWD’s rates are higher or lower than these amounts, a pass-through
adjustment will occur, as set forth below, to the rates set forth in the rate table set forth at the top
of this page

The portion of the proposed volumetric rates charged by the City that recover the cost of the
SBCWD volumetric charges are $0.86 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2024/25, $1.79 per 1,000 gallons
in FY 2025/26, and $1.87 per 1,000 gallons in in FY 2026/27. This portion of the maximum rate
will, as a pass-through, be adjusted proportionately to the difference between the projected
SBCWD volumetric rates and actual SBCWD rates. For example, if the SBCWD volumetric
charge in FY 2024/25 is 10% higher than anticipated ($845.64 per Acre Foot rather than $768.77
per Acre Foot), the pass through would increase the maximum volumetric rate charged by the
City by 9 cents (10% of $0.86), leading to an overall maximum volumetric rate of $9.26 per
1,000 gallons rather than the $9.17 rate shown in the table.

The portion of the proposed volumetric rates charged by the City that recover the cost of the
SBCWD fixed charges are $0.89 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2024/25, $1.84 per 1,000 gallons in FY
2025/26, and $1.91 per 1,000 gallons in in FY 2026/27. This portion of the maximum rate will,
as a pass-through, be adjusted proportionately to the difference between the projected SBCWD
fixed rates and actual SBCWD rates.



Item #3D
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN
JUAN BAUTISTA

AUTHORIZING CLOSURE OF SECOND STREET BETWEEN
WASHINGTON AND MARIPOSA STREETS FOR THE, “MOVIE IN
THE PARK” SCREENING OF THE FILM “VERTIGO”

AND

AUTHORIZING CLOSURE OF THE ALAMEDA AND THIRD
STREET FROM NYLAND DRIVE TO MUCKELEMI STREET FOR
A HOMECOMING PARADE

BE IT RESOLVED that the State of California Parks Dept is authorized to close
Second Street from Washington to Mariposa Street on Saturday, September 24, 2022
from 6:00 PM until 11 PM for a screening of the film “Vertigo”.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Aromas — San Juan School District is
authorized to close The Alameda and Third Street for the purpose of a Home Coming
Parade from the intersection of Nyland Drive to Muckelemi Street on October 21,2022
from 4:30 — 5:30 PM via a “rolling” closure method.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20% day of September 2022 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Leslie Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, Acting City Clerk



Item #3E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: UPDATE THE COVID PREVENTION PLAN (“CPP”)
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

DEPARTMENT HEAD: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution updating current COVID-19 Prevention
Plan, approved originally by the City Council January 18, 2022.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Before December 7, 2021, City staff was advised to follow the CDC protocols in regards to
anything to do with COVID-19 safety. The City Manager and the Assistant both tested voluntarily
when they had a cold or other related symptoms to assure that they were not positive for COVID.
Others were also asked to voluntarily teats if they felt flu symptoms. After December 7, 2021, the
attached COVID-19 and Return to Work Policy was provided to all City employees with CDC
protocols attached.

The Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) had established an
“Emergency Temporary Standard” for workplace safety standards related to COVID-19
prevention and spread. These mandates are being challenged in court and may be tied up for
several months. An Appeals Court re-instated the vaccine and testing requirements December
17", while the case made it through the system.

As a “State Plan State,” California is required to adopt its own OSHA regulations that are at least
as restrictive as the Federal OSHA policy. California has 30 days to adopt a policy after the federal
policy is adopted. As of December 21, 2021, the Cal OSHA Board had postponed the adoption of
the Federal regulation. If ultimately approved, any employer with more than 100 employces would
need to require every employee to be vaccinated, or conduct weekly testing.

In anticipation of having a federal OSHA policy, working with the California Department of Public
Health (CDPH), Cal/OSHA has developed a “COVID Prevention Plan” (“CPP”) for businesses
with more than 100 employees. It went into effect January 14, 2022. This is a twenty-page
comprehensive strategy for all varieties of employees in a workplace, as it relates to vaccinations,
and exposure to those who are positive for COVID. It defines how and when testing is required



ltem #3E

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

under many different scenarios. It stipulates when and for how long quarantines have to be
observed. It defines various forms of testing, and defines “face coverings.”

Although the City is exempt from these policies, it is beneficial to have this administrative policy
to be certain that the employees follow the correct protocols, and are treated fairly. Note that the
employer is required to pay for testing and time needed to have the tests taken.

In May, CIRA provided an updated CPP. Last month, the law firm Licbert Cassidy and Whitmore
provided an even larger, more detailed, version. It includes a telework policy as well as other
updates.

DISCUSSION:

The attached CPP is basically the updated May version from CIRA. Staff had Regional
Government Services review the two CPP’s and agreed that the more simple May policy is better
for our City.

This update provides a clear description of how the City will respond to employees reportedly in
contact with others, asymptomatic but COVID-19 positive, and when they are sick with COVID-
19. Some of these updates are now required by Cal OSHA and State Labor law and formal notices
are required if possibly more than one employee was in close contact with another that is now
testing positively. When the State of Emergency ends, the need for this policy will also end.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution and Covid Prevention Policy Updated September 20, 2022



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA UPDATING THE COVID PROTECTION PLAN (“CPP”)

WHEREAS, on January 18, 2022, the City received a report announcing the
establishment of a COVID Prevention Plan for the City and its employees; and

WHEREAS, subsequently, several CAL-OSHA and Labor laws, procedures, and safety
protocols have been updated; and

WHEREAS, the City is fortunate that it has been able to maintain a steady workforce
despite being in the State of Emergency caused by the highly contagious virus COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the City’s insurance carrier recommends that the CPP be updated to assure
the safety of the public and its employees, and to follow the new laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the updated CPP, and agrees that by
adopting the updated CPP, it will improve the safety of its employees and the public they
encounter; and

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to adopt a resolution and update its CPP.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA NOW HEREBY FINDS:

1. That the recitals in this Resolution and accompanying staff report are true and
correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.

2. It agrees to adopt the attached Resolution and update its COVID Prevention
Policy.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista at a regular
meeting held on the 20% day of September, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds. Acting Deputy City Clerk



City of San Juan Bautista

COVID-19
Prevention Program

Revised 09/20/2022



PURPOSE:

The purpose of the City’s COVID-19 Prevention Program (“CPP”) is control exposures
to the SARS-CoV-2 virus that may occur at City worksites.

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY

This CPP applies to all employees except for employees who do not have contact with
other persons, employees who are teleworking, or who are covered under the City’s
Aerosol Transmissible Disease (ATD) program.

[Enter name or job fitle of the person(s)j has overall authority and responsibility for
implementing the provisions of this CPP. In addition, all managers and supervisors are
responsible for implementing and maintaining the CPP in their assigned work areas

and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the program in a
language they understand

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives,
policies and procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment.

DEFINITIONS:
For the purposes of the CPP, the following definitions shall apply:

“Close Contact” [S]omeone sharing the same indoor airspace (e.g., home, clinic
waiting room, airplane etc.) for a cumulative total of 15 minutes or more over a 24-hour
period (for example, three individual 5-minute exposures for a total of 15 minutes) during
an infected person's (laboratory-confirmed or a clinical diagnosis) infectious period.

Exception: Employees have not had a close contact if they wore a respirator
required by employer and used in compliance with section 9144, whenever they
were within six feet of the COVID-19 case during the infectious period.

“COVID-19” means coronavirus disease, an infectious disease caused by the
severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2).

“COVID-19 case” A person who: (1) Has a positive COVID-19 test; or 2) Has a
positive COVID-19 diagnosis from a licensed health care provider; or (3) Is
subject to COVID-19-related order to isolate issued by a local or state health
official; or (4) Has died due to COVID-19, in determination of a local health
department or per inclusion in the COVID-19 statistics of a county.

“COVID-19 hazard” means potentially infectious material that may contain
SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19. Potentially infectious materials
include airborne droplets, small particle aerosols, and airborne droplet nuclei,
which most commonly result from a person or persons exhaling, talking or



vocalizing, coughing, or sneezing, or from procedures performed on persons
which may aerosolize saliva or respiratory tract fluids.

“COVID-19 symptoms” means one of the following: (1) fever of 100.4 degrees
Fahrenheit or higher or chills; (2) cough; (3) shortness of breath or difficulty
breathing; (4) fatigue; (5) muscle or body aches; (6) headache; (7) new loss of
taste or smell; (8) sore throat; (9) congestion or runny nose; (10) nausea or
vomiting; or (11) diarrhea, unless a licensed health care professional determines
the person’s symptoms were caused by a known condition other than COVID-19.

“COVID-19 test” means a viral test for SARS-CoV-2 that is: (1) Approved by the
United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) or has an Emergency Use
Authorization from the FDA to diagnose current infection with the SARS-CoV-2
virus; and (2) Administered in accordance with the FDA approval or the FDA
Emergency Use Authorization as applicable. To meet the return to work criteria
set forth in subsection (c)(10), a COVID-19 test may be self-administered and
self-read only if another means of independent verification of the results can be
provided (e.g., a time-stamped photograph of the results.

“Exposed Group” All employees at a work location, working area, or a common
area at work, where an employee was present at any time during the infectious
period. A common area at work includes bathrooms, walkways, hallways, aisles,
break or eating areas, and waiting areas. The following exceptions apply;

A) For the purposed of determining the exposed group, a place where persons
momentarily pass through while everyone is wearing face coverings, without
congregating, is not a work location, working area, or a common area at work.

B) If the COVID-19 case was part of a distinct group of employees who are not
present at the workplace at the same time as other employees, for instance a
work crew or shift that does not overlap with another work crew or shift, only
employees within that distinct group are part of the exposed group.

C) If the COVID-19 case visited a work location, working area, or a common area
at work for less than 15 minutes during the infectious period, and all persons
were wearing face coverings at the time the COVID-19 case was present, other
people at the work location, working area, or common area are not part of the
exposed group.

NOTE: An exposed group may include the employees of more than one
employer.

“Face covering” A surgical mask, a medical procedure mask, a respirator worn
voluntarily, or a tightly woven fabric or non-woven material of at least two layers
that completely covers the nose and mouth and is secured to the head with ties,
ear loops, or elastic bands that go behind the head. If gaiters are worn, they shall
have two layers of fabric or be folded to make two layers. A face covering is a
solid piece of material without slits, visible holes, or punctures, and must fit
snugly over the nose, mouth, and chin with no large gaps on the outside of the
face. A face covering does not include a scarf, ski mask, balaclava, bandana,

2



turtleneck, collar, or single layer of fabric. This definition includes clear face
coverings or cloth face coverings with a clear plastic panel that otherwise meet
this definition and which may be used to facilitate communication with people
who are deaf or hard-of-hearing or others who need to see a speaker's mouth or
facial expressions to understand speech or sign language respectively.

“Infectious period” means for symptomatic infected persons, 2 days before the
infected person had any symptoms through Day 10 after symptoms first
appeared (or through Days 5-10 if testing negative on Day 5 or later), and 24
hours have passed with no fever, without the use of fever-reducing medications,
and symptoms have improved, OR

For asymptomatic infected persons, 2 days before the positive specimen
collection date through Day 10 after positive specimen collection date (or through
Days 5-10 if testing negative on Day 5 or later) after specimen collection date for
their first positive COVID-19 test. .

“Respirator” A respiratory protection device approved by the National Institute
for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) to protect the wearer from
particulate matters, such as an N95 filtering facepiece respirator.

“Returned case” A COVID-19 case who returned to work pursuant to
subsection (c)(10) and did not develop any COVID-19 symptoms after returning.
A person shall only be considered a returned case for 90 days after the initial
onset of COVID-19 symptoms or, if the person never developed COVID-19
symptoms, for 90 days after the first positive test. If a period of other than 90
days is required by a CDPH regulation or order, that period shall apply.

“Worksite” For the limited purposes of sections 3205 through 3205.4 only,
means the building, store, facility, agricultural field, or other location where a
COVID-19 case was present during the infectious period. It does not apply to
buildings, floors, or other locations of the employer that a COVID-19 case did not
enter, locations where the worker worked by themselves without exposure to
other employees, or to a worker's personal residence or alternative work location
chosen by the worker when working remotely.

IDENTIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF COVID-19 HAZARDS

The City will implement the following at our worksites:

. Conduct worksite-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification
of COVID-19 Hazards form or similar form.

. Evaluate employees’ potential worksite exposures to all persons at, or
who may enter, our worksite.



. Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from
the State of California, Cal/OSHA, and the local health department related
to COVID-19 hazards and prevention.

J Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls at our worksites and the
need for different or additional controls.

. Conduct periodic inspections to identify unhealthy conditions, work
practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure
compliance with our COVID-19 policies and procedures.

Screening Employees for COVID-19 Symptoms

The City possesses authority to require employees to be screened for COVID-19
symptoms prior to entering a worksite. Each worksite will either require employees to
self-screen according to CDPH guidelines or will direct screen employees when they
come to work by taking employee temperatures and asking about potential symptoms
prior to entering a worksites. When direct screening is used indoors, face coverings will
be worn by both the screener and unvaccinated employees using a non-contact
thermometer used.

Should an employee present COVID-19 symptoms during an administered screening or
a self-screen, the City will instruct the employee to remain at or return to their home or
place of residence and not report to work until such time as the employee satisfies the
minimum criteria to return to work. The City will advise employees of any leaves to
which they may be entitled during this self-quarantine period. Further, the City has
adopted policies and procedures that ensure the confidentiality of employees and
comply with the CMIA, and will not disclose to other employees the fact that the
employees presented COVID-19 symptoms.

Ventilation and Filtration Efficiency

For indoor locations, we will evaluate how to maximize ventilation with outdoor air to the
highest level of filtration efficiency compatible with the existing ventilation system and
whether the use of portable or mounted high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filtration
units, or other air cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission.

We will review applicable orders and guidance from the State of California and the local
health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention. These orders and
guidance are both information of general application, including Interim Guidance for
Ventilation, Filtration, and Air Quality in Indoor Environments by CDPH and information
specific to our industry, location, and operations.

CORRECTION OF COVID-19 HAZARDS

The City will implement effective policies and/or procedures for correcting unsafe or
unhealthy conditions, work practices, policies and procedures in a timely manner based
on the severity of the hazard.




This includes, but is not limited to, implementing controls and/or policies and procedures
in response to the evaluations conducted related to the identification and evaluation of
COVID-19 hazards and investigating and responding to COVID-19 cases at City
worksites.

CONTROL OF COVID-19 HAZARDS

Face Coverings

The City shall provide face coverings to all employees upon request and ensure they
are worn by employees when required by orders from CDPH. We will ensure required
face coverings are clean and undamaged, and they are worn over the nose and mouth.

When employees are required to wear face coverings, the following exceptions apply:
A. When an employee is alone in a room or vehicle.

B While eating or drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six
feet apart and outside air supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to
the extent feasible.

C. Employees wearing respirators required by the employer and used in compliance
with CCR Title 8 section 5144.

D. Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health
condition or disability or who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a
hearing-impaired person. Alternatives will be considered on a case-by-case
basis.

E. Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering. This
exception is limited to the time period in which such tasks are actually being
performed.

Any employee not wearing a face covering, pursuant to the exceptions listed in items (d)
and (e) above, and not wearing a non-restrictive alternative when allowed by Section
3205 (c)(6)(E) shall be tested at least weekly for COVID-19 during employee paid time
and at no cost to the employee.

Hand sanitizing

In order to implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, the City will

. Evaluate handwashing facilities.

. Determine the need for additional facilities.

. Encourage and allow time for employee handwashing.

. Provide employees with an effective hand sanitizer, and prohibit hand

sanitizers that contain methanol (i.e. methyl alcohol).

. Encourage employees to wash their hands for at least 20 seconds



Personal protective equipment (PPE)

The City will evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as
required by CCR Title 8, section 3380, and provide such PPE as needed.

Upon request, we will provide respirators for voluntary use, in compliance with
subsection 5144 (c)(2) to all employees who are working indoors or in vehicles with
more than one person. We will encourage their use and ensure employees are provided
with a respirator of the correct size.

The City provides eye protection and respiratory protection in accordance with section
5144 when employees are exposed to procedures that may aerosolize potentially
infectious material such as saliva or respiratory tract fluids.

Additional measures will be utilized as required by state and local health departments.

We will make COVID-19 testing available, during employee paid time, at no cost to
employees with COVID-19 symptoms.

INVESTIGATING AND RESPONDING TO COVID-19 CASES

In the event that employees test positive for COVID-19 or are diagnosed with COVID-19
by a health care provider, the City will instruct the employees to remain at or return to
their home or place of residence and not report to a worksite until such time as the
employees satisfy the minimum criteria to return to work. An investigation will be
conducted to determine who may have had close contact with COVID-19 case.

All employees who had potential COVID-19 close contact in our workplace will be:
* Informed of their possible exposure to COVID-19 in the workplace while
maintaining confidentiality
o Offered COVID-19 testing through their health provider or if not covered by
insurance offered testing through another provider at no cost during their working
hours
 Provided information on benefits as outlined in the Training and Instruction section

The City will protect the confidentiality of the COVID-19 cases and will not disclose to
other employees the fact that the employees tested positive for or were diagnosed with
COVID-19. The City will keep confidential all personal identifying information of COVID-
19 cases unless expressly authorized by the employees to disclose such information or
as other permitted or required under the law.

Contact Tracing

The City will utilize Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases for or similar form in
order to determine:

1. The date on which the employees tested positive, if asymptomatic, or the date on
which the employees first presented COVID-19 symptoms, if symptomatic;

6



2. The COVID-19 cases recent work history, including the day and time they were
last present at a City worksite; and ‘

3. The nature and circumstances of the COVID-19 cases’ contact with other
employees during the infectious period, including whether there were any
COVID-19 close contacts.

If the City determines that there were any COVID-19 close contacts, the City will review
and follow current CDPH guidance for quarantine and other measures to reduce
transmission.

Reporting the Potential Exposure to Other Employees

The City will comply with all reporting and recording obligations as required under the
law, including, but not limited to, reporting the COVID-19 case to the foilowing
individuals and institutions as required based on the individual circumstances: (1)
employees who were present at a worksite when the COVID-19 case was present; and
(2) subcontracted employees who were present at the worksite.

The City will provide COVID-19 testing at no cost to employees during their working
hours to all employees who had potential COVID-19 close contact at a worksite. The
City will provide these employees with information regarding COVID-19-related benefits
to which the employees may be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws.
This includes any benefits available under workers' compensation law, the federal
Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA), Labor Code sections 248.1 and
248.5, Labor Code sections 3212.86 through 3212.88, local governmental
requirements, the City’s own leave policies, and leave guaranteed by contract.

The City will continue to provide and will maintain these employees’ earnings, seniority,
and all other employee rights and benefits, including the employees’ right to their former
job status, as if the employees had not been removed from their jobs.

The City may require that these employees use employer-provided employee sick leave
benefits for this purpose and.consider benefit payments from public sources in
determining how to maintain earnings, rights and benefits, where permitted by law and
when not covered by workers’ compensation.

Investigation to Determine Whether Workplace Conditions Contributed to COVID-
19 Exposure

The City will conduct an investigation in order to determine whether any worksite
conditions could have contributed to the risk of COVID-19 exposure and what could be
done to reduce exposure to COVID-19 hazards.

SYSTEM FOR COMMUNICATING

The City’s goal is to ensure there is effective two-way communication with our
employees, in a form they can readily understand, and that it includes the following
information:



» City policy requires that employees immediately report to their manager or
supervisor or to the Department of Human Resources any of the following: (1)
the employee’s presentation of COVID-19 symptoms; (2) potential close
contact to a person with COVID-19; (3) possible COVID-19 hazards at
worksites. Any employee making such a report can do so without fear of
reprisal.

e City policy provides for an accommodation process for employees who have a
medical or other condition identified by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (“CDC”) or the employees’ health care provider as placing or
potentially placing the employees at increased risk of severe COVID-19 illness.

o To request an accommodation under the CCP policy, employees may
make a request with their manager or supervisor or the Department
of Human Resources.

o Where testing is not required, how employees can access COVID-19 testing

* In the event the City is required to provide testing because of a worksite
exposure or outbreak, the City will communicate the plan for providing testing
and inform affected employees of the reason for the testing and the possible
consequences of a positive test.

e COVID-19 testing is not required for employees for COVID-19 cases who have
returned to work and have remained free of COVID-19 symptoms, for 90 days
after the initial onset of COVID-19 symptoms or, for COVID-19 cases who
never developed symptoms, for 90 days after their first positive test.

e Information about COVID-19 hazards employees (including other employers
and individuals in contact with our workplace) may be exposed to, what is
being done to control those hazards, and our COVID-19 policies and
procedures.

TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION OF EMPLOYEES

The City will provide training and instruction that includes:

e COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19
hazards.

e Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may
be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws. This includes any
benefits available under legally mandated sick and vaccination leave, if
applicable, workers’ compensation law, local governmental requirements, our
leave policies, and leave guaranteed by contract, and Section 3205.



The fact that:

o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air.

o COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated
object and then touches their eyes, nose, or mouth.

o An infectious person may have no symptoms.

Our policy for providing respirators, and the right of employees who are not fully
vaccinated to request a respirator for voluntary use as stated in this program,
without fear of retaliation and at no cost to employees. Whenever respirators
are provided for voluntary use under this section or section 3205.1 through
3205.4, training will be provided on how to properly wear the respirator, and
how to perform a seal check according to the manufacturer’s instructions each
time a respirator is worn, and the fact that facial hair interferes with the seal.

The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet,
especially indoors, so physical distancing must be combined with other
controls, including face coverings and hand hygiene, to be effective.

The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20
seconds and using hand sanitizer when employees do not have immediate
access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand sanitizer does not
work if the hands are soiled.

Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not
respiratory protective equipment. COVID-19 is an airborne disease. N95s and
more protective respirators protect the users from airborne disease while face
coverings are intended to primarily protect people around the user.

COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and
not coming to work if the employee has COVID-19 symptoms.

Information on our COVID-19 policy, how to access COVID-19 testing and
vaccination; and the fact that vaccination is effective at preventing COVID-19,
protecting against both transmission and serious illness or death.

The conditions under which face coverings must be worn at the workplace and
that face coverings are additionally recommended outdoors for people who are
not fully vaccinated if six feet of distance cannot be maintained. Employees can
request face coverings from the employer at no cost to the employee and can
wear them at work, regardless of vaccination status, without fear of retaliation.



REPORTING, RECORDKEEPING, AND ACCESS

It is the City’s policy to:

Report information about COVID-19 cases at a City worksite to the local health
department whenever required by law, and provide any related information
requested by the local health department.

Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19
Prevention Program in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 3203(b).

Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the worksite to
employees, authorized employee representatives, and to representatives of
Cal/lOSHA immediately upon request.

Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record
of and track all COVID-19 cases. The information will be made available to
employees, authorized employee representatives, or as otherwise required by
law, with personal identifying information removed.

EXCLUSION OF COVID-19 CASES

Where we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace and employees who had a close
contact, we will limit transmission by following CDPH guidance for persons who had
close contacts and ensuring COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our
return-to-work requirements are met.

Additionally, we will continue and maintain an employee’s earnings, seniority, and all
other employee rights and benefits whenever we've demonstrated that the COVID-1 9
exposure is work related.

RETURN-TO-WORK CRITERIA

The City will ensure that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the worksite until
the individual satisfies the minimum return to work criteria as noted below or as
issued by the CDPH pursuant to the Governor's executive order, whichever is
shorter.

COVID-19 cases, regardless of vaccination status or previous infection, who
do not develop COVID-19 symptoms or whose COVID-19 symptoms are
resolving, shall not return to work until:

o At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 or higher has
resolved without the use of fever-reducing medications:

o At least five days have passed from the date that COVID-19 symptoms
began or, if the person does not develop COVID-19 symptoms, from the
date of first positive COVID-19 test;

o A negative COVID-19 test from a specimen collected on the fifth day or

10



later is obtained; or, if unable to test or the employer chooses not to require
a test, 10 days have passed from the date that COVID-19 symptoms
began or, if the person does not develop COVID-19 symptoms, from the
date of first positive COVID-19 test.

¢ Close contacts, the City will review current CDPH guidance regarding
quarantine periods and other measures to reduce transmission.

Regardless of vaccination status, previous infection, or lack of COVID-19 symptoms, a
COVID-19 case shall wear a face covering in the workplace until 10 days have passed
since the date that COVID-19 symptoms began or, if the person did not have

COVID19 symptoms, from the date of their first positive COVID-10 test.

If an order to isolate or quarantine an employee is issued by a local or state health
official, the employee will not return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is
completed or the order is lifted. If no period was specified, then the period will be 10
days from the time the order to isolate was effective.

Provision of Information Concerning Benefits to Excluded Employees

At the time of exclusion, the City will provide the excluded employees the information on
benefits to which the employees may be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local
laws.

This includes any benefits available under workers’ compensation law, the FFCRA,
Labor Code sections 248.1 and 248.5, Labor Code sections 3212.86 through 3212.88,
the City’s own leave policies, and leave guaranteed by contract.

Allowance by Cal/OSHA for an Employee to Return to Work

If there are no violations of state or local health officer orders for isolation or quarantine,
Cal/OSHA may, upon request, allow employees to return to a worksite on the basis that
the removal of employees would create undue risk to a community’s health and safety.

In such cases, the City will develop, implement, and maintain effective control
measures to prevent transmission in the workplace including providing isolation for the
employees at the worksite and, if isolation is not possible, the use of respiratory
protection in the workplace.

11



Exclusion of COVID-19 cases

The City will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees who had COVID-19 exposure
are excluded from the worksite in accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19
Cases and Return to Work Criteria requirements, and local health officer orders if
applicable.

COVID-19 investigation, review and hazard correction

In addition to the CPP Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards and
Correction of COVID-19 Hazards, the City will immediately perform a review of
potentially relevant COVID-19 policies, procedures, and controls and implement

changes as needed to prevent further spread of COVID-19.

The investigation and review will be documented and include-:

* Investigation of new or unabated COVID-19 hazards including:
- o Our leave policies and practices and whether employees are discouraged from
remaining home when sick.
Our COVID-19 testing policies.
Insufficient outdoor air.
Insufficient air filtration.
Lack of physical distancing.

O 0 0 ©

+ Updating the review:
o Every thirty days that the outbreak continues.
o In response to new information or to new or previously unrecognized COVID-19
hazards.
o When otherwise necessary.

* Implementing changes to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 based on the
investigation and review. We will consider:
o Moving indoor tasks outdoors or having them performed remotely.
Increasing outdoor air supply when work is done indoors.
Improving air filtration.
Increasing physical distancing as much as possible.
Respiratory protection.

O O O o

In buildings or structures with mechanical ventilation, we will filter recirculated air with
minimum efficiency reporting value (MERV) 13 or higher efficiency filters if compatible
with the ventilation system. If MERV-13 or higher filters are not compatible with the
ventilation system, we will use filters with the highest compatible filtering efficiency. We
will also evaluate whether portable mounted high efficiency particulate air (HEPA)
filtration units or other air cleaning systems would reduce the risk of transmission and,
if so, will implement their use to the degree feasible.

13



MULTIPLE COVID-19 INFECTIONS AND COVID-19 OUTBREAKS

If there are three or more COVID-19 cases within a 14-day period or a worksite is
identified by the local health department as the location of an outbreak, this section of
CPP will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected at that
worksite for a 14-day period.

COVID-19 testing

We will make COVID-19 testing available at no cost to all employees within the exposed
group except for employees who were not present during the period of an outbreak
identified by a local health department or the relevant 14-day period, or for COVID-19
cases who did not develop symptoms after returning to work, no testing is required for
90 days after the initial onset of COVID-19 symptoms or, for COVID-19 cases who
never developed symptoms, 90 days after the first positive test. COVID-19 testing will
be provided at no cost to employees during employees’ working hours.

COVID-19 testing consists of the following:

e Testing shall be made available to all employees in the exposed group and then
again one week later. Negative COVID-19 test results of employees with COVID-
19 exposure will not impact the duration of any quarantine period required by, or
orders issued by, the local health department.

e After the first two COVID-19 tests, we will continue to make COVID-19 testing
available once a week at no cost to all employees in the exposed group who
remain at the workplace at least once per week, or more frequently if
recommended by the local health department, until this section no longer applies,
pursuant to more protective stringent state or local health department mandates
or guidance. Any employees in the exposed group who are not wearing
respirators required by this policy and used in compliance with section 5144 shali
be separated from other persons by at least six feet, except where it can be
demonstrated that six feet of separation is not feasible, and except for
momentary exposure while persons are in movement. When it is not feasible to
maintain a distance of at least six feet, individuals shall be as far apart as
feasible.

All employees in the exposed group shall wear face coverings when indoors or when
outdoors and less than six feet from another person.

Notice shall be given to employees in the exposed group of their right to request a
respirator for voluntary use if they are not fully vaccinated.

An evaluation of the worksite will be completed to determine whether to implement
physical distancing of at least six feet between persons or, where six feet of physical
distancing is not feasible, the use of cleanable solid partitions of sufficient size to
reduce COVIN-19 transmission.

12



MAJOR COVID-19 OUTBREAKS

If there are 20 or more COVID-19 cases within a 30-day period, this section of CPP
will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected at that worksite for a
14-day period.

COVID-19 testing

In addition to outbreak testing requirements, testing will be required of all employees in
the exposed group, regardless of vaccination status twice a week, or more frequently if
recommended by the local health department. COVID-19 testing will be provided at no
cost to employees during employees’ working hours. Employees in the exposed group
shall be tested or shall be excluded and follow the return to work requirements of
subsection 3205(c)(10) starting from the date that the outbreak begins

The City will provide a respirator for voluntary use in compliance with subsection 5144
(c)(2) to employees in the exposed groups and will determine the need for a
respiratory protection program or changes to an existing respiratory protection
program under section 5144 to address COVID-19 hazards.

Any employees in the exposed group who are not wearing respirators required by this
policy and used in compliance with section 5144 shall be separated from other
persons by at least six feet, except where it can be demonstrated that six feet of
separation is not feasible, and except momentary exposure while persons are in
movement. Methods of physical distancing include: telework or other remote work
arrangements; reducing the number of persons in an area at one time, including
visitors; staggered arrival, departure, work, and break times; and adjusted work
processes or procedures, such as reducing production speed, to allow greater
distance between employees. When it is not feasible to maintain a distance of at least
six feet, individuals shall be as far apart as feasible.

The City will evaluate whether to halt some or all operations at the workplace until
COVID-19 hazards have been corrected.

Exclusion of COVID-19 cases

The City will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees with COVID-19 exposure are
excluded from the worksite in accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19
Cases and Return to Work Criteria, and any relevant local health department orders.

Investigation of workplace COVID-19 illnesses

The City will comply with the requirements of the CPP Investigating and Responding
to COVID-19 Cases.

14



Appendix A
Current CDPH Quarantine Guidance as of 5/11/22

For employees who had a close contact, employers must review CPDH guidance and
implement quarantine and other measures to prevent COVID-19 transmission in the workplace.
Please refer to table 2 and table 3 below for CDPH quarantine guidance after close contact.
Where the tables refer to action to be taken on a specified day (e.g. “day 5” or “day 10”), day 1
is the first day following the onset of symptoms or, if no symptoms develop, the day following
the first positive test.

Table 1: Exclusion Requirements for Employees Who Test Positive for COVID-19

= Employees who test positive for COVID-19 must be
Requirements apply excluded from the workplace for at least 5 days after
to all employees, regardless of start of symptoms or after date of first positive test if
vaccination status, previous no symptoms.
infection, or lack of symptoms. » Isolation can end and employees may return to

the workplace after day 5 if symptoms are not
present or are resolving, and a diagnostic
specimen” collected on day 5 or later tests
negative.

e Ifanemployee’s test on day 5 (or later) is positive,
isolation can end and the employee may return to the
workplace after day 10 if they are fever-free for 24
hours without the use of fever reducing medications.

» If'an employee is unable or choosing not to test,
isolation can end and the employee may return to the
workplace after day 10 if they are fever-free for 24
hours without the use of fever reducing medications.

o Ifan employee has a fever, isolation must continue,
and the employee may not return to work until 24
hours after the fever resolves without the use of fever
reducing medications.

» Ifan employee’s symptoms other than fever are not
resolving, they may not return to work until their
symptoms are resolving or until after day 10.

» Employees must wear face coverings around others
for a total of 10 days.

“Antigen test preferred.

15



Table 2: Employees Who Are Exposed to Someone with COVID-19 - Asymptomatic

Foremployees who are
asymptomatic.

Applies to all employees,
regardless of vaccination status.

Exposed employees must test within three to five
days after their last close contact. Persons infected
within the prior 90 days do not need to be tested
unless symptoms develop.

Employees must wear face coverings around others
for a total of 10 days after exposure

If an exposed employee develops symptoms, they
must be excluded pending the results of a test.

If an exposed employee who develops symptoms is
unable to test or choosing not to test, they must be
excluded until 10 days after the date of symptom
onset.

If an exposed employee tests positive for COVID-
19, they must follow the isolation requirements above
in Table 1.

Employees are strongly encouraged to get vaccinated
and boosted.

“Antigen test preferred.

Table 3: Employees Who Are Exposed to Someone with COVID-19 - Symptomatic

Foremployees who are
symptomatic.

Applies to all employees,
regardless of vaccination status.

L]

Symptomatic employees must be excluded and test
as soon as possible. Exclusion must continue until
test results are obtained.

If the employee is unable to test or choosing not to
test, exclusion must continue for 10 days.

If the employee tests negative and returns to work
earlier than 10 days after the close contact, the
employee must wear a face covering around others
for 10 days following the close contact.

CDPH recommends continuing exclusion and
retesting in 1-2 days if testing negative with an
antigen test, particularly if tested during the first 1-2
days of symptoms.

For symptomatic employees who have tested
positive within the previous 90 days, using an
antigen test is preferred.

16



Iltem #3F
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: EXTEND THE COVID-19 SICK-LEAVE POLICY OF UP TO
EIGHTY HOURS FOR EMPLOYEES ABSENT DUE TO
COVID-19

MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

[t is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached Resolution extending the COVID-19
sick leave program approved by the City Council by adoption of Resolution 2022-15, from
September 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023. :

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The City adopted its COVID Prevention Plan (“CPP”) January 18, 2022. It establishes safety
protocals for COVID related exposures or sickness. The CPP is recommended to be updated on
this Agenda in a separate report.

The City’s personnel policies address the definition, verification and general use of Sick Leave
consistent with the State’s Healthy Workplace, Healthy Families Act of 2014. It authorizes the
City Manager to approve and regulate the use of sick leave by City employees.

Cal OSHA in its COVID Prevention Plan describes paid sick leave for employees who are exposed
on the job. But the State laws regarding any exposure for employees expired in 2021, as did the
federal laws.

On February 15, 2022, the Council adopted Resolution 2022-15 consistent with RULE X: LEAVE
Section 2 of its Personnel Policies, and authorized the City Manager to approve the use of up to
80 hours of sick leave for COVID-related employee illnesses. In August, the City had three
employees on leave due to COVID-19. One was able to do some work from home, the two others
were unable to work from home. To date, five employees have missed work due to COVID-19,
and 166 hours have been provided to employees thanks to the current policy. Needless to say,
COVID-19 continues to threaten the population, and must be closely monitored. The policy
expires September 30, 2022.



Item #3E

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

under many different scenarios. It stipulates when and for how long quarantines have to be
observed. It defines various forms of testing, and defines “face coverings.”

Although the City is exempt from these policies, it is beneficial to have this administrative policy
to be certain that the employees follow the correct protocols, and are treated fairly. Note that the
employer is required to pay for testing and time needed to have the tests taken.

In May, CIRA provided an updated CPP. Last month, the law firm Liebert Cassidy and Whitmore
provided an cven larger, more detailed, version. It includes a telework policy as well as other
updates.

DISCUSSION:

The attached CPP is basically the updated May version from CIRA. Staff had Regional
Government Services review the two CPP’s and agreed that the more simple May policy is better
for our City.

This update provides a clear description of how the City will respond to employees reportedly in
contact with others, asymptomatic but COVID-19 positive, and when they are sick with COVID-
19. Some of these updates are now required by Cal OSHA and State Labor law and formal notices
are required if possibly more than one employee was in close contact with another that is now
testing positively. When the State of Emergency ends, the need for this policy will also end.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution and Covid Prevention Policy Updated September 20, 2022



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA EXTENDING THE
COVID-19 SICK LEAVE PROGRAM ESTABLISHED BY RESOLUTION 2022-15 AND
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE UP TO EIGHTY-HOURS OF
SICK LEAVE FOR COVID-19 RELATED ILLNESS UNTIL JUNE 30, 2023

WHEREAS, the State’s “Healthy Workplace, Healthy Families Act of 2014” generally
requires all employers to provide sick leave to their employees; and

WHEREAS, the City Personnel Policies “RULE X: LEAVE Section 2 Sick Leave”
defines in Section 2.3 when employees are eligible to use their accrued sick leave, and in Section
2.4 defines use of sick leave to care for sick family members, Section 2.5 requires the City
Manager’s authorization, and 2.7 describes how to verify the illness; and

WHEREAS, the City is fortunate that it has been able to maintain a steady work-force
despite being in the State of Emergency caused by the highly contagious virus COVID-19, and
on January 18, 2022, approved its COVID Prevention Plan, (“CPP”) in-line with Cal-OSHA
requirements; and

WHEREAS; in 2021, both the State and Federal goVernments have enacted special leave
provisions for paid sick leave when caused by COVID-19, and many of these policies have
expired; and

WHEREAS, other cities in the region have also established a special COVID-19 sick
leave program, and authorized city managers to approve up to 80-hours of paid sick leave due to
COVID 19, consistent with their CPP in an effort to promote a safe working environment and
healthy families, and these principals apply to San Juan Bautista employees as well; and

WHEREAS, on February 9, 2022, the Governor signed legislation re-establishing paid
sick leave due to COVID-19 related illness for businesses that employ more than 25-employees
between January 1, 2022 and September 30, 2022; and ‘

WHEREAS on February 15, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution 2022-15,
establishing a special COVID-19 sick-leave program, consistent with the provisions in its RULE
X: LEAVE Section 2 of its Personnel Policies, and authorize the City Manager to approve the
use of up to 80-hours of sick leave for COVID related illness that expires September 30, 2022;
and

WHEREAS, City employees continue to be exposed to others with COVID-19, contract
the virus, or have required extra leave to care for sick family members and some of these
employees do not have adequate accrued sick-leave to cover their absence; and

WHEREAS, the Council agrees to extend the COVID-19 Sick Leave policy until June
30, 2023.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA NOW HEREBY FINDS:

1. That the recitals in this Resolution and accompanying staff report are true and
correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.

2. Tt agrees that the due to the continuing fast spread of COVID 19, that a special use
of sick leave be established for up to eighty-hours of leave to be applied using the
same parameters as those defined in RULE X: LEAVE Section 2 (et, all) of the
City’s Personnel Policies.

3. Authorize the City Manager to approve the use of the COVID-19 Sick Leave for
employees up to 80-hours, between January 1, 2022, and June 30, 2023.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista at a regular
meeting held on the 20" day of September, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds. Acting Deputy City Clerk



Item #3G
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 19, 2022, at 6:00 P.M.

DRAFT MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Leslie Jordan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the
City Council Chambers at 311 2nd Street, San Juan Bautista, California. This is the first
hybrid meeting in 2022, as such, some members were in attendance at a zoom location.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Council Member Freeman led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Jordan, Vice Mayor Flores, Council Members Edge, Freels
and Freeman

Staff Present: City Manager Reynolds, General Counsel Rathie, Assistant City
Manager Foucht, City Treasurer Michelle Sabathia

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

<

Darlene Boyd spoke regarding the Planning Commissioners issues and noted her complaints.
She asked Council to appoint qualified citizens.

Andy Moore asked if anything could be done with the speed of traffic on Second Street and asked
for speed mats to be placed at the location.

Michael Ponce asked for a timeline for completing the park restrooms.

David Medeiros spoke regarding an open letter from Council to the Planning Commission. He
noted critical concerns with the letter.

At this time, Attorney Rathie reported out of Closed Session and noting that information was given,
no reportable action was taken.

3. CONSENT ITEMS

A. Approve the Affidavit of Posting Agenda

B Approve the Affidavit of Posting Public Hearing Notice

C. Approve the Minutes for the June 30, 2022 Special Meeting
D

Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Proclaiming and Reaffirming the Existence of a Local Emergency in the City

Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista Making
Findings and Determinations Under AB 361 for Continuing Virtual Meetings
and Commencing Hybrid Meetings

F. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Authorizing Closure of Streets for San Juan Days

m

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — July 19, 2022 Page 1



Item #3G
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

G.  Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Authorizing Financial Support of the San Benito County Economic
Development Corporation (SBC EDC) to Ensure Continued SBC EDC Advisory
Support and Guidance to the San Juan Bautista Economic Development
Citizens Advisory Committee

Note: This item was pulled and heard under separate action.
H. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda Beyond Title
I Approve the Minutes for the June 14, 2022 Special Meeting

Mayor Jordan requested item 3.C. be pulled for separate consideration.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments, seeing none, she closed the public comments.

i was made by Councii Member Edge o approve the Consent Calendar ltems A, B, C,
E, F, H, and I. The motion was seconded by Council Member Freels. The motion passed on
a roll call vote of 5-0.

Mayor Jordan requested the resolution title to Item 3.C. read ‘Adopt a Resolution of the City
Council of the City of San Juan Bautista Authorizing Financial Support of the San Benito County
Economic Development Corporation (SBC EDC)’.

A motion was made by Mayor Jordan to approve the resolution with the new recommended title.
The motion was seconded by Council Member Edge. The motion passed on a roll call vote of 5-
0.

4, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS

A. Proclamations for the San Benito Health Foundation for National Health
Center Week and Agricultural Worker Health Day

Mayor Jordan read the proclamation into the record.
B. Presentation by Clean California on State Hwy Beautification

A PowerPoint presentation was given regarding State Highway Beautification project.
C. City Council and Staff Announcements

Each Council Member shared updates on meetings they attended and announced upcoming
meetings and events.

A. Treasurer’s Report and Monthly Financial Statements by City Treasurer —
Sabathia

City Treasurer Michelle Sabathia provided a brief summary of the financial statements and fielded
questions from the Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments, seeing none, she closed the public comments.
B. City Manager’s Report

City Manager Reynolds gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the updates to city activities
and fielded questions from the Council.

Fire Chief Bob Martin Del Campo provided a brief update on the Fire Department.

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — July 19, 2022 Page 2



Item #3G
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

Sheriff's Deputy Ryan Miller provided a brief update on the Sheriff's Office.
Mayor Leslie called for public testimony.

Cara Vonk testified on public bathroom and electric car plug-ins.

Teresa Lavagnino testified on school playgrounds being open to the public.

C. Reports from City Council Representatives to Regional Organizations and
Committees

This item was addressed under ltem 4C.
5. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

A. Introduce an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Amending Section 3-5-155 of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code and
Increasing Water Rates

City Manager Reynolds, legal counsel Mark Mandell, and consultant from Bartle Wells &
Associates, Erik Helgeson, gave the staff report and fielded questions from the Council.

Mayor Jordan opened the public hearing for comments.

Andy Moore made comments regarding the 65% water from out of area.

Cheri Foletta asked if city has resolved issues with Earthbound Farm/T aylor Farms.

Michael Ponce asked if SJB permits well 6 with nitrate problem be resolved.

Seeing no one else come forward, Mayor Jordan closed the public comment and public hearing.
Legal counsel Mark Mandell announced this was the last opportunity to file a protest.

Attorney Rathie counted the protests and announced there were five, which did not constitute a
majority.

It was noted that this item would be brought back for first reading at the August meeting, with
second reading at the September meeting, and will become effective 30 days after the September
meeting.

B. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Levying the Annual Special Tax for Community Facilities District No. 2018-01
for Fiscal Year 2022/23

City Manager Reynolds provided the staff report and fielded questions from the Council.
Mayor Jordan called for public comments, seeing none, she closed the public comments.

A motion was made by Council Member Flores to approve the resolution levying the Annual
Special Tax for Community Facilities District No. 2018-01 for Fiscal Year 2022-23. The motion
was seconded by Council Member Freeman. The motion passed on a roll call vote of 5-0.

6. ACTION ITEMS

A. Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate for the League of California Cities
Annual Conference & Expo September 7-9, 2022

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — July 19, 2022 Page 3



Item #3G
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

A motion was made by Council Member Edge to designate the Voting Delegate as Mayor Jordan
and Alternate as Vice Mayor Flores for the League of California Cities Annual Conference. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Freels. The motion passed on a roll call vote of 5-0.

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Recology Rate Increase

Celina Stotler of the San Benito County Integrated Waste Management Agency and Mike Kelly of
Recology presented a brief report on wasle rate increases.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments, seeing none, she closed public comments.
B. Fireworks

City Manager Reynolds presented the staff report.

Mayor Jordan asked for public comments.

Tyler Jordan read part of the resolution and asked for clarification, he also noted the city had less
security than the year before. Cara Vonk noted if only two citations were given and the city spent
$8,000, she felt it was a waste of city funds.

C. Path Forward for the City’s Sphere of Influence
Assistant City Manager Brian Foucht presented the staff report.
Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

EJ Sabathia testified there was confusion at the public meetings regarding the map and stated
there was good information sharing from staff. Cara Vonk stated the plan should be community
driven and suggested reviving the Ad Hoc Committee to let the community members decide the
direction of planning. Jackie Morris-Lopez stated she felt this should be community driven.

D. Update on Process for Filling Vacant Seat on Planning Commission
City Manager Reynold noted there had been one citizen interested.
Mayor Jordan called for public comments.
Jackie Morris-Lopez spoke to issues with absences on the Commission.
Tony Correia stated he submitted his application. Staff noted their receipt of the application.

E. General and Municipal Election Update

City Manager Reynolds provided an update on the number of open seats, ballot measures, and
candidate filing deadlines.

8. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Jordan adjourned the meeting at 10:06 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Don Reynolds, City Manager/Acting City Clerk

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — July 19, 2022 Page 4



City of San Juan Bautista Item #3H
The “City of History”
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES

THURSDAY ~ AUGUST 9, 2022

1. Call to Order
Mayor Jordan called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m.

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Edge

Roll Call
Present: Mayor Jordan, Council Member Freeman and Council Member Edge
Absent:  Vice Mayor Flores and Council Member Freels

2. Public Comment
Mayor Jordan announced that public comments will be at the time the item comes up
for discussion.

3. Action Items
A. Approve Affidavit of Posting Agenda.

Motion by Council Member Freeman, seconded by Council Member Edge to
Approve the Affidavit of Posting Agenda.

Motion passes by roll call vote, 3-0-0-2 with Council Members Flores and
Freels absent.

B. Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
Amending Resolution 2022-55 to Set Forth the Manner of Their Election and
the Term of Office for Persons Elected to the City Council, to the Office of
Clerk, and to the Office of City Treasurer at the November 8, 2022, General
Municipal Election

City Attorney Rathie noted the following correction: in the draft resolution as
presented, Section 4 incorrectly stated the Office of City Clerk and Section 5
incorrectly stated the Office of City Treasurer. Section 4 correctly stated is office
of City Treasurer and Section 5 correctly stated is Office of City Clerk.

Mayor Jordan asked for public comments, seeing none, she closed the public
comments. '

Motion by Council Member Freeman, seconded by Council Member Edge to
adopt Resolution 2022-62 Amending Resolution 2022-55 to Set Forth the
Manner of Their Election and the Term of Office for Persons Elected to the
City Council, to the Office of Clerk, and to the Office of City Treasurer at the
November 8, 2022, General Municipal Election, to include the following



amendments: Section 4 correctly stated is Office of City Treasurer and
Section 5 correctly stated is Office of City Clerk. Motion passes by roll call
vote, 3-0-0-2 with Council Members Flores and Freels absent.

C. Request the Mayor to draft arguments for the appointment of City Clerk and
City Treasurer for the ballot before the August 12, 2022 deadline

Mayor Jordan asked for public comments. Jackie Morris-Lopez spoke in support.
Motion by Council Member Edge, seconded by Council Member Freeman to
adopt Resolution 2022-63 requesting the Mayor to draft arguments for the
appointment of City Clerk and City Treasurer for the ballot before the
August 12, 2022 deadline.

Motion passes by roli cali vote, 3-0-0-2 with Council Members Flores and
Freels absent.

4. Adjournment

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 12:23 p.m.

Respectfully submitted
Melissa Lee, Deputy City Clerk



Iltem #3I
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AUGUST 16, 2022, at 6:00 P.M.
DRAFT MINUTES
1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Leslie Jordan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Council Member Flores led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Jordan, Vice Mayor Flores, Council Members Freels and
Freeman
Absent: Council Member Edge

Staff Present: City Manager Reynolds, General Counsel Rathie, Assistant City
Manager Foucht, City Treasurer Michelle Sabathia, Deputy City
Clerk Lee

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

Steve Harris spoke about the local food pantry and the community need.

David Medeiros commented on the open letter received by the Planning Commission.
Emily Gottlieb commented on the need to reduce carbon emissions.

Wanda Guibert commented on general matters and concerns facing the community.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

3. CONSENT
A. Approve Affidavit of Posting Agenda
B. Approve the Minutes for the July 19, 2022, Regular Meeting
C. Adopt Resolution 2022-64 of the City Council of the City of San Juan
Bautista Proclaiming and Reaffirming the Existence of a Local Emergency
in the City
D. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda Beyond

Mayor Jordan called for public comments, seeing none, she closed the public comments.
A motion was made by Council Member Flores to approve the Consent Calendar in its
entirety. The motion was seconded by Council Member Freeman. The motion passed on a
rolt call vote of 4 Yes/O No/1 Absent (Edge).

4, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS
A. City Council and Staff Announcements

Council Members shared announced upcoming meetings and events.

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — August 16, 2022 Page 1



Item #3I1
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022
B. Reports from City Council Representatives to Regional Organizations and
Committees
Council Members shared updates on meetings they attended.

C. Treasurer’s Report and Monthly Financial Statements by City Treasurer
Michelle Sabathia

City Treasurer Sabathia provided a brief summary of the staff report and fielded questions from
the Council.

D. City Manager’s Report
A. Fire Department Update

Fire Chief Bob Martin Del Campo reported on general fire matters accompanied by a
PowerPoint presentation and fielded questions from the Council.
Mayor Jordan called for public comments.
Jackie Morris-Lopez spoke on matters concerning fire safety.
Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.
B. Sheriff Department Update
County Sherriff's Office Deputy Ryan Miller reported on general police matters concerning the
community and surrounding areas.

Mayor Jordan called for public comment. Seeing no comment, she closed the public
comments.

City Manager Reynolds presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation
and fielded questions by the Council.

Discussion ensued amongst the Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comment.

Steve Harris testified on the need for speed humps/bumps and traffic mediation.

Michael Ponce testified on traffic mediation and speed humps and bumps.

David Medeiros spoke of concerns regarding traffic signs.

Jackie Morris-Lopez spoke con concerns regarding development.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

5. ACTION ITEMS
A. Appointment of Tony Correia to the Planning Commission

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

Jackie Morris-Lopez spoke on the matter of the appointment process.

David Medeiros spoke on the matter of the appointment process.

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — August 16, 2022 Page 2



Item #3I
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022
Tony Correia thanked the Council for their consideration and looks forward to serving the
community.
Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

A motion was made by Council Member Flores to appoint Toney Correia to the Planning
Commission. The motion was seconded by Council Member Freels. The motion passed on a
roll call vote of 4 Yes/O No/1 Absent (Edge).

B. Approve a Resolution adopting Community Plan Guiding Principles

Assistant City Manager Foucht presented the staff report and fielded questions from the
Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.
Deputy Clerk Lee read a public comment from Cara Vonk into the record.

Michael Groves, Wanda Guibert, Jackie Morris-Lopez, Danny Joe, and David Medeiros all
presented concerns regarding the Community Plan Guiding Principles.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

A motion was made by Council Member Flores to postpone this item to the September 20,
2022, City Council meeting. The motion was seconded by Council Member Freels. The motion
passed on a roll call vote of 4 Yes/O No/1 Absent (Edge).

C. Establishing a Public Safety Standing Committee

City Manager Reynolds presented the staff report and fielded questions from the Council.
Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

Jackie Morris-Lopez and David Medeiros spoke in favor of the Committee and the community
need.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

A motion was made by Council Member Freels to adopt a resolution establishing a Public
Safety Standing Committee. The motion was seconded by Council Member Freeman. The
motion passed on a roll call vote of 4 Yes/0 No/1 Absent (Edge).

D. Consider requesting the Board of Supervisor’s approval on 2 positions:
1. A new Sheriff Deputy position

City Manager Reynolds presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation
and fielded questions by the Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.
Michael Ponce spoke on the matter of additional public safety help in the community.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — August 16, 2022 Page 3



Item #31
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

A motion was made by Council Member Freels to adopt a resolution requesting the Board of
Supervisor's approval on a new Sheriff Deputy position. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Freeman. The motion passed on a roll call vote of 4 Yes/0 No/1 Absent (Edge).

2. A New Sheriff Multifunctional Services Officer (“MS0O”)
No action was taken.

E. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending section 3-5-155 of the
San Juan Bautista Municlpal Code and increasing water rates

City Manager Reynolds provided the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation
and fielded questions from the Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comments.

Michael Ponce spoke on the process and increase in water rates.

Jackie Morris-Lopez expressed concern of the process for the increase in the water rates.
Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

A motion was made by Council Member Freeman to approve an ordinance amending the
Municipal Code Section 3-5-155 and increasing water rates. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Freels. The motion passed on a roll call vote of 4 Yes/0 No/1 Absent (Edge).

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. General and Municipal Election Update

City Manager Reynolds provided an update on the number of candidates filed, ballot
measures, and filing deadlines.

B. Open Recruitment for Planning Commission

City Manager Reynolds reported the filing deadline is Tuesday, September 19 at 5:00 p.m.
C. Microvi System Permitting Report

Ned Samhouri provided the staff report and fielded questions from the Council.

Mayor Jordan called for public comment.

Michael Ponce provided general comments regarding the system.

Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.
D. 2022 Pavement Management Program Project, San Juan Bautista

City Manager Reynolds and Ned Samhouri presented the staff report and fielded questions
from the Council.

Mayor Jordan asked for public comments.

Michael Ponce provided comments and concerns regarding the Program and the impact to
the community.

Jackie Morris-Lopez provided comments and concerns regarding the Program and the impact
to the community.
Seeing no other comments, Mayor Jordan closed the public comments.

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — August 16, 2022 Page 4



Item #31
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022
7. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Jordan adjourned the meeting at 9:41 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Don Reynolds, City Manager/Acting City Clerk

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes — August 16, 2022 Page 5



Item #3J
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

WAIVER OF READING
OF ORDINANCES

State law requires that an ordinance be read in its entirety prior to adoption unless
the City Council waives reading beyond the title. Reading an entire ordinance at
the meeting is extremely time-consuming; reading of the title alone usually gives
the audience sufficient understanding of what the Council is considering.

To ensure that this waiver is consistently approved by the Council, Council should
make the waiver at each meeting, thus, you should do it at this point on the
Consent Agenda. The Council then does not have to worry about making this
motion when each ordinance comes up on the agenda.

GC36934



Item #3K
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

RESOLUTION 2022-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA,
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, PROCLAIMING AND REAFFIRMING
THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code Section 5-33-040 empowers the City
Council to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when said City is
affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity and the City Council is not in session, subject
to ratification by the City Council within seven days; and

WHEREAS, the San Juan Bautista City Council has been requested by the Director of
Emergency Services (City Manager) of the City of San Juan Bautista to proclaim and reaffirm the
existence of a local emergency therein; and

WHEREAS, conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property
have arisen within the City caused by a pandemic commencing on or about 8:00 a.m. on the 13t
day of March, 2020, at which time the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista was not in
session; and

WHEREAS, said City Council does hereby find that the aforesaid conditions of extreme
peril did warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED that a local emergency now exists
throughout the City of San Juan Bautista on the 13" day of March, 2020; and

IT IS FURTHER PROCLAIMED, REAFFIRMED AND ORDERED that during the
existence of said local emergency, organization of this City shall be prescribed by law, by
Ordinances and Resolutions of the City, and approved by the City Council; and

IT IS FURTHER PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that said local emergency shall be
deemed to continue to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the City Council of the City of
San Juan Bautista, State of California.

Dated this 20™ day of September 2022 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, Acting Deputy City Clerk



Item #4A

SAN BENITO COUNTY CONSERVATION PLAN

Arielle Goodspeed, County of San Benito

September 12, 2022

Natural Community
Conservation Plans
(NCCPs)

California Fish and Game Code Chapter 10,
Sections 2800-2835




9/15/2022

NCCP Purpose

* Avoid uncoordinated project-by-
project permitting and mitigation

* Plan for conservation over a large
region

Results in...

* Conservation of species and
natural communities in a large and
interconnected reserve system

* Streamlined species permitting for
compatible development projects

Badgeris a covered

NCCP Key Feaiures | I speciesin only 2

approved NCCPs

® Ecosystem approach

* Take of listed (CESA), non-listed,
and Fully Protected Species

* Independent scientific input

Public participation throughout
process

* "Rough proportionality” of
impacts to conservation

Provides assurances

Bhoto by CORM




9/15/2022

NCCP/HCP Process Flowchart and Normative Timelines*

Oistrilante Public Roview 15, Obtihs Lazal Gavamiment

. B SONIEIL Tt prondent Sciontifh !
1, Decacde s Lndenake Pl POUEIL Inrdagsan dent SELNM 1
kgt Danf Dodunuents sgipraval

Lt DRI WikBe Apency

& Gathes Pralinsnary v LOntifale and Adseds RAseline 12 Nty Triliess) 5 NCCP i
: Appeoval and Fermms

mleantion Data

13, Hevise Bosed Upion

b Prepare and S Mancisg
Fublic Comments

Apyesril

a, Notify Tribes in HECE Aresn . Coniict Technicat Review of s Prepiare findl P

it P Chspters Docegmnts

Ackeriiviistatiae (nals

Sy fiiset Prepuace
Draft

Early Planning Pian Drafts Public Review Process end Approvels and Permits
Finel Documents

Ventura
Fish & Wildlife
Office

San BenitoCounty
Conservation Plan

“
US. Fish and Wildlife Service’s
Role-and Participation




9/15/2022

San Benito County Conservation Plan

The San Benito County Conservation
Plan (SBCCP) is a comprehensive
strategy to ensure the long-term

conservation of federally listed
species and their habitats, while
working more efficiently and
effectively with San Benito County
Resource Management Agency to
issue needed permits pursuant to the
federal Endangered Species Act.

San Benito County Conservation Plan (SBCCP)

The SBCCP wiill:
* Protect listed species and their habitats

+ Standardize conservation measures

* Ensure compliance with the Endangered Species Act
» Streamline permitting procedures

* Reduce regulatory timelines and costs

The SBCCP willnot:
* Approve/deny projects
* Replace or change the County’s permitting/planning
process
« Add/Reduce permitting requirements
Weaken existing protections for listed species




9/15/2022

Leverage federal funding "

: - 1 sl
Support ()[;)porturlnrlesfor‘%
conservation

Grants

Conservation Banks
Open space protection

Recreational
opportunities

Reduce costs
Save time

Provide clarity

Fis Ielife
Office

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

* Circulated with meeting agenda and to be available on SBCCP
website

* “Living document”

* Two parts

* General Habitat Conservation Plan/Natural Community Conservation Plan
(HCP/NCCP) FAQs
*  SBCCP-specific FAQs

S




9/15/2022

Purpose of
SBCCP -
Reminder

San Benito County is
developing the SBCCP to
protect and preserve its rich
natural resources, including
sensitive species and
habitats, while supporting
the County’s agricultural
economy and future growth.

Objectives of SBCCP - Reminder

« Develop and implement a regional approach to habitat conservation

* Collaborative partnerships with landowners, Tribes, conservation
organizations and others to protect and enhance County habitats and
working lands

* Provide a programmatic process for the mitigation of impacts

* Authorize the use of Incidental Take Permits for development and other
projects that potentially affect sensitive species and their habltats

* Provide local control to the County to implement a streamlined
endangered species permitting process for activities to be described in

the SBCCP 0




ﬁ

SBCCP Development Roles

County - responsible for development of the SBCCP and submission

of the SBCCP (HCP/NCCP) and Incidental Take Permit applications to:

USFWS and CDFW - the federal and state wildlife agencies
responsible for reviewing and approving the SBCCP and Incidental
Take Permit applications

Planning Team — County, USFWS, CDFW, consultant (ICF). Provides
direction, guidance, and assistance in developing the SBCCP

Public Advisory Committee (PAC)- a forum for broad community

participation; provides feedback to Planning Team on SBCCP O

*

Role of Public Advisory Committee

Overarching goal: help inform the development of a quality SBCCP
that meets San Benito County’s biological conservation goals while
supporting planned development with a streamlined endangered
species permitting process, and that reflects the broadest possible
set of community interests and concerns.

PAC’s function: serve as a sounding board with the specific charge
to review, consider, and comment upon the components that make
up the SBCCP document as they are developed and as presented to
the PAC for review.

S —

9/15/2022




9/15/2022

h
Role of Public Advisory Committee

* Platform to discuss and inform development of the SBCCP.

* Participation on PAC at discretion of the County to ensure balanced and
broad representation of diverse constituency.

* PAC members participate collaboratively and respectfully and shall strive

* PAC operates by consensus. When consensus cannot be reached, the
various positions will be reported to County staff and will be taken under
consideration by the Planning Team.

* PAC meetings open to the public to attend and provide comment. O

Public Advisory Committee Responsibilities

* Review and provide feedback on SBCCP draft material (e.g., memos, draft
chapters).

* Seek to understand the issues presented and perspectives and interests
of other PAC members and their constituencies.

* Inform, educate, and involve their constituencies on a regular basis,
including providing notification of upcoming PAC meetings and
information on how to attend such meetings.

* Synthesize inpul [rom their constituencies and effectively represent their
viewpoints, interests, and concerns.

*  Work cooperatively with other PAC members.
* Commit to attending PAC meetings until completion of the Plan. 0




9/15/2022

ﬁ

Project Updates

° Information and data gathering. =
Examples

* Jurisdiction boundaries
* Existing protected areas
* Parks

* Publiclands

*  Community study areas
* Zoning designations

* Soils

* Mapping vegetation

r———

Next Steps

* Planning Agreement will be available for public review (~Sept.-Oct.
2022)

*  Meeting will be noticed

*  Planning Agreement will be available on SBCCP website:
https://www.cosb.us/departments resource-management-
agency/planning-and-land-use-division/san-benito-countv~conservation-

plan-shccp
* Q4 Public Advisory Meeting on Wednesday November 30, 4:00 pm

* For more information, please contact Arielle Goodspeed, Principal
Planner, County of San Benito Resource Management Agency

*  Agoodspeed@cosb.us O




9/15/2022

e

THANK YOU

¢ Questions or Comments

10



Item #4C
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

Treasurer’s Report
For the One Month Period Ended July 31, 2022
(8% of fiscal year)
General Fund ~

General revenues are running at 18% for the year to date. Correspondingly, general fund
expenditures are at 11% for the year to date. The net effect is a positive change in general fund
balance of $233k. Of this positive change in fund balance $251k is from the second payment of
the American Recovery funds.

Water Enterprise Fund ~

The water enterprise fund revenues are running at 9% for the year to date, and expenses are at
9%. The net effect is a positive change in the water enterprise fund of $31k.

Sewer Enterprise Fund ~

The sewer enterprise fund revenues are running at 11% for the year to date, and expenses are at
7%. The net effect is a positive change in the sewer enterprise fund of $67k.



City of San Juan Bautista ity Councn Meeting

Expenditures ~ Budget Vs. Actual September 20, 2022
For the Month Period Ended July 31, 2022
EXPENDITURES FY22 FY23 Annual YTD
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Variance 8% Note
General Fund 215,455 272,444 2425349  (2,152,905) 11%
Special Revenue Funds:
Capital Projects Fund 16,385 118,700 525,708 (407,008) 23% A
Community Development 42,061 41,769 671,289 (629,520) 6%
COPS 8,333 8,333 100,000 (91,667) 8%
Parking & Restroom Fd 2,410 - 2,500 (2,500) 0% A
Gas Tax Fund 1,228 1,325 19,000 (17,675) 7%
Valle Vista LLD 1,850 3,737 26,529 (22,792) 14% B
Rancho Vista CFD 2,118 3,765 66,521 (62,756) 6%
Copperleaf CFD 913 2,266 22,650 (20,384) 10%
Development Impact Fee Funds
Public/Civic Facility 225 225 2,700 (2,475) 8% A
Library 370 370 4,440 4,070) 8% A
Storm Drain 286 286 3,432 (3,146) 8% A
‘Park In-Lieu 25 25 300 (275) 8% A
Public Safety 71 71 852 (781) 8% A
Traffic 36 36 432 (396) 8% A
Enterprise Funds:
Water:
Operations 68,775 75,296 805,232 729,936 9%
Capital 8,136 4,359 79,350 74,991 5% A
Sewer
Operations 67,256 65,633 923,911 858,278 7%
Capital 7,359 21,275 484,352 463,077 4%
TOTAL Funds 277,351 347,471 6,164,547 5,817,076 6%
Footnotes:

A ~ Capital fund transfers/costs are budgeted to be incurred by these funds. Since the costs/transfers occur
sporadically during the year, they do not always align with the to date percentages, or prior year amounts.
Additionally, some projects have been moved to the next fiscal year.

B ~ Cost are greater than budget due to one time maintenance, paid through assessment reserves.

9/12/2022



City of San Juan Bautista
Revenues ~ Budget Vs. Actual
For the One Month Period Ended July 31, 2022

REVENUES FY22 FY23 Annaal YTD
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Difference 8%
General Fund 221,705 505,439 2,737,935 (2,232,496) 18%
Special Revenue Funds:
Capital Projects Fund 16,385 118,700 525,701 (407,001) 23%
Community Development 21,033 8,123 404,514 (396,391) 2%
COPS 20,577 8,333 100,000 91,667) 8%
Parking & Restroom Fd 963 4,120 26,000 (21,880) 16%
Gas Tax Fund 6,529 8,163 98,520 (90,357) &%
Valle Vista LLD 1,759 2,211 26,529 (24,318) 8%
Rancho Vista CFD 5,377 5,543 66,521 (60,978) 8%
Coppericai CTD 1,746 1,888 22,656 ZON;SEl 1B
Internal Service Funds:
Blg Rehab. & Replace 3,167 3,167 38,000 (34,833) &%
Vehicle Replacement 5,000 5,000 60,000 (55,000) 8%
Enterprise Funds:
Water
Operations 104,919 105,886 1,213,800 (1,107914) 9%
Capital - - 79,350 (79,350) 0%
Sewer
Cperations 110,594 132,549 1,185,000 (1,052,451) 11%
Capital - - 484,352 (484,352) 0%
TOTAL Funds 298,049 403,682 7,068,872 6,665,190 6%

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

Notes

= Ne!

A ~ Current year revenue was higher due to a $251k grant from Federal government for COVID relief from the

American Revovery funds.
B ~ These funds are developer derived and are recognized when received.

C ~ The timing of the projects and the related revenue does not always align with the year-to-date percentages.



City of San Juan Bautista

Warrant Listing
As of August 31, 2022
Date Num Name Amount
101.000 - Union Bank
101.001 - Operating Acct. 1948

08/04/2022 215886 Kysment Security & Patrol Inc -9,330.00

08/04/2022 215887 4Leaf, Inc. -10,475.09

08/04/2022 215888 Amaya's Locating Services -3,000.00

08/04/2022 215889 Animal Damage Management Inc -1,575.00

08/04/2022 215890 Brigantino Irrigation, Inc. -158.75

08/04/2022 215891 CIRA - California Intergovernmental Risk -39.90

08/04/2022 215892 Clark Pest Control -102.00

08/04/2022 215893 Cypress Water Services -11,175.00

08/04/2022 215894 KBA Docusys -917.70

08/04/2022 215895 Kysment Security & Patrol Inc -13,283.00
08/04/2022 215896 Landscape Design By Rosemary Bridwell CCN -250.00
08/04/2022 215897 Mc Kinnon Lumber Co., Inc. -79.39
08/04/2022 215898 , Monterey Bay Analytical Services -2,034.90
08/04/2022 215899 Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. -1,315.00
08/04/2022 215900 Pinnacle Healthcare Medical Group -200.00
08/04/2022 215901 Ricardo Bautista. -58.56
08/04/2022 215902 San Benito County Sheriff -33,497.23
08/04/2022 215903 Sheehy Strategy Group -488.00
08/04/2022 215904 Smith & Enright Landscaping -2,392.00
08/04/2022 215905 Sound Design A/V Contractors -5,775.04
08/04/2022 215906 True Value Hardware -303.46
08/04/2022 215907 Wallace Group -3,820.75
08/04/2022 215908 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA ' -4,001.25
08/05/2022 215909 Stiles Truck Body & Equipment, Inc -20,486.65
08/05/2022 215910 All Clear Water Services -4,100.00
08/05/2022 215911 Code Publishing Company -243.00
08/05/2022 215912 Department of Transportation -453.07
08/05/2022 215913 Design Line & Granger -311.36
08/05/2022 215914 Lautzenhiser's Stationery, Inc. -303.54
08/05/2022 215915 Monterey Bay Air Resources Dist. -1,046.50
08/11/2022 215916 4Leaf, Inc. -2,331.94
08/11/2022 215917 Charter Communications -572.13
08/11/2022 215918 Data Ticket Inc. -200.00
08/11/2022 215919 Department of Conservation -118.50
08/11/2022 215920 El Teatro Campesino. -2,100.00
08/11/2022 215921 Harris & Associates -2,150.00
08/11/2022 215922 Joaquin Bautista -700.00
08/11/2022 215923 Jose Fletes. -230.00
08/11/2022 215924 Mary V. Edge -139.21
08/11/2022 215925 Patricia Paetz -288.19
08/11/2022 215926 Pet Waste Co -246.33
08/11/2022 215927 Platt -2,478.87

08/11/2022 215928 Sergio Torres. -625.00



City of San Juan Bautista

Warrant Listing
As of August 31, 2022

Date Num Name Amount
08/11/2022 215929 US Bank -1,195.25
08/11/2022 215930 US Bank -2,600.68
08/11/2022 215931 SJB Business Association Inc -2,500.00
08/16/2022 215932 Monterey Bay Analytical Services -209.00
08/16/2022 215933 Wellington & Rathie -9,896.00
08/16/2022 216034 att.com -62.08
08/16/2022 216935 AVAYA -250.66
08/16/2022 215936 Carlos Flgueroa. -87.38
08/16/2022 215937 CCMF Gity Management Foundation -400.00
08/16/2022 215938 Design Line & Granger -434.82
08/16/2022 215939 EMGC Planning Group Inc. -44,052.17
08/16/2022 215840 Hotiister Auiv Parls, inc -36.65
08/16/2022 215941 Monterey Bay Analytical Services -3,372.30
08/16/2022 215042 Oppenheimer Investigations Group LLP -4,945,50
08/16/2022 215943 PG&E -17,448.78
08/16/2022 215944 Postmaster -1,000.00
08/16/2022 215945 Rx-Tek -40.00
08/16/2022 215946 Stantec Consulting Services Inc -7,586.83
08/16/2022 215947 Tham Nguyen. -230.00
08/16/2022 215948 Toro Petroleum Corp. -575.10
08/16/2022 215949 Univar Solutions -956.79
08/16/2022 215950 Valero Wex Bank -1,264.85
08/16/2022 215951 ACWA Health Benefits Authority -34,801.83
08/26/2022 215952 4l eaf, Inc. -11,372.00
08/26/2022 215953 AFLAC -210.58
08/26/2022 215954 Aida Lona. -700.00
08/26/2022 215955 Areli Martinez. -700.00
08/26/2022 215956 at&t -101.85
08/26/2022 215957 CALNET -294.59
08/26/2022 215958 CMAP -80.00
08/26/2022 215959 CSG Consultants, Inc -79,137.50
08/26/2622 215960 Dale Coke, -500.00
08/26/2022 215961 Data Ticket Inc. -200.00
08/26/2022 215962 Downey Brand -1,763.00
08/26/2022 215963 Kent L. Seavey -500.00
08/26/2022 215964 Mandell Municipal Counseling -986.00
08/26/2022 215965 Michelle Sabathia. -100.00
08/26/2022 215966 Monterey Bay Analytical Services -704.90
08/26/2022 215967 Patricia Smith 0.00
08/26/2022 215968 Ready Refresh -137.80
08/26/2022 215969 Regional Government Services -5,086.74
08/26/2022 215970 Robert Vasquez -1,200.00
08/26/2022 216971 rrm design group -187.50
08/26/2022 215972 San Benito County Assessor -13.1
08/26/2022 215973 San Benito County Business Council -500.00



City of San Juan Bautista

Warrant Listing
As of August 31, 2022

Date Num Name Amount
08/26/2022 215974 Sound Design A/V Contractors -1.949.10
08/26/2022 215975 Sprint -445.60
08/26/2022 215976 State Compensation Insurance Fund -5,338.75
08/26/2022 215977 Trenton Reynolds. -56.59
08/26/2022 215978 United Site Services of California, Inc. -737.30
08/26/2022 215979 US Bank Equipment Finance -249.61
08/31/2022 215980 CSG Consultants, Inc. -46,285.00
08/31/2022 215981 Hamner Jewell Associates -2,453.00
08/31/2022 215982 Home Depot Credit Services -1,302.14
08/31/2022 215983 Iconix Waterworks (US) inc. -337.20
08/31/2022 215984 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. -1,050.00
08/31/2022 215985 ‘Melissa Lee -43.66
08/31/2022 215986 New SV Media -6,084.30
08/31/2022 215987 PG&E -1,166.08
08/31/2022 215988 Patricia Smith -500.00
08/31/2022 215989 Rossi's Tire & Auto Service -30.00
08/31/2022 215990 Smith & Enright Landscaping -3,927.12
08/31/2022 215991 Sound Design A/V Contractors -900.11
08/31/2022 215992 Stantec Consulting Services Inc. -9,073.50
08/31/2022 215993 Staples -283.56
08/31/2022 215994 True Value Hardware -76.65
08/31/2022 215995 Univar Solutions -532.06

Total 101.001 - Operating Acct. 1948 -464,639.88
Total 101.000 + Union Bank -464,639.88

TOTAL -464,639.88




Item #4D

City Manager Monthly Status Report

County Board of Supervisors approves vape and Tabaco sales ban
County Public Health — and Code Enforcement working together — 4 retail establishments in SJB

Monthly Sheriff Meeting 9/7/22
Dedicated Deputy working Monday-Thursday until November
Reviewed City staff towing abilities; MSO
Access to CLETS and NET-COM (911)
License Plate Reader cameras
LIDAR Training for traffic enforcement

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Emergency Response Management Training
Attended the regional OES Training at the County 8.17.22
New Regional Hazard Plan- Staff training w/County OES (9.13-9.22)
Fire Advisory Committee
Monthly meeting 8.18.2022 slides shared with City Council
Approved the Feasibility Study proposal
City Resolution 2016-46 (OK on District formation?)
New Fire Inspector BC Bettencourt




9/15/2022

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Developers-
Loayza- no security deposited for public improvements yet
Orchards Development- scheduling PC/Informal Project Review
Historic Building compiiance- one red-tag, Casa Rosa update
Sign Ordinance enforcement on this agenda

Planning Commission meeting — ADUs and Rozas House

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Re-opened Deputy Clerk Recruitment
HR on this Agenda-

Telework Policy

COVID Sick Leave program extension

COVID Prevention Plan (“CPP”) Update

Retained Liebert, Cassidy and Whitmore for Workers Compensation
Future HR

Administrative Leave differential pay

Bi-Lingual Certification/pay




9/15/2022

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Public Works
City Engineer RFQs due 9.27.22
Pavement Management Bid Award Status
Initiated traffic study/commercial trucks for San Juan highway
& round-about
Accessibility Study made part of the Active Transportation Plan
A City-wide ADA/Accessibility Study
Initiated the Community Center Acoustics Project
Completing the Joint Use School Fencing project (week of 9.12)
Franklin Park and Verruti Park 10.15 completion goal

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Water
Received SBCWD draft Agreements
1) Capital Improvements
2) Buy-in to Regional Water Program
HDR submits proposal to complete design/sharing CEQA work
Signed Change Order w/HDR for Microvi/Well 6 Permitting
Met with Water Board to discuss permitting
Requested schedule update




9/15/2022

City Manager Monthly Status Report

Wastewater
EPA Approves Schedule extension for 6-months (due 7.1.24)
Design at 100% completed
Expedited Permitting Request approved by USFWS
Support from USDA
Bio-Report completed in 30-days (not 130 days)
Submitted Completed USDA Funding Application
Completed USDA Underwriting last week
State Revolving Loan Fund-
on the list but not funded (update in October)
Spoke on behalf of the City at 9.8.22 Water Board meeting




Item #5A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

Wi S D il
Abatiided LPs

AGENDA TITLE: Community Plan — Sphere of Influence Study
Guiding Principles

MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

SUBMITTED BY: Brian Foucht, Community Development Director

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the City Council consider the following alternatives

1) Adopt a resolution establishing Guiding Principles to be used to inform preparation of
the Community Plan authorized by the City Council via Resolution 2022-13. Or

2) Direct staff to take the steps necessary to complete the Community Plan Scope of Work
authorized via City Council Resolution 2022-13 without Guiding Principles;

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The City Council approved a two-tiered concept for Sphere of Influence/ Urban Growth
Boundary as the starting point for a community conversation and eventual adoption of a
Community Plan (City Council Resolution 2022-13).

A public engagement program was conducted in accordance with the adopted Community plan
Scope of Work involving subject-oriented groups, a community meeting in a charrette format,
and a joint City Council - Planning Commission meeting on June 13, 2022. A series of maps will
be prepared, using information from public engagement showing
residential/commercial/preservation area alternatives for prospective Sphere of Influence and
Planning Area boundaries. The overarching concern expressed during these sessions was the
effect of new development on community character.

Staff published a memo to the City Council {July 22, 2022) recommending that the City Council
may consider Guiding Principles for the Community Plan that would affirmatively address these
concerns. Such Guidelines referenced in the attached resolution are based upon community
engagement, the City of San Juan Bautista Design Guidelines, the Historic San Juan Bautista
Plan, and the General Plan Elements Framework. If adopted, the Community Plan will continue
in accordance with the approved scope of work, and these principles will be used as a general
framework for evaluating the plan.



Item #5A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022
An alternative, the Community Plan program will continue in accordance with the scope of
work without guiding principles.
Attachments:

1. Resolution



RESOLUTION 2022-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SAN JUAN BAUTISTA ESTABLISHING GUIDING PRINCIPLES
FOR THE COMMUNITY PLAN AUTHORIZED BY CITY
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2022-13

WHEREAS, following adoption of the 2035 General Plan in 2016 a Sphere of Influence
coordinated with General Plan growth assumptions was not established. Accordingly, the City
Council established the Urban Growth Boundary Committee (UGBC) to recommend a preferred
Urban Growth Boundary/Sphere of Influence configuration as a means of initiating the Sphere of
Influence discussion with San Benito County and LAFCO; and

WHEREAS, On February 15, 2022 the City Council approved Resolution 2022-13
authorizing preparation of a Community Plan program to amend the General Plan as necessary to
prepare a specific plan for South San Juan Bautista and to adopt a Sphere of Influence/potential
Urban Growth Boundary for presentation to the County of San Benito and approval by LAFCO;
and

WHEREAS the Community Plan program has conducted a community engagement effort
May 3 -5, 2022 and a joint City Council / Planning Commission meeting on June 13, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is aware that there are concerns in the community regarding
the effect of the Community Plan on community character extending from implementation of
goals, policies and standards developed through the Community Plan program; and

WHEREAS the City Council desires to set forth a definitive basis, or principles, upon
which the Plan will be prepared that are derived from the General Plan, Historic San Juan Bautista
Plan, Design Guidelines and public input; and

WHEREAS, the City Council intends that these principles will be adhered to by staff and
consultants authorized to prepare the Community Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that the Planning Commission will consider
and recommend adoption of a Community Plan based on these guiding principles and, in so doing,
will evaluate and interpret the application of guidelines for the purpose of preparing the
Commission’s recommendation to the City Council;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the City Council direct that the principles
contained in the attached Exhibit A shall be Community Plan Guiding Principles upon which the
Community Plan will be prepared, reviewed, recommended for adoption and adopted;

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the City Council directs the Planning Commission to
review and consider Guiding Principles contained in Exhibit A as the Commission undertakes



review of alternatives, preferred and preliminary plans, diagrams, and narrative for
recommendation to the City Council for adoption.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted by the City Council of the City of San
Juan Bautista at its regular meeting held on the 20" day of September 2022, by the following vote:
AYES: |
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Mayor Leslie Jordan
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, Acting Deputy City Clerk



EXHIBIT A
GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA COMMUNITY PLAN
August 16, 2022

1. The Community Plan shall evolve concepts such Sphere of Influence, Urban Growth
Boundary, Planning Area and Municipal Service Area and configure corresponding areas
in a manner that preserves, protects and enhances San Juan Bautista’s unique and special
character in the region. The Community Plan shall contain provisions to extend,
concentrate and further this unique character so that it can continue to serve as the City's
strength.

2. The Community Plan shall accomplish overall preservation, conservation and
development policies, guidelines, standards and implementation programs consistent
with the General Plan.

3. The Community Plan shall develop guidelines and measures designed to accomplish
protection, preservation and enhancement of the essential, historical character of San
Juan Bautista. To achieve this, the Community Plan shall develop overall guidelines that
will apply to all areas and also guidelines that will apply to four (4) discrete community
design subareas surrounding the City on the North, South, East and West. Community
plan overall and subarea provisions shall address:

e agriculture preservation;

® visual resource protection;

e natural resource conservation;

® archaeological zone conservation

® acommitment to interconnectivity with the fabric of historic San Juan Bautista;
historical, institutional and cultural resource relationships;

interconnected mobility;

cultural and historical resource enhancement; and

balanced and integrated open space, cultural, recreational, entertainment, hospitality,
industrial, recreational and residential development in the overall context of
conservation, preservation and enhancement of the character of the community.

4. The Community Plan shall take into account and utilize natural and cultural features and
resources including watersheds, habitats, faults, farmland, recognized archaeological
zones, groves, outcroppings and topography to configure areas for preservation,
conservation, and development within areas of the City’s Sphere of Influence and
Planning Area.

5. San Juan Bautista does not sprawl. Compatibility between existing and newly developing
areas shall be fostered by requirements in the Community Plan that new development be
logical and reasonably contiguous with existing developed areas.



10.

11.

12

Community Plan design principles and standards shall emphasize compatibility between
existing patterns and forms of land use. The Community plan shall emphasize that
compatible, contiguous development will not involve a repetition of neighborhood
designs that are inconsistent with existing or proposed new guidelines.

The Community Plan shall build upon the Historic San Juan Bautista Plan, Design
Guidelines and General Plan Elements Framework, and relevant Municipal Code
provisions, including but not limited to, development in relation to natural landscapes
and historic preservation to establish new design principles and guidelines, thereby
ensuring consistency with existing design principles and standards.

The Community Plan shall incorporate and refer to design principles, measures and
methods to preserve, conserve, protect and enhance visual and physical access to iconic
natural resource and open space areas at the landscape level.

The Community Plan shall incorporate concepts to guide preservation, conservation, and
development in new growth areas, including:

a) Gateways

b) Edges

¢) Neighborhood patterns and design

d) Complete neighborhoods and streets

¢) Shared parking

f) Housing choice

g) Architecture that celebrates local history, climate, ecology, and building practice

The Community Plan shall reference required guidelines and standards that are not
addressed, or not sufficiently emphasized, in existing guidelines to ensure the character
of the community is enhanced and strengthened via newly developed areas. Such
references shall include required standards and measures that will foster creative place-
making and shared, common civic and community values and experiences.

The Community Plan shall reference policies, design guidelines and programs to reduce
unnecessary automobile trips, ease the traffic flow, reduce household transportation
costs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and free up parking supply to serve those coming
to work, shop, worship and play in San Juan Bautista.

. The Community Plan shall incorporate provisions for a healthy, varied balance of modes

that emphasize active transportation (bicycling and walking) for trips within incorporated
areas of San Juan Bautista. The Community Plan will evolve principles to ensure that every
resident within the city, now and in the future, should be able to access the shops
downtown comfortably by foot in less than fifteen minutes.



Item #5B
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

Action Item Regarding A Resolution Approving The First Amendment
To The Reimbursement Agreement For Construction Of A Right Turn Lane
On State Route 156 At Its Intersection With The Alameda

This item has been continued to a future meeting.



Item #5C
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: TELEWORKING POLICY AND PROCEDURE
MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached Resolution adding Section 20
“Telework Policy and Procedures” to Rule II of the City’s Personnel Policies.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The City’s Personnel Policies adopted by Resolution 2018-26 do not include a telework policy.
Telework practices have been expanding rapidly as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic. A large
portion of public sector employees is now teleworking. According to the 2020 federal Telework
Enhancement Act of 2010, the definition of “Telework:”

. The two attached articles from
(7 "Telework’ or ‘teleworking’ refers to a CivicWell (formally known as the

work flexibility arrangement under which ~ ocal Government Commission, the

. not-for-profit organization workin
an employee performs the duties and with gle Cityg on  the Activi

responsibilities of such employee's Transportation Plan), and from “Virtual
position, and other authorized activities, ~ Vocations” describe the fast growing
from an approved worksite other than Telework  trends —and  benefits.

Governments around the country are
moving from temporary telework
assignments to becoming a regular part
of the duties.

the location from which the employee
would otherwise work.”

The International City Manager’s Association (ICMA) tried to help smaller cities adopt these
telework policies, and found that many small cities already had the tools: policies, an upgraded
network, and the equipment and software licenses in place to facilitate the transition. These
adjustments were made in San Juan Bautista in the summer of 2020. The City Manager began
working from the home office 3-days a week in the summer of 2020. Currently the City Manager



Item #5C

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

and Assistant City Manager will work from home to accommodate personal appointments and

other logistical issues, maximizing the use of time away from the office by working from home.

The benefits of teleworking are wide and far reaching to employers especially those in rural areas
where close proximity to the workplace and affordable housing options may conflict. The attached
articles describe obvious benefits to communities (reduced traffic, air pollution, etc.) when
commuters are taken off the road. Human Resource Departments support the policy because it
helps retain skilled workers longer, by being flexible and able to accommodate unique personal
situations. Productivity is often 35-40% higher, and 70% of federal teleworkers state they are 70%
more productive. Teleworkers are often more committed to the agency’s mission, more motivated

to meet expectations, and have more trust in their colleagues. It becomes a low-cost recruiting
incentive,

DISCUSSION:

The attached Resolution includes a draft telework policy, and administrative process. Starting
with the definition provided above, the draft policy clearly describes what positions are eligible
for routine telework, and situational telework (not otherwise previously approved, for cases that
may include doctor’s appointments, sick family members, and the like).

It is essential that all “departments” be fully staffed during business hours. Telework is not an
employee right, and those that take advantage of it will adhere to strict rules and guidelines.

Employee job duties and a demonstrated ability to meet expectations both on the job and while
teleworking is essential. The employee must be self-motivated, and be highly dependable. The
telework cannot reduce services to the public or the City.

The guidelines in the Policy address wages and benefits, that remain unchanged. Work hours,
overtime, and vacation time earned shall all conform to the City’s Policies. Just as when not
teleworking, flexible hours can be approved by the supervisor or City Manager City equipment
that may include a city-issued laptop computer can only be used for City business. Lastly, the
employee will request a teleworking schedule, subject to acknowledgement of this Policy, and
mutually agreed upon between the City Manager (or supervisor) before initiating routine telework.

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Resolution and Draft Telework Policy
2) Two articles describing the benefits of telework



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA AMENDING “RULE II” BY ADDING “SECTION 20” TO ITS
PERSONNEL POLICIES: “TELEWORKING POLICY AND PROCEDURE”

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution 2018-26 on June 19, 2018, and
established formal Personnel Policies for City staff: and

WHEREAS, these comprehensive policies guide the City through the legally
complicated framework of State and Federal fair labor practices, recruitment, and staff
expectations; and

WHEREAS, telework has evolved in the office work-environment to become an integral
part of assisting staff adjust their personal obligations with professional priorities and work more
efficiently either from home or from the office, reduces the cost of traveling as well as the air-
quality impact, as dictated by a formal policy that sets forth guidelines and an agreement to be
followed between employer and employee; and

WHEREAS, “Telework” is defined by the Telework Enhancement Act of 2010,
“telework™ or “teleworking” refers to a work flexibility arrangement under which an employee
performs the duties and responsibilities of such employee’s position and other authorized
activities from an approved worksite other than the location from which the employee would
otherwise work; and

WHEREAS, over the past two years, certain fulltime regular administrative staff
members learned to work from home during the height of the pandemic, and currently do
telework on occasion, and to better accommodate personal appointments into the work schedule
and while quarantined but asymptomatic from COVID-1 9; and

WHEREAS, attached is a complete telework policy and procedures that sets forth those
positions eligible to telework, defines telecommuting, specifies the conditions for which
telecommuting may be approved by the City Manager after receiving an application to work
from home; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered and concluded from staff’s report that the
benefits of telework outweigh negative consequences; and

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees that the proposed addition of this telework policy
and procedure as a new Section 20 to Rule IT of the Personnel Policies will be of benefit to the
City and its employees in allowing more flexibility to the work schedule and reduce reliance on
vehicles to transport employees that may be as or more productive working from home.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA NOW HEREBY FINDS:

1. That the recitals in this Resolution and accompanying staff report are true and
correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.

2. Tt agrees to add the attached Telework Policy and Procedures as “Section 20” to
Rule IT in the Personnel Policies is of benefit to the City and its employees.

3. Approves the attached Policy addition to the Personnel Policies, and ado pts and
incorporates it into a new amended Personnel Policies.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista at a regular
meeling held on the 20" day of September 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Leslie Q. Jordan, Mayor
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, Acting Deputy City Clerk

Attachment: Telecommute Policy and Procedures



Policy: Teleworking Policy and Procedure
Rule II, Section 20 of the Personnel Policies
Date Adopted:

Definition

“Telework” is defined by the Telework Enhancement Act of 2010. “Telework” or “teleworking”
refers to a work flexibility arrangement under which an employee performs the duties and
responsibilities of such employee’s position and other authorized activities from an approved
worksite other than the location from which the employee would otherwise work.”

Purpose
The teleworking schedule allows full time regular employees and supervisors (as defined in

Sections 23 and 36 of its Personnel Policies), to mutually agree upon a varied distribution of their
normal work hours. It does not change the number of hours worked, but simply allows everyone
the flexibility to rearrange their work schedule to better meet their personal needs while
considering the needs of the office.

Policy
The City of San Juan Bautista provides a teleworking program as an alternative to the traditional
work location. The program is designed to achieve increased productivity and effective use of staff

work time, promote efficient use of resources, and assist in reducing traffic and air quality hazards.

Telework refers to a work flexibility arrangement under which an employee performs the duties
and responsibilities of the employee's position, and other authorized activities, from an approved
worksite other than the location from which the employee would otherwise work.

There are three types of telework.

1. Routine telework in which telework occurs as part of an ongoing, regular schedule. A
regular schedule must be established prior to the start of the work arrangement and must
be mutually agreed to by the employee and the supervisor.

2. Situational telework that is approved by the employees Manager on a case-by-case basis,
where the hours worked were NOT part of a previously approved, ongoing, and regular
telework schedule. Situational telework should be used seldomly for cases of doctors’
appointments, road hazards, inclement weather, sick family members, or emergencies.
Situational telework may also be occasionally used to promote staff and resource
efficiency, particularly for offsite meetings or appointments where telework would increase
staff efficiency. Situational telework is allowed at a maximum of five (5) days a month
unless an emergency arises or in cases of a medical nature.

Situational telework of a medical nature requires written documentation approving the
telework arrangement provided by a licensed medical provider. Circumstances would
include convalescence from injury or illness; while a family member is recovering from
and needs at home assistance; or during the last few weeks of pregnancy, and/or following
the birth of a child.

3. Management telework in which management employees notify their staff that they are
‘working off site for the day(s).

]



Applicability
It is essential that each department be staffed during normal business hours Monday through Friday
(except during the noon hour for lunch).

The selected employees must have job duties appropriate for teleworking. Certain positions may
be ineligible for participation due to business necessities. The City holds the final determination
of an employee’s position being appropriate for teleworking and if the employee meets the
eligibility standards.

Teleworking is not an employee right but may be offered by the City based upon business needs.
If at any time the City determines the work schedulcs and/or workweek periods offered must be
changed, affected employees will be notified of the change at least one pay period in advance of
the change.

Teleworking Eligibility
Eligibility to participate in the teleworking program is always subject to the needs of the City and
may be modified as needs dictate.

This policy applies to selected employees who meet specific work standards and the employees’
job duties are appropriate for teleworking. Meeting one or more of the eligibility requirements
does not guarantee approval of teleworking. The City has final determination of an employee’s
position as appropriate for teleworking and if the employee meets the specific work standards.
Minimum work standard eligibility requirements include, but are not limited to:

1. Regular status full time employees who have worked at the City for at least one (1) year;

Prior annual job performance evaluation and/or job performance that meets or exceeds

standards across all listed performance measures and demonstrates employee ability to

work independently;

The employee is self-motivated and demonstrates high dependability;

4. Job duties and requirements allow the employee to be away from the City’s worksite for a
period during the work week;

5. Teleworking does not impede other employees or work groups from performing their job
duties, impact the City’s business needs, or diminish the operations of the City;

6. Teleworking does not reduce service to internal or external customers ;and

7. The supervisor can manage the employee remotely.

W

Participation Guidelines

1.Employee Wages and Benefits
The duties, obligations, responsibilities, and conditions of City employee are not changed by
teleworking. Employee’s wage, retirement, benefits, and insurance coverage remain
unchanged.

The teleworking employee remains obligated to comply with all City rules, policies,
practices, and instructions. Violations may result in preclusion from teleworking and/or
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. The City’s Workers
Compensation liability for job-related accidents will continue to apply during the employee’s
telecommuting work hours.



Work hours, overtime compensation, and vacation schedule will conform to City policies
and practices, Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), and to any other terms agreed upon by the
employee’s supervisor, except that, those terms may not violate the laws/provisions stated
above. Hours of work can be arranged flexibly with the supervisor.

Employees will work at a designated location during hours agreed upon. Arrangements for
flexible work schedules are subject to the supervisor’s approval.

2.Performance Expectations
Expectations must be pre-established between telecommuters and supervisors regarding
work assignment(s), productivity level, and productivity measurements to be used when
employee is teleworking. Timeliness, quality, and quantity of work must be maintained.

Attendance and punctuality that observes scheduled hours on a regular basis is an essential
function of each classification and must be maintained during teleworking, unless otherwise
approved in advance.

The employee agrees not to engage in employment activities other than City assignments
during teleworking hours.

3.Equipment
City provided equipment is not an entitlement for teleworkers. The City may provide
equipment but is not obligated to do so. Office supplies needed by the teleworker will be
provided by the City. All requests must be pre-approved by the responsible supervisor. The °
City retains ownership of all equipment and/or licenses provided.

Use of City equipment and supplies is limited to authorized persons for purposes relating to
City business. The employee is responsible for ensuring that equipment is used properly.
The City will provide for maintenance and repairs to City equipment.

When using their own equipment for teleworking, the employee is responsible for
maintenance and repair of equipment.

The City is not responsible for the payment of utilities (heat, electricity, etc.) or home
maintenance costs. Telephone charges related to City business will be paid by the City.

In the event of delay in repair or replacement of equipment or any other circumstance under
which it would be ineffective for the employee to telework, the employee will return to the
City workplace.

4.Remote Work Location
The employee must designate a workspace at home or another location that is maintained in
a safe condition, free from hazards. The teleworker will be responsible for completing a
workspace safety review. Any accident must be brought to the immediate attention of the
supervisor.

As part of teleworking responsibilities, the teleworker must ensure that safety and ergonomic
standards are met in their workspace. Although the workspace does not have to be a separate
room, it must have adequate lighting, ventilation, and furniture that is ergonomically
comfortable and safe to use.



Teleworkers must have a method for expediently receiving and responding to
communications (phone calls, messages, mail, etc.) from other staff, supervisors, and when
applicable, clients and/or the public. Communication method(s) will be incorporated into
the written agreement between the supervisor and the employee.

The teleworker remains solely liable for injuries to third persons and/or members of
employee’s family on employee’s premises. The City is not liable for damage to the
employee’s real property.

Teleworkers will take all reasonable precautions necessary to secure City information and
equipment in their workspacc and prevent unauthorized access (o any City system or
information. Data and information used by teleworkers must be treated with the same
caution and respect that confidential material is given in the office. In some cases,
teleworkers will need to take a few added precautions.

Request for a Telecommuting Schedule

Employees who would like Routine and/or Situational Telework must submit a Telework Request
form to their immediate supervisor for approval. The employee’s Manager and the City Manager
must approve a request for a telework schedule. This request form will be held in the employees
personnel file and will cover all future teleworking.

Employees who anticipate using Situational Teleworking, in addition to the (one time) request
form, need to send an email request to their Manager for every situational teleworking occurrence.
Management must reply by email with their approval or denial before staff can telecommute that

day(s).

All telework (whether routine, situational, or management) must be added to the employee’s
shared Outlook 365 calendar before the work-week has begun. Employees who do not have access
to their work Calendars email the Deputy City Clerk and ask to be added.



Telework Request Form

A telework schedule will be considered for full-time employees of the City of San Juan Bautista.
Management reserves the right to establish work schedules based upon City business necessity and
to approve, deny, modify, or terminate a teleworking work schedule, at any time. Employees are
required to complete this form to request a telework schedule and must be approved by the
employee’s Manager and the City Manager.

Requested Telework Schedule

Day requested: [ ] Monday [ ] Tuesday [ ] Wednesday [ | Thursday [ ] Friday
[ Weekly [ Bi-Weekly [ ] Situationally as needed

Telework schedule become effective the first day of the pay period beginning:

Acknowledgement: 1 agree to work the approved telework schedule and will be available to work
these hours unless otherwise approved in advance by my manager(s). I agree to maintain a safe
and secure workspace, protect City information/date and equipment, if provided. I understand this
teleworking work schedule may change due to unforeseen circumstances. I acknowledge that this
request form will be placed in my personnel file.

Employee Signature

Employee’s Name (Please print) Date

Approve Telework Schedule

[ ] Approved [ ] Disapproved

Manager’s Signature Date

[ ] Approved [ ] Disapproved

City Manager’s Signature Date



News & Media

Benefits of Maintaining Telework Policies

Livable Places Update Article

Amid nationwide shelter-in-place orders during the pandemic, businesses and organizations have significantly changed their opera-
tions, including implementing telework policies at an unprecedented scale. Adoption of telework measures have shown to have eco-

nomic, equity and environmental benefits for organizations, employees and local governments.

A recent survey by Global Workplace Analytics found 77% of office-based workers are now working from home five doys a week, com-
pared to only 9% before the start of the pandemic. Nearly 75 million U.S. employees (56% of the workforce) couid work from heme, up

frorn 5 million (3.6%) who worked from home at least half-time in 2018.

Along with this economic shift, increased telework has also been instrumental in the fight against climate change. Although not all
VMTs avoided during this period are directly tied to telecommuting policies, researchers at the UC [1avis Road Ecology Center
found that, after Colifornia's statewide stay-at-horme order in March and mid-April, total vehicle miles traveled fell by 75%, with a cor-

responding drop in pollution levels.

.Dgngm‘) Menu

e~

CiVICWELL

1/5



Good for Business

Telework can boost productivity, improve performance and reduce absenleeism. Teleworkers ate an average of 35-40% mQre produc-

Live than ‘lh,ei!ijiﬁua,mumgtports_g(u‘l,h_c.wg_ma,.o‘m':sz,gi,qu_gu_tn_ul_i,ru';_rm.x_e-.-; of ot least 8.4%. With stronger autonomy via location inde-

LI T

pendence workers produce results with 40% Fewer quality defects. Becquse workers are more engaged, obsentacism is also down 41%,

More than one-half of employees (54%) say they would change jobs for one that offered them more flexibility, which results in an aver-

age of 12% turnover reduction after a remote work agreement is offered

"Many workers view telecomemyting os g job perk. with more than half seeking the arrangement as a way ta improve work-life bot-
ance. People cheose to work remotely to avoid daily commutes, reduce workplace distractions and fulfill family-care responsibilities,”

Laurel Farrer writes in Forbes.

"Employers can hire geographically distributed talent and reduce overhead expenses, while emnployees can gain flexibility, save time,

and reduce transportation and some child-care costs,” according to the American Psychological Association.

Telework cun uiso heip the bottom line. Global Workplace Analytics estimates that organizations save on avergge of $11,000 per year

per part-tirne tefecommute, or 21% higher profi ibility as a result of sovings in real estate, absenteeism, turnover and increased pro-

ductivity. Telecommuting con help reduce the capital drain of awning or leasing o building, while also saving on parking-lot leases, furni-
ture, supplies, maintenance, security, janitorial, insurance, taxes, common area and other related costs as well as reduce compliance

costs.

Benefits for Employees

Telework is a win-win for businesses and their employees Due to reduced cost for travel, parking and food, employees could expect to
200 and $4,000 g year by teleworking at least half the time. Some insurance companies also offer special telecom-

[T

g as.muniias 15%, reports Matthew Sims in Qutainsurange.arg

save between $2

muter rakes sovi

Workers save time as well as money By reducing their commute driving by 75%. the hal

work days per year

By significantly reducing driving time, teleworkers are also less at-risk of being in a traffic accident and have less exposure to harmful

poliutants, pathogens and stress that could lead to a multitude of related ilinesses.

Telework can also help achieve socidl-equity goals.If jobs are less dependent on location, a greater diversity of individuals could have ac-
cess to job opportunities, bolstering a more equitable distribution of wealth, according to Global Workplace Analytics. Telework jobs

alsa offer hetter employment options torvrul warkers (in locotions with access to broadband connactivity)

Embedding Telework in Everyday Operations

Brooklngs Institute research shows that one step to reduce congestion, deliver o safer and greener transportation system, and still
bring the ecanemy back to fullcapacity is dermand manoaermnent, allowing employess to work from hame rrore off en, and with more
flexible work schedules where possible. The ress rchars also recommend implementing VMT fees to account far the losses in gas-tax
revenves (from less driving), promoting public transit, and redesigning streets for mare sustainable uses like walking and biking to pra-

mote active transportation and dissuade citizens from using their cars as their primary means of tronsportation.

Economists recommend directing past-recovery spending on embeddil iy climate positive behaviors, by supporting teleworking, high-

speed broadband connectivity and residential energy efficiency

"The COVID-19 crisis has encouraged a rapid shift to digital and remote working practices in many countries (WHO, 2020) and reduced
aviation (UNICAQ, 2020) and car transportation (IMF, 2020b)," said Nobel loureate Joseph Stiglitz.

"If leaders take the right steps - encouraging telework, altering revenue structures, and retrofitting roadways — the nation can emerge
from the COVID-19 pandemic with o stronger and safer transportation outlook. [t's now up to society to remake itself in the image it

wants,” concluded Brookings Ingtitute esearchers. "Employers will need to rethink their telecornmuting practices, government officials

will need to accelergte adoption of new revenue sources, and entire communities must be willing to redesign their roacds for areener and

OCIVICWELL (Denate)  Menu

2/5



Governmeint Support ta Advance Telework

Telework policies con help fuifill range of local-government goals, from infrastructure and climate-change impacts to improved health

cutcomes. Decentralized lubor and reduced commutes associated with telework reduces strain on public infrastrygture. Between
Decamber 1, 2019, and March 31, 2020, there was A 30-60% drop in VMT in Los Angeles and Ventura caunties, acrording to Institute of
Iransportation Engineers dato.

U.N. data shows there has also been 0 5.5t0 5,7 Fall in CO?2 emissians due to the pandemic. Continuing VMT-reducing telework policies
vl alea halp maintaie the cedurtions in GG amissiony || rioma 0 gGee on gt oo L AR '

We would prevent almost 95,000 traffic-related injuries and deaths, and save more than $1 billion a year in related costs by shifting

the 50 million Americans with compatible jobs and a desire to.wark from home ut Irast part of the time to half-time telework.

A number of states and cities have recognized the benefits of telecommuting and have provided assistance for private-sector initio-

tives that benefit both employers and employees.

In Virginia, businesses that promote telecommuting can get up to $50,000 in tax credits for spending at most $1,200 in telework ex-

penses for each emplovee. Meanwhile in Washington, &,

for each remote employee who telecommutes ot least 12 days per manth, with a maximum credit of $10,000 per year. v

Geargio's Cammuyters Choice tax benefits program offers financial incentives to both employers and employees for using alternative

commute modes, such as carpooling, cleaner transportation vehicles or teleworking. The state also hosts an annual Georgia Telework

Week, which includes cash prizes and financial incentives to promote telecommuting and other sustainable commute options.

Some policymakers are betting on programs that tap digital technoiogies to entice.skilled warkers to relocate. In 2018, the Governor of
Vermont enacted the Remnte Workers Grant to attract full-time remote warkers to the State by offering o varlety of incentives, in-
cluding up to $10,000 in relocation expenses, In Oklohoma,- the George Kaiser Family Foundation paying telecommuters $10,000 to
relocate to Tuisa, Qklahomao, in addition to providing a housing stipend and coworking membership.

Making It Worle for Everybody

Given the.severe aconomic hardship and budget constraints facing government, businesses and families across the nation, we need cre-
ative solutions to bring back jobs in ways that support our equally urgent social-equity and climate-resilience imperatives. Advancing
telework policies and incentives can increase employee satisfaction and productivity, reduce costs for employers and local govern-
ments, and offer a myriad of socigl equity, public health, air quality and climate benefits — a rare win-win-win strategy that we've al-

ready proved capable of advancing

(=) eviewew | (posate ) Meny

3/5



* JProven Benefits of Remote Work for ~ompanies

® Telecommuting Stqtistics

* Coaronavirus hus shown us g world without traffic, Can we. systainit?
¢ Cylifornia Remote Work Resources

* Remote Work States: 7 Logations That Incentivize Te lecommuyting

® Qne way to help restourants in the future? Go alf resco by opening rouds and lats to diners

* How Smaller Cities ore Tiying_to Plug America’s Brain Drgin

Share This News 0 O ‘D 0

Subscribe to Our Newsletter

Sign up for CivicWell news to get updates about policy, events, funding cpportunities, and more

Subscribe

Related News

View All >

Curbing Posy-Pandermnie TraFfic

Articie

Al

Pandemic Recovary ‘

Buildina Broadband Access for Stronger Communities

Q CIVICWELL (Dongte}]  Menu

4/5



iv Vittalveealon:,

Search How It Career Career Register or Past a Q
Jobs Works Center Services Login Job

REMOTE EMPLOYER RESOURCES

TELEWORK

& Skye Rodgers ©®' November18, 2020 @ 9 minutes read

# Home - Remote Employer Resources - Telework Benefits: What Government Employers Need ta Know

Telework Benefits: What Government Employers Need to Know

nn

Telework programs at the federal, state, and local levels are expanding rapidly due to the COVID pandemic. While these programs had
been slowly increasing over the pastdecade, efforts were stalled at the federal level until this spring. Due to stay at home orders issued
last March, a large portion of public sector employees is now teleworking So, what has this year taught us about telework programs?
What do public sector employers need to know maving forward? Here's what government employers need to know about the future of
telework and telework benefits.

Definition of Telework

According to the Telework Enhancement Act of 2010:

[ “Telework’ or teleworking’ refers to a
work flexibility arrangement under which
an employee performs the duties and
responsibilities of such employee’s
position, and other authorized activities,
from an approved worksite other than
the location from which the employee
would otherwise work.”

This legislation was specifically geared toward federal

employees and agencies However, many state and local governments also use telework to refer to employees working from alternative
worksites during regular hours The private sector has taken up slightly different terminology to mean the same, including
“telecommuting” and “Aexible workplace.”

Federal Telework Programs and Legislation
Q Need Help?
Before COVID

1/7



The federal government has offered programs and legislation encouraging telecommuting since the 1990s However, the Telework
Enhancement Act of 2010 was the first comprehensive legislation to require telework policies. The act directs all federal agencies to
identify employees eligible to telework and offer them opportunities to participate. The goal of the legislation was to contribute to
Continuity of Operations (COOP) plans and improve responsiveness during crisis events. The intent was to help agencies achieve
recruitment goals, retention targets, and enhance the work-life balance of federal employees.

In practice, the program has experienced some success According to the 2019 Telework Report to Congress, prior to the pandemic, the
numher of elinible emplovene was 005887 ar ahaut 4o of goverrmert zeopl Nt [ 183237 Me i 1

Bilewnrhsrurib oy S8 RS OF Lot b Ivonisfarse,

Unfortunately, the congressional report also indicated a stagnant growth rate over the previous three years. This is primarily due to the
reliance of telework policies on the attitudes of supervisors and agency management. Indeed, several large agencies including the
Social Security Administration and Department of Education recently attempted to reduce or eliminate programs However, the roll-

backs didn't result in productivity or accountability increases

After COVID
The COVID pandemic changed the rules of the game, sending most federal employees into telework status almost overnight. More than
Wter arniing 75% remain in teinwore etatie acenrding to a sireecbrethe Cavzrrneznt Do G [ 10 O T O
O e e L A R A ST F R

Leadership has been spotty during this effort with most agencies implementing or expanding their telework programs with little
direction. Initial guidance was delivered March 15, 2020 via memorandum to department and agency heads. The memo requested that
employers allow eligible employees to maximize their telewark flexibility and telework-enable as many employees as possible

Lawmakers are lending support to strengthen and continue telework policies with two pieces of bipartisan legislation These are the
Emergency Telework Act of 2020 (8.3561) and the Pandemic Federal Telework Act (S. 4518). The goal of the legislation is to allow
eligible federal employees to telework until the COVID national emergency ends

State & Local Government Programs
Before COVID

In response to the 2010 federal legislation, most states introduced their own telework-friendly policies While the uptake rate varies,
almost all have provisions to support telework that predate the current pandemic [n addition, many cities and counties also created
simifar policies Policies at the state and local level can also include private sector incentives to encourage telework for non-government
employees

The goals of these programs usually include same goals as the federal policies For example, continuity of operations, ability to altract
top talent, and improving work-life balance for employees. However, there are additional goals for telewarking at the state and local
level. These can include reducing stress on aging infrastructure, traffic congestion, and pollution levels caused by commuting Also,
telework is being explored as an effort to maintain population levels where there is a lack of jobs for young, educated professionals.

After COVID

Beginning with New Jersey and North Carolina in early March, state governinents around the country maoverd ernployees to telework
status. In addition, organizations like the International City/County Management Association sought to assist smaller governments in
implementing effective telework policies and pracedures. Fortunately, many governments were ahead of the game One example is
Fresno, California. The city government already had policies, an upgraded network, and the equipment and software licenses in place to
facilitate the transition

Benefits of Telework

The COVID pandemic is a trial-by-fire to find if current
telewark policies are adequate and the o%lggaikle bauai 1
Q Need Help?

setting and data collection The goals set by each

are proven true. The challenge in quanif;
benefits within the federal government is

207



- department are different, supported by various strategies,
\ and may or may not include a way to track success
-~ However, below are the maost commonly reported benefits
of telework along with a brief summary of any current

yeye research
Emergency Preparedness Telework Benefits

Front and center right now is the continuity of operations
(COOP) aspect of telework programs A main reason the
federal telework legislation passed was to ensure the

4 4 government maintains operations in the event of a crisis.
- Atthat time, legislative bodies felt that telework was a key

1 component of any disaster planning strategy.

Judging by anecdotal evidence to date, this strateqgy is working well In fact, some federal depariments successfully responded to vastly
increased demand during the pandemic. For example, the Small Business Adiministration hired and onboarded thousands of new virtual
employees to manage pandemic loan programs. In addition, the Social Services Administration reduced its backlog of pending cases by
11% after only three months of teleworking

Productivity Telework Benefits

Anincrease in productivity is the most often-cited of telework benefits. However, many are skeptical at best Critics of telework feel that
unless a manager is present to supervise, the employee will not work as hard As mentioned earlier, department heads of agencies that
scaled back on telework said they did so primarily to increase productivity

However, in-house research prior to the pandemic called that rationale into question In addition, private sector research repeatedly finds
a boost in productivity from work from home employees. This includes studies that find teleworkers are an average of 35-40% more
productive than their office counterparts.

.

Early indications from the federal government are that despite the rushed transition, there is no loss of productivity This is backed up by
a survey of federal workers by Eagle Hill Consulting in July Results revealed that 70% of federal employees say they are actually more
productive while telewarking during the COVID pandemic

Cost Savings Telework Benefits

Telework programs are frequently touted as money-savers due 1o reduced overhead According to calculations in the Federal Times, if
all 900,000 eligible employees telecommuted half-time, office space could be reduced by 25% The overall estimated savings is $1.75
billion in real estate and $11 billion in total costs.

Tracking actual cost savings in the federal government is uneven and ad hoc. But according to the 2019 Telework Report to Congress,
54% of agencies indicated their telework program achieved cost savings The highest reported savings were in transit/commuting
costs {18%), rent/office space (13%), and reduced absences (10%) Examples include:

v The General Services Administration saving $24.6 million
v The Patent and Trademark Office saving $49.8 million

Telework Benefits for Human Resources

The perks realized by teleworking employees result in benefits for the entirety of the organization when it comes to employee hiring and
performance. A 2018 stidy by the Ferdorl Nffiee of Personeel Mzragzm o tOPMY 10 | ) g | li | I

TR B 4l
Specific results included

' 78% of teleworkers were satisfied with their jab compared with 68% of non-teleworkers
v 76% of teleworkers received high performance on their evaluations compared to 72% of their office-bound colleagues
v 68% indicated an intent to stay at their current position compared to 62% of non-participants

Q Need Help?

3/7



The jury is still out regarding any benefits for human resources during the COVID pandemic. However, the results of reducing the
telework program by the Department of Education are clear. Most employees reported decreases in productivity and requirements to
use mare sick and annual leave In addition, 87% of respondents reported decreased morale and B6% knew someone who had or was
considering leaving the department In addition, most supervisors also did not see any positive impact from the program’s reduction
either

Telework Benefits for the Community

One of the most impactful byproducts of telework programs are those that benefit the community at large These benefits are especially
Important to meet the goals of state and local governments Expectations are thal increases in telework will:

+ Reduce the strain on infrastructure
+ Lawer pollutions levels
v Improve public health outcomes

Clearly, there has been a reduction in commuter traffic due to COVID restrictions While country-wide data is not currently available, Los
Angeles and Ventura Counties reported a 30% to 40% drop in vehicle miles travelled (VMT) between December 1, 2019, and March 31,
2020, according to Institute of Transportation Engineers data

The impact of the GOVID-induced shift to telework on air pollution is indisputable Cities across the country and around the

world reported drastic decreases in cornmaon chemicals associated with vehicle emissions, This includes dips in nitrogen dioxide (NO2)
and particulate matter (PM) For example, the EPA confirmed a year-to-year drop of over 30% in pollution levels in San Francisco
following the shelter-in-place order.

On the public health side, an estimated 50 million people with telework-compatible positions would prevent 95,000 traffic-related injuries
and deaths per year and save more than $11 billion Moreover, a study released by the Road Ecology Cenler at the University of
California-Davis found traffic accidents and crash-related injuries and deaths dropped 50% during the first three weeks of California’s
shelter-in-place order.

Employee Telework Benefits

Employees also report numeraus benefits of telework  In addition to increased productivity, telework employees enjoy cost savings,
improved job satisfaction, and a better work-life balance among other aspects.

The cost savings that telework can bring inctude reduced reguirements for gas, clothes, food, parking, and in some cases childcare
According to Global Workplace Analytics, the average savings for a half-time worker would come to $2,000 to $6,500 per year

Does teleworking still result in improvements in how employees view their jobs, even with the added stress of a nandemic? The answer
seems to be a resounding yes The Eagle Hill study cited above found that since working virtually due to COVID had the following
effacts:

v 79% of federal workers are more committed to their agency’s mission
v 76% are more motivated to meet expectations
v 70% have more trust in their colleagues

How Telework Measures Up

The COVID pandemic has resulted in a forced and hurried transition to telework for most of the public sector workforce Yet despite the
nature of the transition, early results show that agency leaders and their employees responded successfully to the challenge In most
cases, productivity has not suffered, and employees are feeling positive about their work status. In addition, the community benefits of
traffic reduction are also becoming more apparent With these results in mind, public sector leaders can feel confident that telewark
programs will result in multiple positive outcomes. The key is to develop strategic goals with measurable autcomes to prove their value
in the long run

What are your thoughts on telework benefits? Have you noticed any improvement in productivity or morale since moving
work? Connect with Virtual Vocations on ©

Q Need Heip?

Gook, Twitter, Linkedin nstagrans and YouTube to share your advice W

from you?

47



Item #5D
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
STAFF REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: REJECT BIDS FOR THE 2022 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT
PROGRAM PROJECT AND REBID THE PROJECT WITH
MODIFICATIONS

MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

SUBMITTED BY: Julie Behzad, PE
Acting City Engineer

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):

City Staff recommends City Council to:

1. Authorize City Manager to reject all bids for the 2022 Pavement Management Program
Project.

2. Approve a rebid of the project with modifications.
REPORT NARRATIVE:

Project Description

The proposed 2022 Pavement Management Pro gram Project (“Project”) proposes pavement
milling and edge grinding, hot mix asphalt concrete (AC) overlay, full depth AC pavement repairs,
micro surfacing, crack sealing, replacement of all existing traffic delineation and markings, utility
adjustments, and all related work on various streets within the City limits. The Project is located
on the following streets as shown on Table 1: Franklin St., North St., Monterey St., The Alameda,
Polk St., Second St., Fourth St., Fifth St., Sixth St., Seventh St., and Church Street.

This project also includes installing new sidewalks and curb and gutter, as well as installing new
ADA ramps, as shown on Exhibits 2 and 3.

The bid opening for the project was held on August 30, 2022, and the bids received are listed
below:

Graniterock $1,195,290.00

Don Chapin Company $1,189,875.00
Precision Grade $1,202,542.50
McKim Corporation $1,193,745.50



Item #5D
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

During the bidding process, it has come to staff’s attention that there may have been an error in
the bid schedule. Upon further evaluation, staff discovered that there was a math error which
resulted in the wrong quantity of Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete. Due to lack of time to notify all the
plan-rooms and plan holders, the bids were open per schedule. All the bids received were well
over the Engineer’s estimate of $850,000.

Upon further review of the bid package and consulting with the City Attorney, Staff feels confident
that the City will receive more competitive bids it the project is rebid with minor revisions to the
project plans and specifications. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council reject all bids
and rebid the project.

This will delay the construction start date by approximately four weeks. If the project is rebid,
construction would begin in late October 2022 and anticipated to be substantially complete by end
of December weather permitting and assuming no project delays. The asphalt pavement coating
portion of the project may have to be postponed until Spring due to the suppliers shutting down
their plants in late fall.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council reject all bids and rebid the 2022 Pavement Management
Program Project.

SCHEDULE:

The following is the tentative schedule for this project. Actual schedule will be developed and
confirmed with the contractor based upon completion of the required contract documents, approval
of pre-submittals, and their availability.

Award Construction Contract October 2022
Begin Construction October 2022
Construction Completion Spring 2023

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact related to the recommended Council action.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Table 1 : Project Locations Map
2. Exhibit 2
3. Exhibit 3



1n0-31q Buipnpu)

122foud weiBold Juawaseuepy JUSWsAed zzoz

Ae19n0 Youl-z %9 pung a8p3 Yy o1 0s€‘0c R4 Wub 1S 10d

dupeping 011N Z 9dA1 7 Bujjess ¥oea) 080v¢ 95T "AMH 1S 92834 epawely ayy
1no-31g Suipnpui

ABlI3AD YuI-7 9 pulg 23p3 'y o 08P 1T 3 Augawia) “1S Yyauny) 1S Asustuo (q

Bupeyns ooy z adAL 0£5°6T 1S b 1S yauny) 1S Asua1uop (e

Ael1sA0 Your-z 18 puus 38p3 Yy 9 050°st Is9sorues 6 Asudiuop 1S puodag
no-31q Buipnpul

AelI9AO Youl-z 3 puun 38p3 Yy 9 OTLLT 1S 5T 1S € ‘IS YloN

Ae|13A0 Your-z g puus a8p3 7y 9 0952 IS p€ IS b 1S ulppuely (o

ABlISAQ Youl-z 8 pulig 38p3 Yy g 0sZ've 1S 19 1S uipjuesy 92410 uipjueL4 (g
IS ;9 38 uodsIIUl Suipn|ouy

Aepaaouaul-z g puug agp3 'y 9 00741 IS b 1S ;9 IS uipjueld (e

("xoiddy) "y -bs
usuneasy BaJy aoelng 207 pug3 207 ag SWeN 13318

JUIWAAR ] 333G 1T 9|qE L

ars jo Aap ‘paloud uonelljiqeysy jusmdaeg — giAld



108(04d weidoid Juawaseuriy JUsWIARY r441 Y4

(xoaddy) -3y *bs 090°zLE = eaJy 32e)nS JUBWBARY |e10)

1eW-04334 Buipnpui

AelIaAQ Youl-z g pulio 38p3 Yy 9 05972 1S uoy3urysem ‘1S jlod 1S YIuaAas
Juiuteway asepuns o.nAl/Aell8AD Youl-7

'3 9PIS YUON puln 33p3 'Y g 0028 S uipjuely 1S uoIZUIYSEAN 1S Yxis

Buepns oy 7 adAy, 05626 epawely ayl Aaiquopy 1S Yyidno4
SU0NI3sIa1Ul pue Ino-31g Bu)pnpui

AelISAQ Youl-z R pulo 88p3 'y 9 006°4T S 5T 1S E IS yaunyd (q

JdueNUT

Ae|1aAQYour-z B puuo @8p3 Y 9 0St'12Z 1S 1€ (SEIEINT ) S Yauny) (e

AeLISAQ Youl-z g pulio a8p3 'Y 9 006°cz 1S 3|od oluojuy ues 1S Y1uanas
1n0-81g Suipnpuy

Aepiaaoyou -z i3 puus 28p3 'y 9 00871 ISI0d 1S UBRNINA, 1S yyi4

(xosddy) "y "bs N

uswiesas) Baly 32e4ng 207 pu3 207 88g awen 198115



¥ jo T a8ed

994] 8unsix3

(47) 1984 4eBUN

(47) s3004 3311 03 anp 431In8 1§ qun3 2yqnd Sunsixe pageweq

(47) Busstw s1 13138 13 qund J1jgng

1sod Al peaysan0 Bunsixa e (47) Buissiw s yjemapis aijqng

(116356000, .

Yd3LINO R gYND ™ ~3AIS Z LidIHX3




o ~8ed

2341 3unsixg

(41) 1994 JedUI

(47) s1004 3841 01 anp 431In8 3 qund d1ignd Bunsixa pagewe(

{47) Buissiw s1 42118 'g gUNd 21GgNnd

1s0d AN[IIN peaysanp Suiisixy (47) Buissiw st yjemapIS 21 jgnd

e 315008

d3LiN9 7 9N NWIYMIAAIS Z 1191HX3




P Jo € a3e(

993J4] 8unsixg

(47) 3994 seaur

(41) s3004 9343 01 anp J31In3 %3 qUNd Aqnd Sunysixa pa3eweq

1ueldpAH a4 Bunnsixy e (417) Buissiw s1 481In8 % qund 21jqng

150d Anjin peaysang 8unsixy e (17) Buissiw si yjemapis a1jgngd

- -

& N

T1e3 9600y

d3LIND R GYND M7 *3AIS ¢ LIdiHX3




9a.] 8unsix3

(41) 1994 Jeaun

(47) s1o04 8341 01 @np 19118 13 qund Njgnd Bunsixs padeweq

uetpAy a4 3unsixy (47) Buissiw s) 421An3 %@ gund d1gnd

1sod Aujin peayssaQ Bulisixy (47) Buissiw s1 }jemapis d11qnd

d31L1ND 8 9YND MIVMIAIS ¢ LIFIHX3




-JRB RAMPS

<t
(e
@]
=
Q
eT]
(T
[

EXHIBIT _
Street corner which ADA Ramp is missing or needs improvements

2]




th

Google Far

W
a
>
<
[
faa)
o
D
O
o
=
Ia)
T
>
L

Street corner whichh ADA Ramp is missing or needs improvements

2]




¥ jo € aded

sjuswanoudwi spasu Jo Suissiw st dwey yqy UYolym 4sui02312a4ls @

:pusse]

trie3 9000y /. o o, N

SAAVY 897~ € L19IHX3




¢ Jo + aded

sjuawanoidw spasu Jo Suissiw s} dwey YAy Ydiym Joulod 19951s @

‘puass]

ctmm.__ ._m_mo.o.mu_h_._.,..,\_ _

=
-

SdINVY g4ND € 119i1HX3




Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-XX

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
RESCINDING SECTION 5-1-165 (‘FIREWORKS”) OF CHAPTER 5.1 (“CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE - 2001
EDITION") AND RESCINDING CHAPTER 5-16 (“FIREWORKS”), OF THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
MUNICIPAL CODE; AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 5-16 (‘FIREWORKS”)

TO THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROHIBIT THE SALE, USE, POSSESSION AND
DISCHARGE OF ALL FIREWORKS WITHIN THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA AND IMPOSING HOST
LIABILITY FOR ALLOWING SAME

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2003-04 this Council added Section 5-1-165 (“Fireworks”) to the
San Juan Bautista Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, by Ords. 2 (no date), 27a this Council added Chapter 5-16 (“Fireworks”) to the San
Juan Bautista Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista may adopt regulations to protect the health, safety,
and welfare of the public under California Constitution Article X1, §7 and California Government Code
§37100, and thereby is authorized to declare what use or condition constitutes a public nuisance; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista has the authority under California Government Code
§53069.4 to issue administrative citations for violation of the City’s ordinances, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5-1-165 (Fireworks) and Section 5-16-100 (Fireworks) the City
of San Juan Bautista has prohibited the sale, possession and use of “dangerous fireworks,” as defined
by state law, within the City but permitted the sale and discharge of legal “safe and sane” fireworks,
as defined by sate law, within the City only during certain days and hours in connection with the July
4™ Independence Day holiday; and

WHEREAS, the City Council periodically reviews City ordinances to ensure they are achieving
their aims, while continuing to adhere to legal requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista finds that due to the continued
threat of wildland fire and wind events that increase fire risk to properties within and adjacent to the
City limits there is no assurance that a fire from whatever source will not exceed the capabilities of
the fire services and reach catastrophic proportions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista finds the goal of eliminating a risk
of fire resulting from the use of dangerous or of safe and sane fireworks, and thereby protect the
public health, safety and welfare, would be best served by holding responsible not only those
individuals who use fireworks in violation of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code but also those
individuals who allow such illegal use on property that they either own or control; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista desires to amend and update the
City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to reflect the current needs of the City and to ensure the
. health, safety and welfare of the public and the fire protection and law enforcement personnel who
serve and protect the citizens of the City of San Juan Bautista public and the general public.

1



Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA ORDAINS AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Section 5-1-165 (‘Fireworks”) of Chapter 5.1 (“California Fire Code — 2001
Edition”) of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code is hereby rescinded.,

SECTION 2: Chapter 5-16 of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code hereby is hereby rescinded.

SECTION 3: Chapter 5-16 is hereby added to the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code to read in
its entirety as shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 4: CEQA. The City Council hereby finds that the action to adopt this Ordinance to
rescind Section 5-1-165 and Chapter 5-16 and to add a new Chapter 5-16 and the implementation of
that Chapter are exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act under
section 15061(b)(3) in that the City Council finds there is no possibility that the implementation of
Chapter 5-16 may have significant effects on the environment.

SECTION 5: Severability. This ordinance and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to
be severable. Should any section of this ordinance be declared by a court to be unconstitutional or
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole, or any portion thereof
other than the section, or part thereof, so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION 6: Effective Date. This ordinance shall go into effect thirty (30) days after the date of
its adoption.

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was first read at a regular meeting of the San Juan Bautista City
Council on the 20th day of September , 2022, and was adopted at a regular meeting of the San Juan
Bautista City Council on the day of , 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Mayor Leslie Q. Jordan
ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, City Manager,
Acting Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert W. Rathie, City Attorney



Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

EXHIBIT A

Chapter 5.16
FIREWORKS

Sections:

5-16.100 Purpose and Findings.
5-16-200 Definitions.

5-16-300 Prohibition.

5-16-400 Seizure of Fireworks.
5-16-500 Host Liability.

5-16-600 Exceptions.

5.-16-700 Violation Penalty.

5-16-800 No Mandatory Duty of Care.

5-16-100 Purpose and Findings.

(A) Fireworks present a significant hazard to the City of San Juan Bautista, the environment and
the safety of its citizens.

(B) It is in the city’s best interest to prohibit the sale, use, possession and discharge of fireworks,
including illegal and “dangerous fireworks” and legal fireworks also known as “safe and sane
fireworks.”

(C) The purpose of this chapter is to establish a prohibition on the sale, use, possession and
discharge of fireworks in the city of San Juan Bautista.

(D) California Health and Safety Code Section 12500 et seq. provides for regulation of the
manufacture, classification and, in part, sales of safe and sane fireworks by the California State Fire
Marshal and California Health and Safety Code Sections 12541 and 12541.1 allow local jurisdictions to
prohibit or otherwise regulate sale based upon local conditions.

(E) In 2022 and previously, California has experienced devastating wildfires. The City of San Juan
Bautista is surrounded by brush-covered lands so that fireworks present a significant fire hazard to
the environment and the safety of its citizens.

(F) Many jurisdictions elsewhere have already banned fireworks.



Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

5-16-.200 Definitions

(A) As used herein, the words and phrases “fireworks,” “dangerous fireworks,” and “safe and
sane fireworks” shall have the meanings ascribed to them in Section 12500 et seq. of the California
Health and Safety Code.

(B) As used herein, the word "host" means a person who either is in charge of private property,
inciuding, but not limited to, an owner, tenant, landlord, or property manager of the property; or
who organizes, supervises, officiates, conducts, controls, or is otherwise in charge of the activity on
the property.

(C) As used herein, the phrase "response costs" means costs associated with law enforcement,
fire, medical, or other emergency personnel responding to, remaining at, and leaving the scene of a
gathering, including but not limited to: salaries and benefits of law enforcement, fire, medical, or
other emergency personnel; administrative costs; the cost of any medical treatment of injuries to
any law enforcement, fire, medical or other emergency personnel; the cost of using any city
equipment; the cost of repairing any damaged city equipment or property; and any other costs
related to enforcement of this Chapter.

5-16-300 Prohibition.

The sale, use, possession and discharge of fireworks, including, but not limited to legal fireworks,
sometimes also known as safe and sane fireworks, and dangerous fireworks, are prohibited within
the city of San Juan Bautista. It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, offer for sale, purchase,
discharge or otherwise use fireworks within the City of San Juan Bautista except as provided in this
Chapter. Each day of recurrence of any violation shall constitute a separate offense and may be
treated as such pursuant to this Section.

5-16-400 Seizure of Fireworks.

The County Sheriff, County Fire Chief, or designee, may seize, take, remove or cause to be removed,
at the expense of the owner, all fireworks possessed or displayed in violation of this Chapter.

5-16-500 Host's Liability.

(A) No host shall allow any person to violate a provision of this Chapter on the host's private
property, except as provided below in Subsection C.

(B) Whenever a host is present at the private property while another person violates a provision
of this Chapter, there shall be a rebuttable presumption that the host knew or should have known of
the violation.



Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

Q) The provisions of this Section shall not apply to a host who initiates contact with law
enforcement or fire officials to assist in removing any person from the property or terminating the
activity in order to comply with,this Chapter, if the request for assistance is made before any other
person contacts law enforcement or fire officials to complain about the violation of this Chapter.

(D) No host shall aid or abet another person's violation of a provision of this Chapter in a public
right-of-way adjacent to the host's private property. A host aids and abets another person's violation
of a provision of this Chapter if he or she knows of the other person's unlawful purpose and the host
specifically intends to, and does in fact, aid, facilitate, promote, encourage, or instigate the other
person's commission of that violation.

5-16-600 Exceptions.

(A) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as prohibiting the sale, use, or discharge of any of the
following: torpedoes (impact sensitive fireworks), flares, or fuses by transportation or law
enforcement agencies for signal purposes or illumination; blank cartridges for ceremonial purposes,
athletic, or sports events or military ceremonies or demonstrations; fireworks by permittees having a
permit as hereinafter provided; agricultural and wildlife fireworks as defined in California Health and
Safety Code Section 12503; or to those subjects identified in California Health and Safety Code
Sections 12540 (a) through (d).

(B) Public displays of fireworks may be conducted by permit granted pursuant to Title 19 of the
California Code of Regulations.

5.-16-700 - Violation Penalty.

(A) In addition to any other remedy allowed by law, any person who violates a provision of this
Chapter is subject to criminal sanctions, civil actions, and administrative penalties pursuant to
Chapter 2-7.

(B) Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapters 13-1 or 2-7, the amount of the bail schedule for
citations for enforcement of a violation of this Chapter shall be set by the City Council by resolution.
As of June 29, 2021, per Resolution 2021-34A the bail schedule upon adoption of his ordinance is one
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for the first violation, two thousand five hundred dollars (5$2,500.00) for
a second violation within twelve months of a first violation, and five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for
a third or subsequent violation within twelve months of the last violation. The above-listed amounts
may be changed by the City Council by resolution.

(C) In the event the fireworks are confiscated and have to be disposed of by the County Sheriff of
County Fire Department, there shall be an additional charge of two hundred and fifty dollars
($250.00) assessed for disposal fee.



Item #5E
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

(D) Any person who violates Section 5-16-300 and any host who violates Section 5-16-500 shall be
liable for the response costs relating to the violation. All hosts who violate Section 5.16.500 in the
same incident are jointly and severally liable for the response costs relating to the violation. The
amount of response costs constitutes a debt owed to the city.

(E) Notice of the response costs shall be served by first-class mail on the person or hosts liable for
such costs. The notice shall contain the following information:

The name of the person or host who is liable for the response costs;
The address of the private property where the incident occurred;
The date and time of the response;

The law enforcement, fire, or sther emergency response personne! who responded; and

An itemized list of the response costs.

(F) Payment for response costs shall be remitted to the City of San Juan Bautista within thirty (30)
calendar days of the date of the notice. The payment of any such costs shall be stayed upon the filing

i

of a timely appeal.

(G)  Aperson or host charged with response costs may, within ten (10) calendar days of the date
of the notice of response costs, appeal the response costs in accordance with Section 2-7-130 of
Chapter 2-7. The appeal hearing shall be scheduled and conducted in the manner prescribed in
Chapter 2-7. Failure to timely file an appeal constitutes a failure to exhaust available administrative
remedies, and bars any further review or administrative appeal of the response costs.

(H) Violations of this Chapter are hereby declared to be a public nuisance.

(1) All remedies prescribed under this Chapter are cumulative and the election of one or more
remedies does not bar the city from the pursuit of any other remedy to enforce this Chapter.

5-16-800 No Mandatory Duty of Care.

This Cha\pter is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner that imposes
upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards persons and
property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis for civil liability for damages, except as
otherwise imposed by law.



Item #5F
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

ORDINANCE 2022-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA TO ADD SECTIONS 7-04-106 AND 7-04-107 TO THE
SAN JUAN BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL CODE TO AUTHORIZE EXCEPTIONS TO
SUBSECTIONS (e)(1) AND (f) OF SECTION 22500 OF THE CALIFORNIA
VEHICLE CODE REGARDING, RESPECTIVELY, PARKING IN FRONT OF
DRIVEWAYS AND PARKING ON SIDEWALKS

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA HEREBY ORDAINS AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The City Council finds and determines as follows:

A. Section 22500 (“Prohibited stopping, standing, or parking”) of the California Vehicle
Code includes in its listing of prohibited acts subsections (e)(1) (no parking in front of public or
private driveway), and subsection (f) (no parking on or over sidewalks or portions of sidewalks).
Each of the subsections authorizes local authorities, by ordinance, to enact specified exceptions
to said prohibited acts.

B. This Council, in the interest of public safety and convenience, desires to exercise the
authority included in each of the noted Vehicle Code subsections, (1) to provide that certain
vehicles may park in front of driveways for strictly limited purposes, and (2) to provide that
certain vehicles (described by reference to California Vehicle Code Section 21114.5) may park
on sidewalks, all as more particularly described in the additions to the Municipal Code written
below.

SECTION 2: Sections 7-4-106 and 7-4-107 are hereby added to the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code, to read as follows:

“7-4-106. Parking in front of driveways. It shall be unlawful for the operator of a vehicle
to stop, park or leave standing said vehicle in front of a public or private driveway, whether
attended or unattended, except that a bus engaged as a common carrier, school bus, or a
taxicab may stop in front of a public or private driveway to load or unload passengers.”

“7-4-107. Parking on sidewalks. It shall be unlawful for any person to stop, park, or leave
standing any vehicle, whether attended or-unattended, on any portion of a sidewalk, or with
the body of said vehicle extending over a portion of a sidewalk, except for (1) electric carts
operated by physically disabled persons, (2) electric carts operated by persons 50 years of age
or older, or (3) while in the course of their employments electric carts operated by employees
of the United States Postal Service, state and local government, utility companies, on public
sidewalks. Disabled persons and persons 50 years or age or older, in order to qualify for their
exceptions hereunder, shall apply for and obtain from the City Manager a permit to operate on



and over sidewalks, and an identification sticker. Such permits and stickers shall become void
once and if the permit holder ceases to operate, own or lease the cart.”

SECTION 3: Environmental determination. In the exercise of their independent
judgment, this Council hereby determines that enactment of this ordinance is exempt from
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review and therefore not required, because there
is no possibility that enactment will or may have a significant effect on the environment, and
that enactment is therefore not a project because it will not cause a direct judgment physical
change on the environment.

SECTION 4: Effective date. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its adoption the
City Council.

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was first read at a regular meeting of the San Juan
Bautista City Council on the 20th day of September , 2022, and was adopted at a regular
meeting of the San Juan Bautista City Council on the day of , 2022, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Mayor Leslie Q. Jordan

ATTEST:

Don Reynolds, City Manager
Acting Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert W. Rathie, City Attorney



Item #5G
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

. B CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
ey CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY - SPHERE OF
INFLUENCE AD HOC COMMITTEE STATUS

MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):

It is recommended that the City Council consider the status of the Urban Growth Boundary —
Sphere of Influence Ad Hoc Committee, consider reconvening the Ad Hoc Committee and sending
the attached letter to affected property owners outside of and surrounding the City limits.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Local Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCo”) informed the City Council that the current
General Plan’s “Sphere of Influence” (“SOI”) and Urban Growth Boundary was never adopted by
LAFCO, in 2016 when it was approved by the City. The 1998 General Plan SOI remains as the
City’s guide for future growth. Attachment B to this report provides the definitions of Sphere of
Influence, the LAFCO SOI application process, and a definition of Urban Growth Boundary
(“UGB”).

In June 2020 the City agreed to establish an Ad Hoc Committee to study the SOI and UGB status
and recommend changes to better control growth. Councilmember Dan DeVries and Mayor Mary
Edge, joined Planning Commission Chair Scott Freels and Historic Resources Board Chair Luis
Matchain. Jackie Morris Lopez was appointed as the “Member at Large.” The first meeting was
August 18, 2020. By November 2020, the Committee had met six times. The Committee met in
the library and each member drew its preferred scope of influence on the map.

There was a lot of discussion about preventing sprawl and whether or not the City’s growth could
be better controlled using a large SOI including more parcels, or a small SOI excluding most
parcels. The City can establish strong limited land uses for those within the SOI. But some felt
that a large SOI is dangerous, and invites developers to exploit land for development that is
intended for preservation.

Following the election, Dan Devries termed out, and Commissioner Freels replaced him as the
new City Council representative. Jackie Morris Lopez was appointed to the Planning Commission



ltem #5G

City Council Meeting

September 20, 2022

and replaced Scott Freels. E.J. Sabathia was appointed as the Member at Large. This Ad Hoc

Committee met twice, in November 2021 and December 2021. A two-tiered map shared with the

Committee in November and was discussed. An Email summary of the two-tiered map provided
to the Ad Hoc Committee as Attachment C.

Staff took the teedback from the December 2021 Ad Hoc Committee meeting, and finalized the
two-tier map and interpreted this meeting to be the Ad Hoc Committee’s final decision. Both the
parcels to be preserved for conservation (“yellow”) and the parcels to be considered for
development (“orange”) are indicated as being within the SOI. But apparently, although the
Committee discussed the two tiers and the SOI , the Committee did not conclude that both tiers be
contained within the SOI before it went out to the public.

The “draft” map became part of the scope of work to be completed as a Community Plan by EMC
that was approved by the Council February 15, 2022. This Community Plan will help inform the
LAFCO application by defining land uses within the proposed sphere of influence. EMC’s scope
of work is part of the definitions provided on the second page in Attachment C.

In order to meet the State grant deadline of September 2022, the City then embarked on an
aggressive public outreach campaign, inviting the community and surrounding property owners to
meetings about the two-tier map during the week of May 4, 2022. These meetings were then
interpreted by staff and EMC and presented to the community June 13, at the VFW Hall. Despite
staff’s good intentions, the meeting became contentious, several left early, leaving no quorum of
either the City Council or Planning Commission, and leaving some feeling ignored or left out of
the decisions represented by the map. Because of lack of quorum, some expressed feelings that
the conclusions from that meeting (adding or not adding parcels to the SOI) are illegitimate.

Attachment D is the chronology of significant events and outreach since August 2020. The video
and records from this outreach effort and maps are all available on the City Website:
https://www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us/departments/ planning/projects of community interest.php

DISCUSSION:

The map has two tiers: one for those specific properties to be included in the SOI and a second
yellow-colored tier to designate as parcels for conservation and cultural preservation.

The issue is that the map states that both tiers are to be included within the SOI.

The Ad Hoc Committee did not have the opportunity to discuss this recommendation. Chair Scott
Freels and Ad Hoc Committee Member Edge have requested that the Ad Hoc Committee not be
disbanded, and meet to discuss this issue, as well as coming to a final decision about which parcels
to include in the first tier.



This is a critical question that requires more deliberation because if these yellow parcels are inside
the SOI, then it would be substantially larger than the 2016 General Plan, and may be interpreted
by developers as a larger development opportunity for them. Perhaps that can be avoided with a
recommendation to zone these preservation parcels for rural uses including agricultural, and
restricting residential to one home per 40-acres. Regardless, this discussion needs to occur before
the Ad Hoc Committee recommended map can come forward.

Chair Scott Freels and Ad Hoc Committee Member Edge have asked three fundamental questions:

1. Remove the “maps” from public circulation and the City’s website, and remove any
reference to the yellow parcels being included in the SOI;

2. Send the letter provided as Attachment A to property owners in both proposed tiers on
the map to confirm their interest to be part of the SOI, or remain as stated, or changed;

3. Reconvene the Ad Hoc Committee to bring a recommended map to the Planning
Commission this fall.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City appealed to the State Department of Housing and Community Development and received
approval for a one-year extension of the September 2022 deadline for the $160,000 grant funds
used to finance this project.

ATTACHMENTS:

A) Proposed Letter to Affected Property Owners

B) Definitions

C) Summaries of the Ad Hoc Committee’s last two meetings November and December 2021
D) Project Milestones and Chronology



City of San Juan Bautista

The “City of History”
Office of the City Manager
P.O. Box 1420, 311 Second Street
San Juan Bautista CA 95045
(831) 623-4661 x 14 € (831) 594-6322 (New!)

September 23, 2022
To property owners outside the City limits:

The City embarked on a challenging project in 2020, to examine and re-define how its
population will grow between now and 2035. Although the City has attempted to be
transparent in this process there are many that feel left out of the conversation. The City
is inviting all of those who are concerned or have questions about the City’s future
population growth to attend a work-shop Saturday October 29, 2022 at 10AM, at
, San Juan Bautista, CA 95045.

The question is: how fast shall the City grow, and shall this growth occur within the current
sphere of influence (“SOI”), or shall the SOI be changed?

As defined by CAL-LAFCo:

A sphere of influence is a planning boundary outside of an agency’s legal boundary (such as the
city limit line) that designates the agency’s probable future boundary and service area. Factors
considered in a sphere of influence review focus on the current and future land use, the current
and future need and capacity for service, and any relevant communities of interest.

The City’s sphere of influence did not change when the City adopted its General Plan in
2016. Instead, the 1998 SOI remains as the guide for growth. The General Plan SOI is
much smaller. If adopted, the General Plan SOI will limit city growth to 3% a year (which
is still very fast growth). The Council appointed an “Urban Growth Boundary
Committee” in August 2020 to weigh the options. They met several times and produced
a map where each member drew their own SOI around the City limits. When they met
in-person a second time in December 2021, a map with two tiers was proposed by the
consulting team and staff: 1) one tier with an SOI like the 2016 General Plan, and 2) a
second larger planning area that would serve as preservation easements (cultural,
historical, agricultural) to buffer the City from sprawl development and preserve its
cultural integrity (the purpose of the UGB).



City of San Juan Bautista

The “City of History”
Office of the City Manager
P.O. Box 1420, 311 Second Street
San Juan Bautista CA 95045
(831) 623-4661 x 14 C(831) 594-6322 (New!)

There are advantages and disadvantages to owning a parcel within the SOI or outside
and adjacent to it. Committee did consider an UGB that is the same as the SOI rather
than larger as it was in 1998.

There is still time to debate whether the yellow parcels to be preserved will be included,
or be outside the SOI in a separat

that discussion.

e “Planning Area.” The Ad Hoc Committee has not had

Since the Ad Hoc Committee last met, the City sent invitations to all property owners
within the City limits and around the City limits to attend community meetings in May
and June. The video of the May 4 meeting, and notes from the other meetings are all on
the City’s website. The two-tier map is also there with other mapping options to consider,
This background and history can be found here:

https://www.san-juan-

bautista.ca.us/departments/planning/projects of community interest.php

If you own property within the City limits or around the City limits, this work may
directly impact your property’s value and development potential. The Chair of the Ad
Hoc, Councilmember Scott Freels, would like to invite anyone not familiar with this
project to attend this meeting October 29t to learn more and share concerns, comments
and questions. It is important to provide your feedback and contribute now, before the
application is sent to the Planning Commission, then City Council and eventually to
LAFCo.

Thank you again for your help in moving this project forward. Feel free to reach me at
citymanager@san-juan-bautista.ca.us or call if you need anything from the City.

Sincerely,
Don Reynolds
City Manager

cc: City Council
Planning Commission



Attachment B

Definitions:

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
As defined by CAL-LAFCo:

A sphere of influence is a planning boundary outside of an agency’s legal boundary (such as the
city limit line) that designates the agency’s probable future boundary and service area. Factors
considered in a sphere of influence review focus on the current and future land use, the current
and future need and capacity for service, and any relevant communities of interest.

THE APPLICATION TO LAFCo TO ESTABLISH A SOI, is a General Plan Amendment.
Corteze/Knox Herzberg (CA Code) Section 56425(e) describes this application criteria:

(1) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.

(2) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.

(3) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides
or is authorized to provide.

(4) The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency.

(5) ... the present and probable need for those public facilities and services of any disadvantaged
unincorporated communities within the existing sphere of influence.

AN URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY can also be established and was part of the previous
General Plan. It would establish a buffer around the City that limits development. This is the
general definition of an Urban Growth Boundary:

An urban growth boundary, or UGB, is a regional boundary, set in an attempt to control urban
sprawl by, in its simplest form, mandating that the area inside the boundary be used for urban
development and the area outside be preserved in its natural state or used for agriculture. Legislating
for an "urban growth boundary" is one way, among many others, of managing the major challenges
posed by unplanned urban growth and the encroachment of cities upon agricultural and rural land.v

An urban growth boundary circumscribes an entire urbanized area and is used by local governments
as a guide to zoning and land use decisions, and by utilities and other infrastructure providers to
improve efficiency through effective long term planning (e.g. optimizing sewerage catchments, school
districts, etc.).

If the area affected by the boundary includes multiple jurisdictions a special urban planning agency
may be created by the state or regional government to manage the boundary. In a rural context, the
terms town boundary, village curtilage or village envelope may be used to apply the same constraining
principles. Some jurisdictions refer to the area within an urban growth boundary as an urban growth
area (UGA) or urban service area, etc. While the names are different, the concept is the same.



The scope approved February 15, 2022 for EMC’s work on the “Community Plan” required by
the intended to be part of the LAFCo - SOI Application:

Per our most recent phone conversation (12-23-21), EMC Planning Group has prepared a
scope of work and budget for a San Juan Bautista Community Plan, intended to
incorporate the current City work effort on the “Urban Growth Boundary or City Sphere
of Influence”, the “Active Transportation Plan”, and the planning effort for the “South
San Juan area”. It is intended that the South side planning effort provide the City with
additional residential development area to assist in meeting the City’'s RHNA
Allocation. We propose ta team with Dan Burden and the Built Environment Team at
Blue Zones, LLC who would lead the public participation effort, collaborate on design
guidelines. and ensure that a strong emphasis is placed on creating a healthy, livable
environment in the nesv City growth areas and connection those new growth areas to
the communities urban corp. The team has expertise in building collaboration through
community-informed processes, and bringing together diverse stakeholders to embrace
healthy community design principles. In the work program presented below, tasks that
include Biue Zones participation are in biue lettering We also propose to bring in
AMBG Consulting. a Colorado firm that specializes in online engagement. to lead the
online engagement effort. In our current and ongoing pandemic environment, this
online engagement piece has become essential.



Chronology:
March 10, 2020
April21, 2020
August 2020
August 17, 2020
August 31, 2020
September 9, 2020
October 5, 2020
October 19, 2020

November 2, 2020

November 10, 2020
February 16, 2021

March- July 2021

November 22 2021:

December 3, 2021;

December 14, 2021;

January 18, 2022:

February 8, 2022:

ATTACHMENT C

Introduction of issues to the Planning Commission
City Council introduction to the issues

Harris and Associates Contract awarded

1** Meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee

2" meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee

3" meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee

4™ meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee

5" meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee

6" meeting of Ad-Hoc Committee — draft map for SOI
Election and City Council re-organization

Planning Commission status report
Advertise to fill Ad-Hoc Committee vacancy

Recruit, on-board new Assistant City Manager — Community Development
Director

Staff presents the two-tier concept for consideration by the UGB

UGB Committee meets in person and reviews the two- tier map concept and
SOl configuration as a preliminary. (Staff email to PC/CC/UGB prior to 12/3
meeting.)

Staff suggests combined SOI and So. SIB Specific Plan to EMC. EMC begins to
develop a scope of work.

HCD approves grant contract amendment to prepare Community Plan per
draft scope of work.

1) the Planning Commission reviews the recommendation of the Urban
Growth Boundary Committee; and 2) recommends that the City Council
Review the recommendation of the Urban Growth Boundary Committee
and approve a contract with EMC Planning Group to develop a Sphere of



February 15,2022:

March 4, 2022:

May 3 — 5 2022:

June 13, 2022:

Influence proposal for presentation to San Benito County and San Benito
County LAFCO, as contained in attachment 1.

City Council adopts Resolution 2022-13 to “develop and prepare a General Plan
— level Community Plan incorporating a South San Juan Area Plan and Sphere Of

influence study in an amount not to exceed $259,457.56 as outlined in the
attached EMC Scope of Work dated January 12, 2022. “

CM signs the contract for professional services enabling the Community Plan

Consultants and City staff host community meetings at City Hall and charette at
school gym (see video)

Planning Commission and City Council joint meeting.



Don Reynolds

From: Brian Foucht

ent: Monday, November 22, 2021 5:38 PM

To: Ej.sabathia@gmail.com; sf9101@hotmail.com; Mary Edge; Commissioner Jackie Morris-
Lopez; LUIS matchain

Cc: Mayor Jordan; Don Reynolds

Subject: Memo re Sphere of Influence and Municipal Service Review process and information

Attachments: UGB.SOl.Committee Agenda.11.23.21.pdf

Hi All - I've attached the complete agenda for tomorrow night. | will have a maps and will facilitate your discussion
regarding the preliminary boundary you would like to us to start analyzing. The map will look very similar (there are still
a few tweeks to make) to this interactive map that we have asked the County GIS staff to prepare for

us: https://cosb.maps.arcgis.com/apps/View/index.htmi?appid=72dd937b3ddf40098583ead9062fc89b . A few
features: The colors orange, yellow and purple representing a staff recommended starting point for a prospective
sphere and to be used to start an analysis.

Orange colored parcels are “First Tier”, that is, parcels that are adjacent to our current boundary within which a
reasonable, expanded urban service boundary might be considered. The Yellow are “Second Tier” which are parcels
that we would want to exert influence over and for which we would likely plan as open space (agriculture, recreation,
conservation, managed resource production). These two areas may shrink and become more nuanced with the
evaluation of employment, residential growth and conservation proceeds. The Purple parcels are proposed to be
outside our Sphere of Influence and seek to influence County land use policies to preserve these prime farm lands.

The green line, which becomes easier to read as you focus in on certain parcels or areas with your mouse or cursor,
elineate parcels owned by the same entity. | will be making a few minor changes to this map for discussion tomorrow
evening.

Brian

Brian Foucht, AICP

Asst. City Manager / CD Director
311 Second St. — PO Box 1420
San Juan Bautista, CA 95045
831-623-4661 x 20 (office)
831-207-5430 (cell)

ACM-CDDirector@san-juan-bautista.ca.us

.rom: Brian Foucht
Sent: Friday, November 19, 2021 5:49 PM



To: 'Ej.sabathia@gmail.com' <Ej.sabathia@gmail.com>; 'sf9101@hotmail.com' <sf9101@hotmail.com>; Mary Edge
<m.edge@san-juan-bautista.ca.us>; Commissioner Jackie Morris-Lopez <J.MorrisLopez@san-juan-bautista.ca.us>; 'LUIS
matchain' <Imatchain@gmail.com>; Don Reynolds <citymanager@san-juan-bautista.ca.us>

Cc: Leslie Jordan <L.jordan@san-juan-bautista.ca.us>; Don Reynolds <citymanager@san-juan-bautista.ca.us>

Subject: Memo re Sphere of Influence and Municipal Service Review process and information

Hi All - apologies for the extremely dry subject matter in the attached memo. Not much can be done about
that. However, our discussion on the 23™ at 5Pm at the Library should be interesting because we’ll start looking at the
map in earnest to identify areas where we will need to do further study. Thank you, Brian

Brian Foucht, AICP

Asst. City Manager / CD Dircctor
311 Second St. — PO Box 1420
San Juan Bautista, CA 95045
831-623-4661 x 20 {office)
831-207-5430 (cell)

ACM-CDDirector@san-juan-bautista.ca.us




Item #5H
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: UPDATE ON RECRUITMENT EFFORTS TO FILL A
VACANCY ON THE PLANNING COMMISSION

MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

SUBMITTED BY: PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY TRISH PAETZ

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):

Receive the information and consider input from the Ad Hoc Committec to Select a Planning
Commissioner.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

At the City Council meeting on June 14, 2022 Council was asked to select an Ad Hoc Committee
to select a Planning Commissioner, in accordance with Municipal Code Section 2-3-110.
Whereupon, it was agreed that Mayor Jordan and Vice Mayor Flores would serve on the Ad Hoc
Committee. Since that meeting, Tony Correia was selected to serve on the Planning Commission.
Subsequently, another seat on the Planning Commission became vacant. Staff advertised the
vacancy by posting a new notice with a new deadline of Friday, September 16. Staff received two
(2) applications; specifically, Mishele NewKirk-Smith and Dan DeVries. The applications were
forwarded to the Ad Hoc Committee for their review and consideration.

Attachments:

Notice/Flyer of Vacancy on the Planning Commission
SJB Municipal Code Section 2-3-110



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS

Check one: ¢~ Planning Commission Historic Resources Board

1.

2.

Applicant Name: _//7/-5'/:5/5,7 &dkn:k = 5/?2{%

Current Residence: c:;? Dd’)’)/)éf‘ S ST A

Mailing Address: pO é%c):z S3 SIA _
E-mail Address: Lﬂl&ﬁg&d@ﬁd@m/ﬁya jma‘/ - COrrv

Telephone Number: (Home) (Work) (Cell) MM‘;

How long have you been a resident of San Juan Bautista?

Are you currently serving or have you served on a City of San Juan Bautista Board, Commission, or City Council?
If yes, which one? /Z/ / A Term currently serving
Term currently serving

What motivated you to apply for this Board or Commission? You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

What skills or attributes can you bring to this Board or Commission? You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

ry role of a Board or Commission member is to provide advice to the City Council on policy issues that are
scope of that Board or Commission. With this in mind, what steps would you take to effectively exercise this
specific Board or Commission role? You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

The prima
within the

List any relevant education, training or experience that demonstrates your ability to effectively serve on this Board or
Commission. You may attach a separate sheet of paper.




Applicant's Name (2;25[{@& [i[{&c)bf‘@ ’\S;’njé(’

10. List and provide a brief description of your current or last occupaton.

11. Have u attended a City Council, Board or Commission meeting, Town Hall meeting or Public Workshop? If so,

please describe what you learned and what improvements you would suggest the City consider.

12. Describe your invoivement in community activities, volunteer and civic organizations.

13. Do you have any physical or mental constraints which may limit your ability to perform the duties of a Board or
Wﬁsion member? If yes, what can be done to accommodate these constraints?

(Note: Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of San Juan Bautista will make reasonable efforts to accommodate
persons with qualified disabilities during the Boards and Commissions interview process. If you require special accommodations,
please contact the City Clerk at least five days in advance of any scheduled interview.)

| certify under penalty of perjury that all statements | have made on this application are true and correct. | hereby
authorize the City of San Juan Bautista to investigate the accuracy of this information from any person or organization,
and | release the City of San Juan Bautista and all persons and organizations from all claims and liabiiities arising from
such investigation or the supplying of information for such investigation. | acknowledge that any false statement or
misrepresentation on this application or supplementary materials will be cause for refusal of appointment or immediate
dismissal at any time during the period of my appointment.

YOUR APPLICATION IS NOT COMPLETE UNTIL IT IS SIGNED AND RETURNED.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

A Beard or Commission member is a public official. As such, it is necessary to provide contact information to
the public. Please note that all information provided on this form becomes a public record after it is officially

filed. Please do not include any information on this form that you do not want posted on the City’s web site and
the City’s Official Roster.

Applicants appointed to the Planning Commission and Historical Resources Board are required to file the Fair
Political Practices Commission (FPPC) Statements of Economic Interest (Form 700), which are also a public
record. A copy of this form is available in the City Clerk’s office or by visiting www.fppc.ca.gov.

. —
/S\E;;:iag:;? Of%c/w /Qé%‘(—/ Date g// Z/ 22z
~/ — ! /

Please mail, fax, or deliver to: City Hall, P.O. Box 1420, 311 Second St., San Juan Bautista, CA 95045,
FAX: 623-4093.




Mishele Newkirk-Smith: Planning Commission

6. What motivated you to apply for this Board or Commission?

When my husband and | started to look for a home to buy a few years ago, we had many
requirements for the neighborhood and very few for the actual house. We wanted to be a part of
a small rural community where we could make friends with our neighbors and help each other.
San Juan Bautista is everything we hoped for in our new community. Even though we moved in
during the beginning of the pandemic, we were welcomed into Creek Bridge by our neighbors
and the people we met on our daily walks. Now that the city is opening back up, | want to take
an active role in planning the future of San Juan Bautista.

7. What skills or attributes can you bring to this Board or Commission?

Having lived in multiple countries and states, | have experienced key elements that make a
small town appealing, such as walkable, friendly neighbors, unifying building front, cleanliness,
communicative local government, and citizens who desire to embrace controlled change for the
benefit of all. As a teacher, | value knowledge and understanding of topics and am not quick to
pass judgment. | am a conscious listener, well organized, and educated. | respect all options
and am to professionally disagree with someone.

8. The primary role of a Board or Commission is to provide advice to the City Council on
policy issues that are within the scope of that Board or Commission. With this in mind,
what steps would you take to effectively exercise the specific Board or Commission
role?

The steps | would take to effectively exercise the role is to be well informed on the topics and
how the project will affect San Juan Bautista and its citizens. | feel it is very important to talk to
all people living in SJB to be able to represent everyone’s voices and not just friends. My advice
and recommendations will be well thought out and articulated.

9. List any relevant education, training, or experience that demonstrates your ability to
effectively serve on this Board or Commission.

As an experienced science educator, | am well versed in environmental concerns that can affect
a project and the importance of preserving nature. My years in the classroom have taught me
conflict resolution, multicultural understanding, and problem-solving. | can understand reports
and maps as well as technical drawings. | can process information and form an option taking in
the recommendations and voices of others.

10. List and briefly describe your current or last occupation.
For the past 25 years, | have been a high school science teacher.



Mishele Newkirk-Smith: Planning Commission

11. Have you attended a City Council, Board or Commission meeting, Town Hall meeting
or Public Workshop? If so, please describe what you learned and what improvements
you would suggest the City consider.

While I have not attended a live meeting, | have watched a few of the recorded City Council and
Commission meetings. It is important for those citizens watching from home to feel a part of the
live meetings. In the meetings | watched, the cameras were not directed toward the speaker’s
face but overhead, and the speaker’s voice was not always clear. | would also implement a
maximum time for each speaker to shorten the meeting length. The time limit would also
encourage the speaker to condense comments into concise statements.

12. Describe your involvement in community activities and volunteer and civic
organizations.

As a teacher, | belisve in the importance of teaching children to give back to their community.
There is no better way to teach than to show by example. For the past 30 years, | have
volunteered for animal rescue organizations and local zoos. While my sons were boys, | worked
with Boy Scouts of America in many roles for 16 years. | am a club advisor for Science
Olympiad and Animal Lover’s Club. | have volunteered at food distributions, food banks, and
beach clean-ups. As a homeowner for the past 20 years in Port Ludiow, Washington, | have
followed and participated in the very active Port Ludlow Commission which governs the resort
community.



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA VFRGEST iz oy ClEmi
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSIONS AND BOARDS

Check one: ‘/ Planning Commission Historic Resources Board

1.

2.

Applicant Name: DaN DE VRIEG
Current Residence: HoS =™ sTeeeT

Mailing Address: P-o. Box 29 358 ca A504S

E-mail Address: dydv @ deyries \awa roUp . Cona

Telephone Number: (Home) NIA (Work) N /A Cell) D3 A7, HO |

How long have you been a resident of San Juan Bautista? 32 Y& .
Are you currently serving or have you served on a City of San Juan Bautista Board, Commission, or City Council?
If yes, whichone? S v»y Coumie i Term currently serving

PLAN NIVt comM Term currently serving

What motivated you to apply for this Board or Commission? You may attach a separate sheet of paper,

TO0 KEEP sSind dunl BaunstA SMMALL., thSTorelc,

S ANID NOMICALLY PRrosPE@ovs |

What skills or attributes can you bring to this Board or Commission? You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

M VEars S4B Prannding- CaNW\lsstW,; AR

Sted  BENITH cﬁﬁﬁ PLANN (NZ:  GoaiSStond  DIST. 2
Clry CCUHQ.LL_,: RPEAL BS™IE, /LAND USE MmNF_y

The primary rote of a Board or Commission member is to provide advice to the City Council on policy issues thgt are
within the scope of that Board or Commission. With this in mind, what steps would you take to effectively exercise this
specific Board or Commission role? You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

IO BENONGE W e v HE&EAavy LIFNnGY OF A Presser ov.
#.PPLlc:fmo\I_. WITH Eactunl. AnD %&wmm:/ ANBLY SIS, (S Twg
CONTEXT o= B 1. PUBLIC. PARTI. pATIa,

List any relevant education, training or experience that demonstrates your ability to effectively serve on this Board or
Commission. You may attach a separate sheet of paper.

SEE , ARevE.




Applicant's Name They DE Vious <o,
10. List and provide a brief description of your current or last occupation.

LCENSED cA- ArrroralEv.

11. Have you attended a City Council, Board or Commission meeting, Town Hall meeting or Public Workshop? If so,
please describe what you learned and what improvements you would suggest the City consider.
T e Arteceilers A PEW MeEETING-S.
VMPROVE MENTS  AGT" TRLE PLAcE aJ THE AREA-
__OF REEP/ni~ TRE. DeXsion] /AMM.SL;] DELIEE RATION
FOCVUSED fov "ON_ qracsd
12. Describe your involvement in community activities, volunteer and civic organizations.

SEE , ATTAeHED .

13. Do you have any physical or mental constraints which may limit your ability to perform the duties of a Board or
Commission member? If yes, what can be done to accommodate these constraints?

No .

(Note: Pursuant to the Americans with Disabiliies Act, the City of San Juan Bautista will make reasonable efforts to accomquate
persons with qualified disabilities during the Boards and Commissions inferview process. If you require special accommodatiors,
please contact the City Clerk at least five days in advance of any scheduled interview.)

| certify under penalty of perjury that all statements | have made on this application are true and correct. | hereby
authorize the City of San Juan Bautista to investigate the accuracy of this information from any person or organization,
and | release the City of San Juan Bautista and all persons and organizations from all claims and liabilities arising from
such investigation or the supplying of information for such investigation. | acknowledge that any false statement or
misrepresentation on this application or supplementary materials will be cause for refusal of appointment or immediate
dismissal at any time during the period of my appointment.

YOUR APPLICATION IS NOT COMPLETE UNTIL IT IS SIGNED AND RETURNED.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

A Board or Commission member is a public official. As such, it is necessary to provide contact information to
the public. Please note that all information provided on this form becomes a public record after it is officially
filed. Please do not include any information on this form that you do not want posted on the City’s web site and
the City’'s Official Roster.

Applicants appointed to the Planning Commission and Histerical Resources Board are required to file the Fa-ir
Political Practices Commission (FPPC) Statements of Economic Interest (Form 700), which are also a public
\;ecord. A copy of this form is available in the City Clerk’s office or by visiting www.fppc.ca.gov.

Signature of =
Applicant W Date _S£PT. 13, Z022-

Please mail, fax, or deljver to: City Hall, P.O. Box 1420, 311 Second St., San Juan Bautista, CA 95045,
FAX: 623-4093.




DANIEL J. DE VRIES

EDUCATION:

EMPLOYMENT:

1990 - 2000

2000 - 2004

2004 — present

COMMUNITY:

San Jose State University
Bachelor of Arts, Economics;
Bachelor of Arts, Literature.

University of the Pacific
Juris Doctor

Hoge, Fenton, Jones & Appel, Inc., San Jose, CA

Civil litigation and transactional: Phillips Petroleum, Bartlesville, OK
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Com pany, Akron OH; Sears Roebuck and Co.,
Chicago IL; Schnitzer Steel Corporation, Portland OR.

fienton & Keller, Inc., Monterey CA

Civil litigation, transactional, construction, real estate: Pebble Beach
Company, Pacific Grove, CA; Schnitzer Steel Corporation, Portland, OR.

De Vries Law Group, San Juan Bautista, CA

Land use, agriculture, transactional, civil litigation: Earthbound Farm, San
Juan, CA; Reiter Affiliated, Oxnard, CA; Driscoll’s, Watsonville, CA:
Sunset Bay Farms, Inc., Watsonville, CA; Schnitzer Steel Corporation,
Portland, OR; Leal Vineyards, Hollister, CA: Pisoni Vineyards, Gonzales,
CA; Calera Vineyards, Hollister, CA; Bonny Doon Vineyards, Santa Cruz,
CA; agriculture.

San Juan Bautista Planning Commission, 1990 —2004; San Benito County
Planning Commission, 2004 — 2016; San Juan Bautista City Council, 2016
—2020; San Juan Fire Dept.: Co-founder, San Benito Arts Council:
Founder, “Save San Juan Valley”; Founding Member, San Juan Rotary
Club; Board Member, San Benito Health Foundation; Board Member,
Community Media Access Partnership (CMAP); San Juan Aromas Little
League; Board Member, Marle Holte Holiday Dinners.



T

]

City of San Juan Bautista
Planning Commission/Historic Resources Board

Notice of Open Seats

City Leaders are seeking qualified community members
to help shape our future.

The City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista is now
accepting applications to fill a vacancy on the San Juan Bautista
Planning Commission and Historic Resources Board. The
unexpired term ends December 2024, with the option to apply
again.

Position requirements, as established in the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code, include San Juan Bautista residency and must
be registered to vote in the City of San Juan Bautista.
Additionally, Planning Commissioners are required to attend
training, and should have an interest and knowledge in historic
preservation.

Planning Commission/Historic Resources Board meetings are
held the first Tuesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. in City Hall or
remotely, by Zoom video conferencing.

To apply for the position please submit an application (available
on the city website at san-juan-bautista.ca.us) and a letter of
interest to the City Manager’s office in City Hall by Friday,
September 16, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. Letters of interest will be kept
on file for one (1) year.

City Hall - 311 Second Street - P.O. Box 1420 - San Juan Bautista, CA 95045

1
I
1
1

g




Item #6A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: DISCUSS ESTABLISHING A GOLF CART
TRANSPORTATION PLAN IN SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

MEETING DATE: September 20, 2022

DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

No action is recommended on this matter. It is recommended that the City Council receive and
file this Report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Golf Carts (aka Neighborhood Electric Vehicle or “NEV™) have advanced quickly since their
introduction to America in 1954. They were the only form of multi-passenger motored
transportation in Avalon on Catalina Island until 2018. In the 1990’s cities were designed to
accommodate golf carts, the largest of which is Del Web’s Sun City, north of Sacramento in
Lincoln Hills. This is a retirement community with a large golf course. Streets were designed and
built with golf cart lanes, and special designated pathways to connect between homes and
buildings. Every garage is designed for a golf cart (2 cars + 1). Many other cities have since
adopted policies and plans to include this form of “multi-modal transportation.”

The original laws can be found in the State’s Streets and Highways Code (Division 2.5 Chapter 6,
sections 1950-1961, allowing the use of NEV’s in cities that have adopted a Golf Cart
Transportation Plan. Then in 2005, AB2353 was approved expanding the NEV legislation to
include the definitions within the Vehicle Code and the Streets and Highways code. Shortly
thereafter, the City of Lincoln adopted the attached “NEV Transportation Plan.”

Without having to delve into too much detail, Lincoln’s NEV Plan does an excellent job describing
the many benefits of accommodating NEVs. This Plan expands on the work done previously in
Lincoln’s Sun City neighborhood. Below is a summary of benefits.



Item #6A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

B. Impact and Benefits
1. General
Many other entities 1n the region wall benefit from the City of Lincoln s experience mn
unplementing an NEV transportation plan. When the plan is complete. the process will be
made available to other eatities to help facilitate their own NEV tragsportation plan.
Here are a few of the benefits of the Lincoln NEV Project:

® The emergence of an NEV friendiy Lmcein has allowed home buslders in Lincoln to
custonuze pew development to accommodate NEVs
Lincoln plans to inciude NEV routes m thewr General Plan update
NEV routes can double as bicycle routes with proper design thus the miles of bike
tradds wall mncrease withn the Ciry,

* Accommodating NEVs 15 more effective and less costly than dial-a-ride program:
for unmiet transit ueeds

e A Quabkiy improvements result from the vse of small electne motoss that enut oo
pollntants m the local atmosphere.  Over half of the otherwise short cold-start
antomobile tnps m cities the size of Lincoln are withun the range of NEVs.

e NEVS can achieve the energv equivalent of over 150 mpg for a standard gasoline
powered vehicle.

* NEV use provades for a more cohesive commmuuty due to their limsted travel range.
NEV navel encourages res:dents to support their local businesses

* NEVS provide mobility for people who cannot dsive an automwobile. inchiding asing
dovers.
NEVS are affordable and can reduce personal travel cost,
The NEV wndustry is seemg an mcrease in the use of these vehicles for use bevond
the golf cowrse

HTMELimasin - NEV Phass I Deswmoncs CE3" Towazprrnmis Pan! § 485 FINAL MEV Traxspormton Pimen dug? N8 dov Page 2a7)%

In 2010, AB584 was signed into law, refining, and further defining the two pre-existing laws. In
summary, the laws require:
e ANEV Plan that defines what a legal NEV is
e Requires a California Driver’s License and insurance to operate one
 Identifies where golf cart lanes can be developed within the city by a traffic engineer and
restricts the use of a golf cart to these special designated areas. It defines three types of
golf cart lanes, the most protective is a Class “I,” then “II” and “II.” Class III lanes are
the simplest, and provide for shared use with automobile traffic on streets with speeds of

35 miles or less. Every street in San Juan Bautista meets this criterion. They can cross
state highways where traffic is controlled.

Developing the Plan seeks input from the community, COG, CalTrans and law enforcement. The
City Council must make specific findings addressing safety. The Lincoln Plan agrees that NEVs
are safe, and summarizes other benefits:



Item #6A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

NEV's are a desirable new form of transportation for many reasons:

NEVs have a great safety record.

NEV are zero enussion electric vehicles.

NEVs improve air quality.

The energy consumption of an NEV 15 less than 1°5 that of a conventicnal automobile.
NEVs provide freedom and contmued mobility for aging or unpaired drsvers.

NEVs are affordable

NEV's support the local economy by encouraging residents to shop locally.,

NEVs encourage use of existing public transportation

* 0 9 s 00

Here are the steps Lincoln took to implement the NEV Transportation Plan:

C. Project Staras
The following steps having been taken by the Citv in crder to unplement the NEV
transportation plan:

e Placer County Air Pollution Control Distrzct (PCAPCD) approved $10.000.00 on Angust
14. 2003 towards Lincoln’s NEV transportation plan

e  The City has reviewed the Draft Twelve Budges Golf Cart Transportation Plan (Fehr &
Peers) m order to coordinate that plan within the proposed NEV rransportation plan

e SACOG funding pusdelmes have been altered to mchude NEVS per the Citv's request.
Prior to the City’s mnput. SACOG s fanding guedelines did not meation NEVs.

¢ The City has cocrdivated with PCAPCD to include NEV guestions to be included m
PCAPCD seni-annual fransportation suevey.

¢  The City has coordinated with Assemblyman Tum Leskie's office regarding AB 2353

The City has subnufted NEV funding requests to SACOG through PCTPA. and to date

has received funding approval for over $270.000 from SACOG.

AB 2333 signed into Law on January 1. 2005.

Public Workshop held on August 30. 2005

MUTCD approved expennmental signage and striping

Developed NEV Standards.

NEV Standards shared with the Citv of Rockhin

Putnam Award for Excellence reciprent 2006,

1 85 481-Lymcwin - NEV Phave I DovumenaMT 1 Tranporrmivs Mas 8 481 FINAL ST Trangpermasn Poodngi 0% dor Page Taf 1%

In 2020, the City received a $180,000 grant from CalTrans to develop an active transportation plan
(“ATP”). The application was submitted with the help of non-profit Civic Well. Civic Well
conducted extensive public outreach the week of June 26-28, 2022. Later a design charette was
held at the VFW. Since then, the City added an accessibility assessment to the draft “Existing
Conditions” report to address the need for better pedestrian accessibility where there are no
sidewalks or where there are barriers.



Item #6A
City Council Meeting
September 20, 2022

DISCUSSION:

The background describes the benefits of opening streets to accommodate Neighborhood Electric
Vehicles, the safety of modern designs, legal framework, and provides an example of how to draft
an NEV Transportation Plan. It updates the City Council on the current effort to draft an ATP. If
the City Council agrees with (hese assertions and would like to move forward with this idea, staff
will describe its understanding of the path forward.

Some form of preliminary review needs to be completed to establish the feasibility of taking such
action to adopt and implement a NEV ‘I'ransportation Plan. The City may be best served to tap
into the team effort currently underway within the scope of the ATP. The City can approve the
budget for a change order to that existing scope, and seek funding from COG or other resources to
help pay for the work.

If this preliminary plan meets the expectations of the City Council, and the City approves moving
forward, then the project becomes part of the Strategic Plan, is budgeted and an RFP is sent to
various engineering firms. After a review of the benefits, this action would easily fit into a
“Quality of Life” category. It also supports the Climate Action Plan being drafted, to reduce
greenhouse gasses, and reliance on fossil fuel. It will have economic benefits if it truly helps the
community “shop locally.” There are several different funding opportunities mentioned in the
Lincoln process provided below that would include locally, the COG, Monterey Bay Air Quality
Control Board, and Cal Trans.

As the City implements its Pavement Management Plan, it has been able to use the Gas Tax and
SB1 funding from the State, with local Measure G monies to pay for more than $1 million in street
improvements. The NEV Transportation Plan (as well as the ATP) can then be considered together
with the next phase of streets to be resurfaced so they can be striped to accommodate NEV’s,

The Lincoln NEV Transportation Plan and the relevant State laws are attached for reference.



5 IWELVE BRIDGES DR

) E R Prepared by MHM Engineers & Surveyors

T~

PV et FINAL - August 2006

Sy M-H-M

LHTUHLERS A SUNBVEYONT SINCE V802




Four Lane Arterial with
Class II NEV/Bike Lanes

SEN A AT e

City of Lincoln MHM Engineers & Surveyors
John E. Pedri, P.E., Leco Rubio, P.E.,
Director of Public Works Project Engineer
Carl Walker, P.E., Steven Ainsworth, P.E.,
Senior Engineer Project Manager
640 Fifth Street Robert O. Watkins, P.E.,
Lincoln, CA 95648 Principal Investigator

(916) 645-8576
1082 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100
Roseville, CA 95661
(916) 783-4100

Sage Community Group Autumn Wind Fehr & Peers
Annie R. Embree, Esq.,

SCG, Greg Gilbert, Rich Ledbetter,
Legal Consultant Air Quality Transportation/Planning

(530) 885-5123 (916) 663-6353 (916) 773-1900



[ s 1 e o ]
NEIGHBORHOOD ELECTRIC VEHICLES (NEV)
TRANSPORTATION PLAN
TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER I - PROJECT OVERVIEW 1
A PROGRAMDESCRIPTION. .ot-.rstssssccscensnsesessnsseeresseesssssresesessmsoeseeoseseoessoeeseseses e eeeeeeee . 1
B. IMPACT AND BENBFITS. .oocevevavsesosseervssesssssos s sonees s ssnsseseeesessssoeseesseessoeeseosesesoeso 2
o PROJECT STATUS.....ccoortcivreniisssensisss s sesssssssasissss s esesessesssoseseetoee e eseeeseeeeeoeees oo 3
D.  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS OF ASSEMBLY BILL INOL 2353 et s e et ee e 4
E. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS OF CTCDC FOR EXPERIMENTAL SIGNAGE AND STRIPING 4
CHAPTER II - LEGAL CONSTRAINTS / OPPORTUNITIES 5

AL DEFINITIONS w.ooceriecimnieeiiisiieesnsese s s eesseeeeeseso

B.  SUMMARY OF AB 2353 INTRODUCED BY ASSEMBLYMAN LESLIE ....
C.  EXISTING REGULATIONS FOR NEVSs

D. SAFETY STANDARDS ........oovvommrmeesmoroeseoooeooeoeooeooeoeoeooos
E.  NEVSINGOLF CART LANES7
F.  NEV/BICYCLE LANE L0171 7.8 11:1( 0 i 2 7
CHAPTER III - ENERGY/COST CONSIDERATIONS 8
A.  ENERGY CONSUMPTION bbb eSO b e n e s e na e RS et s et e e e enee s et s nnes et seneeensees s
B.  OPERATIONAL COSTS (FOR STANDARD FLEET CAR AND NEV ) s o mmse mopsoomresnssxssmmasmmensermed
C. POTENTIAL ENERGY SOURCES ..ooccc..cossuvestisnssonsnsecsssesscoseesesssssessessesoseeeseeesseeeeseooseseesees o 8
D. ENERGY BENEFITS B T T A ST
E.  INCENTIVES/SUBSIDIES NSRSt s s e s nn s n ey emes nns e R P YO KRR OR NN S e RN e e s v e e iaanrene e i 8
CHAPTER IV - AIR QUALITY BENEFITS ..ooveevovevsesorsesnson, 9
A AR QUALITY BETTING eeeersesssessiinissassissé sbsisssissssseseoessesesseesersmsesassseessssessonmee e eeeeees sttt 9
B.  NEV EMISSION BENEFITS TO LINCOLN AND THE AIR BASIN......ovotiieeceericsssssissscesssssssesessesessssssesssssosessssssoesss 9
C.  CoST-EFFECTIVENESS OF NEV AR EMISSION BENEFITS FOR LINCOLN ........... 10
D. LUKE AR FORCE BASE NEV FLEET DEMONSTRATION PROGRAM REPORT .....ovovosooooeoooooeooo 10
E.  COMMUNITY DESIGN BENEFITS............. NSRS SR e E s eV eSS SA AR pan SR aaa s S a b v e an A nasrenannnsasrarany | |
F.  ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE et e st rea s RS SRS e baa s asE ke Era e nennesnaaesnensesneressnsene ] ]
G. CONCLUSION ~ AIR QUALITY BENEFITS v.vvosvsroeee s ecrereesssssesseeesssesseoesessseesseossseoee 12
CHAPTER V - COMMUNITY CONSIDERATIONS 13
A.  NEVS PROVIDE MULTIPLE COMMUNITY BENEFITS L..iiiiiicic s esrsns et e eeeeseses s st 13
B.  DISCUSSION OF OTHER NEV/GOLF CART COMMUNITIES ......oovevreetieoseterioneeesseseees s ses e 13
CHAPTER VI - NEV TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 15
Ac BACKGROUND....ccoocccvretstietessmssssssssssenssenesesssssssesesssesesseese s e es et 15
B. DATA COLLECTION AND REVIEW ...o.v...oooveoeeecosereoreeee s oo ooososoeeoooeeeeso o aen 2L S 15
C." MODE SHARE AND TRIP GENERATION SUMMARY .........oooesreros oo oooooooosees 16
D. " TRAFFIC VOLUME DATA c.vvvsccoecetrernce oot 18
E.  STANDARD NEV SIGNAGE AND STREET MARKINGS ..ottt ias ettt e tn e s s ses ottt e 22
F.  NEV STANDARDS: LANE WIDTHS AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS .....ocverruaaniensianreseieeerseneseesseenseseseessonss 22
G. NEV/GOLF CART PARKING FACILITIES .. .vcocvvvsvvreseceoessesesceeeese oo 26

N:A05401-Lincoln - NEW’lm_se lllDacu;lenlslNE V Transportation l’lan105401—f7V;4L NEV Tra;spam;tio;t Plan-Aug2006.doc Page i



(—
LIST OF TABLES
TABLE 1 — ANNUAL OPERATING COSTS .uu.vuuruecieoeranssssssssereensiossessessssasessssssesssssses e oeeeeesessessesessseesteesess s e esee e s
TABLE 2 — OPERATING COSTS PER MILE ....vvuivuriveriirennemtsiceseessasesssasssssssassssessesseessmsesmssssesessesssssenessmosssssesesseseeseesesns
TABLE 3 — LBS/DAY EMISSIONS REDUCED WITH 5000 /NEVs ...

TABLE 4 — TONS/YEAR EMISSIONS REDUCED WITH 5000 NEVS
TABLE 5 — AIR QUALITY BENEFITS .. -
TABLE 6 — MODE SHARES FROM THE 2000 CENSUS JOURNEY TO WORK . SRS R— N
TABLE 7 — TRIP GENERATION SUMMARY FOR SUN CITY - LINCOLN HILLS AND lWELVF BR[DGES AR e ]

TABLE 8 — AIR QUALITY BENEFITS OF NEV AND BICYCLE USE .......vevverivseeeeeeesrersrosesseseessessssessess seessseeesesesss s esoas 18
TABLE 9 — AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUME LEVEL OF SERVICE THRESHOLDS ....................................................... 19
TABLE 10 ~ OPERATIONAL FEASIBILITY OF NEVS ON STUDY ROADWAYS ... eeovooeseesseeeeeeoee e oee et e oo eeessees oo 20
TABLE 11 ~NEV vs. GOLF CART SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPARISONS ...ooooooooeooeestesseeos oot s eeee e 23
TABLE 12 —~ OPERATIONAL CITARACTERISTICS ACROSS LOW-SPEED MODES..........ooovmeee oo oo oo e eee e 24
LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE | —PROJECT STUDY AREA 11..ucovtirecreormemsminssssissssmsssscesessesesioseesoeestoasessssessesssssssssesssssesssssssssesseseeseeosseesees s i6
FIGURE 2 — AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUMES.............coriiveieureestreesessseseeesessssessessessstesesssseseesseseseeesesssessesesssssso s 21
FIGURE 3 — PROPOSED CIRCULATION PLAN .....uvvceveveseoeeeseeeeeeeeseses e sseveseseees et eesssees s PR PPN S 25
LIST OF APPENDIXES

APPENDIX A ~ STREET CROSS SECTIONS

APPENDIX B -~ STANDARD SIGNS AND MARKINGS

APPENDIX C - PARKING AND CIIARGING STATION STANDARDS
APPENDIX D— ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 2353

APPENDIX E - CTCDC APPROVED MINUTES

APPENDIX F - PHOTOGRAPHS '

APPENDIX G—NEV TRANSPORTATION PLAN MAP

N:\05401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEV Transportation Plan0S401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-A ug2006.doc  Page ii




M-H-M

NEIGHBORHOOD ELECTRIC VEHICLES (NEV)
TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Chapter I - Project Overview

Program Description
The City of Lincoln has requested city-wide NEV routes that would "enable any resident to
travel from their home to Downtown Lincoln" reports Councilmember Tom Cosgrove.

The City of Lincoln NEV project is an effort to accommodate the City's changing urban
lifestyle by encouraging the use of Neighborhood Electric Vehicles, or NEVs for short. This
effort will result in air quality improvements, community cohesion, energy savings, reduced
travel costs, increased mobility, independence for aging drivers, and greater use of public
transit. NEVs are small, electric powered personal vehicles. They have a limited range and
can travel up to speeds of 25 mph. They are an ideal transportation alternative for short, (up
to 30 miles) local trips. While they may look like a golf-cart to the casual observer, they are
actually a motor vehicle requiring a driver’s license, registration, and insurance. NEVs such
as the Chrysler GEM are specifically designed to meet federal safety standards for low-speed
vehicles as defined in Section 571.500, Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations.

NEVs are a desirable new form of transportation for many reasons:

® NEVs have a great safety record.

® NEVs are zero emission electric vehicles.

* NEVs improve air quality.

* The energy consumption of an NEV is less than 1/5 that of a conventional automobile.
® NEVs provide freedom and continued mobility for aging or impaired drivers.

NEVs are affordable.
* NEVs support the local economy by encouraging residents to shop locally.
* NEVs encourage use of existing public transportation.

California's first major citywide NEV transportation project is well underway in the City of
Lincoln. Lincoln plans relatively minor modifications to accommodate NEVSs. The city will
implement signing and striping improvements, create special parking spaces, and build an
NEV crossing at the Auburn Ravine, a stream that divides this fast-growing city. Businesses
have already begun to accommodate and encourage NEV transportation by providing special
parking for their NEV customers.

The City of Lincoln is in a very favorable position to accommodate the beneficial use of
NEVs. NEVs are already circulating in the Sun City Lincoln Hills development and special
parking areas are provided in the adjacent Safeway and Raley’s shopping center. The City
believes that with the advent of a comprehensive NEV circulation system, the number of
NEVs users will dramatically increase.

To accommodate use of NEVs, the City of Lincoln must become “NEV Ready”. An NEV
ready city can be defined as having the necessary infrastructure, including charging facilities,
striping, signage, parking, and education to safely accommodate NEV travel. The City
intends to implement these changes in stages. This plan will allow limited NEV use in the
near future, culminating in a comprehensive NEV travel plan throughout the City.

N:\05401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEV Transportation Plam\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 1 of 26




M-H-M
==
In accordance with Assembly Bill (AB 2353), the City of Lincoln plan envisions three levels

of NEV routes:

Class I NEV Route;

Class I NEV routes provide a completely separate right-of-way for the exclusive use of
NEVs, pedestrians and bikes with cross-flow minimized. The minimum paved width for a
Class I NEV route is 14-feet (for two way travel) with a minimum 2-foot wide graded area
provided adjacent to the pavement. The proposed bridge over Auburn Ravine connecting
Sun City Lincoln Hills area to E Street is an example of a Class I NEV route. It is the intent
to design all Class I NEV routes to allow combined NEV/bicycle use.

Class 11 NEV Route:

Class II NEV routes are designated as a separate striped lane adjacent to traffic. There is one
striped lane for each travel direction. The desirable minimum width for a Class I NEV route
is 7-feet. Del Webb Blvd. is an example of a Class I! NEV lanc. It is thc intent to design all

Class II NEV routes to allow combined NEV/bicycle use.

Class 111 NEV Route:

Class TII NEV routes provide for shared use with automobile traffic on streets with a posted
speed limit of 35 mph or less. All residential streets within Sun City Lincoln Hills are Class
IH NEV routes. The City will provide signage to direct NEVs to preferred streets. Some
streets within the City that are posted 35 mph may be designated as not appropriate for NEV
use.

(NEV Route plans are shown in Appendix A.)

B. Impact and Benefits
1. General
Many other entities in the region will benefit from the City of Lincoln’s experience in
implementing an NEV transportation plan. When the plan is complete, the process will be
made available to other entities to help facilitate their own NEV transportation plan.
Here are a few of the benefits of the Lincoln NEV Project:

* The emergence of an NEV friendly Lincoln has allowed home builders in Lincoln to
customize new development to accommodate NEVs.

* Lincoln plans to include NEV routes in their General Plan update.

® NEV routes can double as bicycle routes with proper design, thus the miles of bike
trails will increase within the City.

® Accommodating NEVs is more effective and less costly than dial-a-ride programs
for unmet transit needs.

®  Air Quality improvements result from the use of small electric motors that emit no
pollutants in the local atmosphere. Over half of the otherwise short cold-start
automobile trips in cities the size of Lincoln are within the range of NEVs.

® NEVs can achieve the energy equivalent of over 150 mpg for a standard gasoline
powered vehicle.

* NEV use provides for a more cohesive community due to their limited travel range.

® NEV travel encourages residents to support their local businesses.

® NEVs provide mobility for people who cannot drive an automobile, including aging
drivers.

® NEVs are affordable and can reduce personal travel cost.

* The NEV industry is secing an increase in the use of these vehicles for use beyond
the golf course.

N:\05401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEY Transportation Plan\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 2 of 26



2.

M-HM
===

NEVs Promote Safety and Provide Independence for Aging Drivers

With the State’s aging population, we are confronted with the conflicting interest of
providing continued mobility to aging drivers while promoting a safe driving
environment for all drivers. The State has implemented a process that will result in new
driver testing, which will result in the suspension of automobile driver's licenses' for
some people. The City’s plan includes a proposal for a separate classification of driver’s
license for NEVs.

The loss of a driver's license often brings lifestyle changes that make it hard to cope.
Understandably, no one wants to feel isolated and dependent on others for their personal
mobility. NEVs are an ideal solution to meet the States competing interest between
mobility and safety. NEVs will provide personal mobility to local stops including the
grocery store, bus stops and the doctor's office. An NEV commute beats the alternatives
of risking a high-speed accident in a conventional automobile or sitting at home waiting
for a ride from a friend or relative.

Taking the Lead

The City of Lincoln, the fastest growing city in the west, has fostered the use of NEVs
within Sun City Lincoln Hills, but that is not enough. The City envisions a plan to
promote NEV travel throughout the City. With the City's growing retirement population,
the opportunity to accommodate NEV travel is at hand. City engineers have already
signed and striped some City streets for NEV use. Merchants are providing special
parking and charging stations. The City is planning for a pathway and bridge across the
Aubum Ravine to accommodate NEV travel on both sides of town. While the City of
Lincoln appears to be ahead of the rest of the state, the City is not ahead of their people.
More NEVs are on City streets every day. There are NEVs in Rocklin, Roseville,
Auburn, and Folsom today and their presence is expanding.

C. Project Status
The following steps having been taken by the City in order to implement the NEV
transportation plan:

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD) approved $10,000.00 on August
14, 2003 towards Lincoln’s NEV transportation plan.

The City has reviewed the Draft Twelve Bridges Golf Carl Transportation Plan (Fehr &
Peers) in order to coordinate that plan within the proposed NEV transportation plan.
SACOG funding guidelines have been altered to include NEVs per the City’s request.
Prior to the City’s input, SACOG’s funding guidelines did not mention NEV.

The City has coordinated with PCAPCD to include NEV questions to be included in
PCAPCD semi-annual transportation survey.

The City has coordinated with Assemblyman Tim Leslie's office regarding AB 2353,
The City has submitted NEV funding requests to SACOG through PCTPA, and to date
has received funding approval for over $270,000 from SACOG.

AB 2353 signed into Law on January 1, 2005.

Public Workshop held on August 30, 2005

MUTCD approved experimental signage and striping.

Developed NEV Standards.

NEV Standards shared with the City of Rocklin

Putnam Award for Excellence recipient 2006.

N:\05401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEV Transportation Plan\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 3 of 26



MHM
D. Reporting Requirements of Assembly Bill No. 2353

City of Lincoln and Rocklin shall jointly submit a report to the Legislature on or before
January 1, 2008, in consultation with the Department of Transportation, the Department of
the California Highway Patrol, and local law enforcement agencies.

The reporl shall include the followiug:

e A description of all NEV transportation plans and their elements that have been
authorized up to that time.

*  An evaluation of the effectiveness of the NEV transportation plans, including their
impact on traffic flows and safety.
* A recommendation as to whether Chapter 7 should be terminated, continued in

existence applicable solely to the City of Lincoln and the City of Rocklin in the
County of Placer, or expanded statewide.

Chapter 7 shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2009, and as of that date is repealed,
unless a later enacted statue, that in cnacted before January 1, 2009, deletes or extends that

date.
E. Reporting Requirements of CTCDC for experimental signage and striping

Reporting requirements for the CTCDC are similar to the requirements of AB 2353, as stated
above. Ii is recommended the report be submitied to both agencies at the same time.

N:AOS401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocaments\WEV Transportation Plan\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 4 0of 26



M-H-M
===

Chapter 11 - Legal Constraints / Opportunities

This section will outline the current federal, state, and local laws and ordinances relative to
implementing a comprehensive NEV transportation plan as well as define the terms
necessary to describe such a program. While the existing regulatory framework (AB 2353)
allows for NEV travel within the City of Lincoln and Rocklin, an expansion of AB 2353
statewide would facilitate and promote the use of NEVs throughout the State.

A. Definitions

1. “Low Speed Vehicle” or “LSV” is defined as a motor vehicle, other than a motor truck,
having four wheels on the ground and an unladen weight of 1,800 pounds or less, that is
capable of propelling itself at a minimum speed of 20 miles per hour and a maximum
speed of 25 miles per hour, on a paved level surface. A ‘low speed vehicle’ is not
considered a golf cart, except when operated pursuant to Section 21115 or 21115.1 of the
California Vehicle Code (CVC) pertaining to operations within a golf course
facility/community. (CVC Section 385.5)

Low-speed vehicle is a relatively new motor vehicle classification created by the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) in 1998 to permit the manufacture and
circulation of small, four-wheeled motor vehicles with top speeds of 20-25 miles per
hour. This new classification is codified as Section 571.500 Title 49 code of Federal
Regulations and California Vehicle Code Section 385.5. LSVs are required to have
California license plates in order to utilize public roads.

2. “Neighborhood Electric Vehicle” (NEV) is an electrically powered LSV. They are
manufactured by car companies and meet federal safety standards for low speed vehicles.
Examples include the Daimler Chrysler “GEM” car. While “low-speed vehicle” is
technically the correct term, NEV is the more popularly used and recognized term. NEVs
are required to have a California license plate in order to utilize public roads.

3. *“Conventional Golf Cart” is a motor vehicle having not less than three wheels in
contact with the ground, weighs less than 1,300 pounds, is designed to be operated at no
more than 15 miles per hour, is designed to carry golf equipment and not more than two
persons, including the driver. CVC Section 345. A conventional-golf cart is not a low-
speed vehicle.

4. “Speed-modified Golf Cart” means a golf cart that is modified to meet the safety
requirements of Section 571.500 of Title 49 of the code of Federal Requirements and
designed to travel at not more than 20 miles per hour. A modified golf-cart must be
inspected and approved as meeting all the safety requirements for a low-speed vehicle
and is required to have a California license plate in order to utilize public roads.

5. “City” means the City of Lincoln.
6. “Study Area” means the City of Lincoln’s sphere of influence.
7. “NEV Lanes” means all publicly owned facilities that provide for NEV travel including

roadways designated by signs or permanent marking which are shared with pedestrian,
bicyclists, and other motorists in the plan area.

N:\05401-Lincoln - NEV Phase IND \NEV Tr

portation Plan\D5401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 5 of 26




M-HM
==
B. Summary of AB 2353 Introduced by Assemblyman Leslie

1. “It is the intent of the Legislature, in enacting this chapter, to authorize the City of
Lincoln and the City of Rocklin in the County of Placer to establish a neighborhood
electric vehicle (NEV) transportation plan for a plan area in the city. It is the further
intent of the Legislature that this transportation plan be designed and developed to best
serve the functional travel needs of the plan area, to have a physical safety of the NEV
driver’s person and property as a major planning component, and to have the capacity to
accommodate NEV drivers of every legal age and range of skills. It is the intent of the
Legislature, in enacting this chapier, io encourage discussions beiween the Legislature,
the Department of Motor Vehicles, and the California Highway Patrol regarding the
adoption of a new classification for licensing motorists who use neighborhood electric
vehicles.” — 1963, Chapter 7, AB 2353

2. For the cities of Lincoln and Rocklin, AB 2353 brings California Law up to date with the
new Federa! Regulations governing Low Specd Vehicles including Neighborhood
Electric Vehicles. AB 2353 provides a formal process for Lincoln and Rocklin to obtain
agency approvals to bridge the legal gaps that currently exist for extensive use of
Neighborhood Electric Vehicles. In doing this, AB 2353 provides a tool for planning,
design, and implementation of a comprehensive NEV transportation program.

3. The current Street and Highways Code Section 1951, which applies to golf carts, was
enacted prior to federal legislation designating a low-speed motor vehicle category and
prior to the popular emergence of NEVs. NEVs are a safer mode of transportation than
golf-carts as they have stricter safety requirements. Further, unlike golf-carts, NEVs are
motor vehicles subject to same rules and regulations governing motor vehicles.

4. A key aspect of AB 2353 is it provides local jurisdictions with choice. Federal Law
allows NEVs on all streets posted 35 mph or less. AB 2353 allows Lincoln and Rocklin
to determine which sireets posted 35mph and under are appropriate for NEVs. The City
of Lincoln is supporting NEV use, but has some streets posted 35 mph that are deemed
unsafe for NEVs.

5. Until now NEVs were prohibited from streets posted above 35 mph. AB 2353 allows
NEVs on streets posted above 35 mph where designated NEV lanes are available.
Similar to bicycle laws, the bill describes three classes of NEV lanes.

6. AB 2353 allows NEVs to use and cross State highways where deemed safe and
appropriate by the City and the State Department of Transportation

7. According to a recent survey of NEV owners, NEV users in the City of Lincoln drive an
average of 1000 miles per year per NEV. That is 1000 miles of otherwise short cold start
automobile trips. AB 2353 lets the cities of Lincoln and Rocklin accommodate the
expanding popuiarity of low cost Neighborhood Electric Vehicles, and reap the
transportation and air quality improvement benefits.

8. NEVs are also an ideal transportation option for aging drivers. As low-speed vehicles
with a top speed of 25 mph and a limited travel range, NEVs have the ability to provide
continued mobility and independence to aging and disabled drivers. Through AB 2353
the DMV committed to work with Assemblyman Leslie’s office and the City of Lincoln
to explore the feasibility of offering separate category of driver’s license to NEV drivers.

9. AB 2353 was signed by the governor and became law January 1, 2005.

NAO3401-Lincoln - NEV Phase IIDocuments\NEV Transportation Plam\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.duc

Page 6 of 26



M-H-M
==

C. Existing Regulations for NEVs
1. NEVs must comply with all the rules and regulations for a motor vehicle as set for in the
California Vehicle Code. Vehicle Code §21251 provides in relevant part that:

“...a low-speed vehicle is subject to all the provisions applicable to a motor vehicle, and
the driver of a low-speed vehicle is subject to all the provisions applicable to the driver of
a motor vehicle or other vehicle, when applicable, by this code or any other code, with
the exception of those provisions which, by their very nature, can have no application.”

2. NEVs must be registered with the State Department of Motor Vehicles and the driver
must hold a valid California driver's license and be insured.

3. NEVs may travel on any street with a posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour or less.
However, the City, by local ordinance or resolution, may restrict or prohibit the use of
NEVs. CVC §21266(a). The City plans to designate approved NEV travel routes to
direct NEV traffic to the safest available route.

4. NEVs may cross state-highways at controlled intersections only. Crossing at
uncontrolled intersections is permitted with the approval of the agency with primary
responsibility for that intersection. CVC §21260(2).

D. Safety Standards
NEVs must meet all safety standards for low-speed vehicles as defined by NTHSA. All
vehicles sold as NEVs, such as the GEM, already meet these safety standards. Modified golf
carts must include these safety modifications to comply with federal safety mandates. All
NEVs must be equipped with:

* Seat belts (lap only, or lap and shoulder)

® Brake lights

e Rear lights

e Headlights

® Mirrors, onc of the following selection; (1) left side and right side mirrors, (2) left-side
and rear-view mirrors, or (3) multi-directional cross bar window.

*  Windshield

e Hom

Front and rear turn signal indicators

Rear red-reflectors

Parking brake

Covered passenger compartment.

e o o o

E. NEVs in Golf Cart Lanes
Current Law in Lincoln and Rocklin per AB 2353 allows dual use; however, outside of
Lincoln and Rocklin, a conflict still exists.

F. NEV/Bicycle Lane Compatibility
NEV travel is permitted by AB 2353 on roads with speed limits in excess of 35 mph where
there is a designated Class II NEV lane on the right shoulder. Bicycles are permitted to travel
in these designated NEV lanes.

N:O5401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\E V Transportation Plam\0540]-FINAL NEV Tramsportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 7 of 26




Chapter 111 - Energy/Cost Considerations

A, Energy Consumption
1. Standard Car (27.5 mpg)
2. NEV (Equivalent to 150mpg, 0.223 kwh/mile)

B. Operational Costs (For standard fleet car and NEV)

Table 1 — Annual Operating Costs

Annual Operatigg Costs *

Vehicie Type ‘Insurance Registration Kuel Costs Maintenance Total

NEV $200 1$50 1$16.90 $293.00 $559.90

Gas Auto $1,200  |$600 $292.40 8142800  |$3,520.40
|

Table 2 — Operating Costs per Mile

* Based on Data from the Luke AFB 9/14/2000 Reeort 11998 !yures!

I | .Average
. Annual | ‘ '10- 10-Year Vehicle
¥eh;cle Cost New Operating |Yrs '3:;1 age{YFAR Total gs:tra:::g Cost per
P Costs ' I("()Sl‘ Miles Mile P Mile
NEV $7,560  $560 10 ‘Rl 500 |Sll 65913,000 [80.043 $0.90

Gas Auto  $18,500 $3,520 10 51,850 iSSI,E\!S‘IZ‘%LODO $0.104 '$1.53

C. Potential Energy Sources
1. Photovoltaic Cells/Batteries
2. Fuel Cells
3. Utility/Batteries

D. Energy Benefits
The cost to operate an NEV is less than 1/5 that required for a conventional automobile. In
accordance with the July 1, 2002 report to CEC (p600-02-020F) demonstration of NEVs,
NEVs achieve an equivalent mpg of 150. The actual measured energy use is 0.223 kwh/mile.
The average auto mpg is 27.5 as of 2002, and less in urban traffic.

E. Incentives/Subsidies

1. Federal: 2.5% of purchase price tax credit
2. Local: designated parking spaces and lanes, free charging stations.

N:\D5401-Lincein - NEV Phuse INDocuments\NEV Transportation Plam05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page Li 0f26




Chapter IV - Air Quality Benefits

Air Quality Setting

The city of Lincoln is located within the Sacramento Federal Non-attainment Area (SFNA), a
region federally designated as “severe non-attainment” of federal air quality standards for
ozone air pollution. Only the Los Angeles basin in California is designated as “extreme”
with worse air quality. Under federal law, the SFNA must demonstrate attainment by 2005,
then maintain healthy air thereafter. NEVs will provide real, quantifiable emission benefits
for local and regional air attainment strategies.

NEV trips made possible by the development of this project will produce a variety of air
emission benefits to Lincoln and its citizens, and to the five-county air basin. Ozone air
pollution is formed by “tailpipe” oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and reactive organic gases (ROG)
mixing in the presence of sunlight. The great majority of local ozone air pollution comes
from “mobile sources”, with the largest portion resulting from light-duty on-road vehicle use.
Some air pollution also comes from evaporative (fuel) emissions that escape from the vehicle
during fueling and operation. In winter, carbon monoxide (CO), a product of incomplete
combustion that increases as temperatures drop, can be a problem near heavily traveled
intersections and in lower lying areas that tend to trap air pollutants in stagnant weather
conditions,

Vehicle exhaust also contains toxic air contaminants, such as benzene and formaldehyde.
Emission control systems take time to come up to operating temperature, especially in winter.
A recent report to the Califomia Energy Commission (TIAX, LLC) stated:

“It is well documented that cold-start emissions have significant impact on air quality.
Due to cold-start fuel enrichment, subsequent quenching of hydrocarbons in a cold
engine, and the delayed attainment of proper operating temperatures of the catalytic
converter, between 60 and 80% of the toxic air emissions from automobiles occur during
the cold-start period.”

The good news is that NEVs eliminate the issue of cold starts, with their high rates of toxic
and criteria pollutant emissions.

NEV Emission Benefits to Lincoln and the Air Basin

NEVs eliminate NOx, CO, ROG and toxics emissions that otherwise result from internal
combustion-powered vehicle. NEVs operating in Lincoln will displace gasoline vehicle
trips. To demonstrate the emission benefits of a successful NEV program, the following
assumptions were used to model the most important emission benefits with the
URBEMIS2002 mobile source emissions estimation program:

5000 NEVs at program buildout

e 2008 is the modeling year
* Each NEV will travel 1000 miles/year
® NOx is primary target; emission reductions annualized from summer conditions

Only vehicle emissions were calculated with URBEMIS200?2 (no area or construction
emissions)

Trip characteristics derived as 2.78 miles/each for 1000 mile/year

® Trips calculated as home to work

®  95% light duty passenger car and 5% light duty truck ratio assumed

N:105401-Lincoln - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEV Transportation Plan\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Aug2006.doc Page 9 of 26



M-H-M

=y

Table 3 - Lbs/Day Emissions Reduced with 5000 /NEVs

ROG NOx CcO SO2 PM10

lbs/day Ibs/day Ibs/day lbs/day lbs/day

86.80 1535 | 286.90 ] .14 20.87
Table 4 — Tons/Year Emissions Reduced with 5000 NEVs

ROG NOx 6(0) S0O2 PM10

tons/year tons/year tons/year tons/year tons/year

15.84 2.8 52.36 1.026 | 3.8 B

C. Cost-Effectiveness of NEV Air Emission Benefits for Lincoln

The cost of reducing air pollution is often calculated in units of dollars spent per unit of
emission reduction received. In simple terms, when the local Placer Air Pollution Control
District calculates the value of funding it provides “mobile source” (vehicle) emission
reduction projects, including NEVs, it divides the tons of emissions reduced by what it spent
to achieve them,

The NEV project does NOT require large investments by air agencies, in spite of the
considerable emission reductions that will occur. This is because NEVs will take advantage
of existing roadway improvements and infrastructure. Since NEVs have a much lower cost to
operate, and even “green image” environmental benefits important to increasing numbets of
drivers and local businesses, the “costs” for the emission reductions produced by the NEVs
will be substantially underwritten by the vehicle buyer. Therefore, the cost-effectiveness of
the emission benefits to Lincoln and the broader Sacramento air basin is a bargain.

Because NEVs operate at essentially zero emissions, (using grid power) vehicles with an
internal combustion engine will operate with greater emissions. No grid power in the
Sacramento region is generated in the local air basin, and it is reasonable to argue that
because NEVs produce a wide range of emission benefits to society they should be able to
claim that their grid power comes from hydroelectric or other environmentally benign
sources.

D. Luke Air Force Base NEV Fleet Demonstration Program Report
The September 14, 2000 Luke Air Force Base NEV Fleet Demonstration Program report
provided the following air quality benefits for each of their NEVs:

Table 5 — Air Quality Benefits

Vehicle Type 10-Year 10-Yr VOC 10-Yr CO 10-Yr
yp Total Miles  1b Ib NOX Ib

NEV Elect. 13,000 (52.0) (390.0) (67.6)

Gas Auto 34,000 136.0 £ 1,020.0 176.8

N:A05401-Lincoin - NEV Phase INDocuments\NEY Transportation Plan\05401-FINAL NEV Transportation Plan-Auy2006.doc

* Page 10 0f 26



M-H-M

-
E. Community Design Benefits
The NEV program represents "inside out transportation planning"; or planning from the user's
perspective.
F. Environmental Justice

The City of Lincoln’s proposed NEV transportation plan will enhance the quality of life for
aging, disabled, and low-income persons within the City.

1. NEVs Will Provide Inexpensive Mobility for Low-Income Drivers
The high cost of a conventional automobile can be a barrier to independence and mobility
for low or fixed income persons. The initial and operating costs of an NEV are
substantially less than those of a conventional automobile.

A new NEYV retails for approximately $7,560.00. Used NEVS are also available for less.
The least expensive conventional automobile is at least three times the amount of a new
NEV.

The operating costs of an NEV are also substantially lower than those of a conventional
automobile. The average annual operating cost for an NEV including insurance,
registration, fuel, and maintenance is $559.00. The same costs for a conventional
automobile are $3,520.00; over six times the operating costs of an NEV.

2. NEVs Will Promote Safety and Provide Independence for Aging and Disabled
Drivers ‘
With the State’s aging population, we are confronted with the conflicting interest of
providing continued mobility to aging drivers while promoting a safe driving
environment for all drivers. After the tragic accident in Southern California, where an
elderly driver crashed into a farmers market killing several bystanders, the State’s
population has become acutely aware of the dangers of drivers with diminished skills
often brought on by old age. After the accident, the State immediately began considering
new driver’s license testing, a move that will inevitably result in the loss of a driver’s loss
for drivers with diminished driving skills, included the elderly and disabled.

The loss of a driver’s license can lead to isolation and dependence on others for mobility.
The proposed NEV transportation plan will provide for a special driver’s permit, issued
by the local jurisdiction, which will allow aging or disabled persons to drive an NEV in
designated NEV routes. Since NEVs are 